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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERBE

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (the “Board”) of
Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | present
to you the audited consolidated final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March

2021 (the “Year”).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

£ ERE
AANEREEHEEREEZBERAR (AR
ANDEFE(EF)G(EEE DA BT
EARBREMBAR (G [RNEE DEE
—E—HF-A=1+—HUEFETAFE]D
BRI ARIRAE -

FERKRE

The below summaries the results and dividends of the Group for I TH BRI AERHE —E - —F= A
the year ended 31 March 2021 and the year ended 31 March 2020 =+ —HItEEREE T -_ZF = A
respectively: —+—HULEFENEERRKE
2021 2020
—BE--& —Z-%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M3t TER FAT
Revenue zs 1 130,521 127,989
Cost of services and goods sold BERBRERUA (75,914) (75,775)
Gross profit eS| 1,20 54,607 52,214
Other revenue Hip iz 24) 8,661 5,833
Selling and distrioution expenses HERDHER (642) (367)
Administrative and other operating expenses THRANEEER 2¢) (34,505) (49,411)
Exchange gain/(l0ss), net B/ (BR)F8 2b) 7,979 (4,672)
Finance costs BEKAK 2h) (9,626) (6,952)
Supplemental resources fee BRERER 24) = (85,688)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration receivables  EIRE AR B2 A FEZE 29 (3,648) 3,009
Change in fair value and gain arising from modification of BB IETE AR A TEFIFELE
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities BENEEZSRARY
at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL") BRES 2 DN FHEEE K
EE W 21) (24,857) 71,443
Impairment loss on goodwil BERERE 2i) (14,503) (3,831)
Loss before tax BRHAIEE (16,534) (18,422)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrisRiEse/(BX) 2)) 14,326 (6,182)
Loss for the year FAER 12 (2,208) (24,604)
Notes: MisE -
1. For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately 1. REE » KEE D FIEEE W E 130,521,000

HK$130,521,000 (2020: approximately HK$127,989,000) and gross profit
of approximately HK$54,607,000 (2020: approximately HK$52,214,000)
but net loss of approximately HK$2,208,000 (2020: approximately
HK$24,604,000) respectively. The Board does not recommend the payment

of any dividend for the Year (2020: Nil).

2. Loss for the Year of the Group was approximately HK$2,208,000 (2020: loss
of approximately HK$24,604,000), representing an upturn of approximately
HK$22,396,000 as compared with last year. The upturn was mainly due to

the net effect of the following:

a) the saving of a supplemental resources fee in the current year (2020:

approximately HK$85,688,000);

b) the exchange gain of approximately HK$7,979,000 (2020: exchange

loss of approximately HK$4,672,000);
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT T E#R %

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2.

(continued)

c) the increase of gross profit by approximately HK$2,393,000;

d) the increase of other revenue by approximately HK$2,828,000;

e) the decrease of administrative and other operating expenses by
approximately HK$14,906,000;

f) change in fair value of convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at FVPL of approximately HK$24,857,000 (2020: change
in fair value and gain arising from modification of convertible
bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL of approximately
HK$71,443,000);

Q) fair value loss of contingent consideration receivables of
approximately HK$3,648,000 (2020: fair value gain of approximately
HK$3,009,000);

h) the increase in the finance costs by approximately HK$2,674,000;

impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$14,503,000 (2020:
approximately HK$3,831,000); and

the turnaround from income tax expenses of approximately
of HK$6,182,000 in the previous year to income tax credit of
approximately of HK$14,326,000 for the Year as the Group reached
an agreement with relevant tax authority in the People’s Republic of
China (the “Mainland China”) for a preferential tax treatment on the
deductibility of certain expenses incurred during the year ended 31
March 2020, and accordingly a tax refund was received from the
relevant tax authority and was recognised as income tax credit for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

s g
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/l.:\ IIIE )
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT I E#R %

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the Year, the Group was engaged in three business segments,
(1) coal mining business; (2) renewable energy business; and (3)
information technology (“IT”) services business. Our main business
includes coal mining and sales of coal in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region (“Xinjiang”) of the Mainland China. Xinjiang is remote from
major industrial cities in the Mainland China, and hence coal produced
in Xinjiang is mainly consumed locally due to the logistic and the
transportation costs.

On 8 October 2018, we completed the acquisition of NEFIN Leasing
Technologies Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, NEFIN
Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (together the “NEFIN Group”)
which is principally engaged in renewable energy solutions in
Malaysia. We further allocated resources into the solar energy projects
during the Year so as to enable higher efficiency together with the
existing solar assets.

On 23 April 2019, we further completed the acquisition of Harbour
Group Holdings Limited (“Harbour Group Holdings”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Harbour Group”) which is principally
engaged in the provision of IT outsourcing, consultancy and technical
services (together referred to as the “IT Services”) mainly in Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(“HKSAR” or “Hong Kong”) with expanding business in the United
Kingdom (the “UK”), Malaysia and Singapore. Our Group will continue
our focus on developing the existing business. In the long run, we will
aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a diversified business.

MAJOR EVENTS

Acquisition of the New Mining Right of the Enlarged
Kaiyuan Mine

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 11
November 2011, 21 March 2012, 15 June 2012, 21 March 2014,
15 August 2017, 28 March 2018, 14 December 2018, 31 December
2018, 15 May 2019, 31 May 2019, 4 November 2019 and 15
November 2019, the Group negotiated with the Department of
Natural Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region* (¥75a#4E
ERBEAR A AREIREE) of the Mainland China (the “Xinjiang Natural
Resources Department”) regarding the Optimization and Upgrading
Plan’ relating to the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine (the “Kaiyuan Mine”)
(i.e. the operating coal mine of the Group in Xinjiang), in particular,
to increase the mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine and obtain the
corresponding new mining right.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT T E#R %

MAJOR EVENTS (continued)
Acquisition of the New Mining Right of the Enlarged
Kaiyuan Mine (continued)

U

(i)

(i)

(vi)

Mulei County Kai Yuan Company Limited* (/N2 &2/ E R A
R&{EAF]) (“Kaiyuan Company”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the transferee and Xinjiang
Natural Resources Department as the transferor entered into
the transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) dated 2
December 2019, pursuant to which Kaiyuan Company acquired
the new mining right (the “New Mining Right”) of the Kaiyuan
Mine with an enlarged mining area (including the original mining
area of approximately 1.1596 km?) of 4.1123 km? in Xinjiang
(the “Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine”) for 30 years from August 2019 to
August 2049 from the Xinjiang Natural Resources Department
to conduct mining activities at the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine
at a consideration of Renminbi (“RMB”) 160,978,000 (the
“Acquisition”);

the estimated coal resources of the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine are
41.6433 million tonnes for the mining life of 30 years under the
Transfer Agreement;

the new mining permit (the “New Mining Permit”) in respect
of the New Mining Right with mining term of 1 year from 21
December 2018 to 21 December 2019 regarding the New
Mining Right was granted to Kaiyuan Company on 3 November
2018, which has been renewed for two years from 21
December 2019 to 21 December 2021;

Kaiyuan Company has the right to apply for the renewal of New
Mining Permit for the remaining period of the New Mining Right
under the Transfer Agreement;

the consideration of RMB160,978,000 shall be settled in
cash and paid by Kaiyuan Company to the Xinjiang Natural
Resources Department in fifteen instalments: (a) the first
instalment in an amount of RMB32,200,000 was paid by
Kaiyuan Company; (b) the second to fourteenth instalments
in an amount of RMB9,200,000 each shall be paid before 20
November of every year from 2020 to 2032; and (c) the last
instalment in an amount of RMB9,178,000 shall be paid before
20 November 2033;

the Acquisition constituted a very substantial acquisition for the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and further information on the Acquisition was disclosed in the
circular dated 19 August 2020; and

ERSBEH(E)
Uk B A 4 K LR AR o ST R R A ()

)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT I E#R %

MAJOR EVENTS (continued)

Acquisition of the New Mining Right of the Enlarged

Kaiyuan Mine (continued)

(viil as part of the Transfer Agreement, Kaiyuan Company
is required to pay a supplemental resources fee of
RMB76,502,500 (the “Resources Fee”) to the Xinjiang Natural
Resources Department for 19.8 million tonnes of coal of
Kaiyuan Mine, which represented the difference between the
accumulated output of 23.65 million tonnes of the Kaiyuan Mine
at the end of 2017 and the output of 3.8819 million tonnes
(Resources Fee of such output had been paid by Kaiyuan
Company to the Xinjiang Natural Resources Department) and
recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2020. Based on the advice given by the legal adviser of the
Company as to the laws of the Mainland China, other than the
payment of the Resources Fee, Kaiyuan Company will not be
subject to any fees relating to the original Kaiyuan Mine pursuant
to the terms of the Transfer Agreement.

Temporary Suspension of Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 20
December 2019 and 16 March 2020, the sales and operation of
the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine was temporarily suspended since 21
December 2019 (the “Temporary Suspension”) due to the expiry
of the New Mining Permit on 21 December 2019 and the delay in
renewal of the New Mining Permit.

The New Mining Permit was renewed in March 2020 and the
resumption application has been approved by the Production
Safety Supervision and Administration Bureau* ( &% & 4 E B & &
2 B ) (“Safety Bureau”) of the Xinjiang Zhundong Economic and
Technological Development Zone* (3 8 /f 3 &% B T 5 2 2 )
(“Economic Zone”) on 2 August 2020. On 2 August 2020 the approval
on the resumption application issued by the Safety Bureau of the
Economic Zone was received and was allowed to resume mining
operations and sales.

# “Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Management Restructuring Plan” in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2011 and in the announcements, notices, circulars,
interim reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

Acquisition of shares and subscription of new shares in
Harbour Group Holdings

References are made to announcements of the Company dated 11
March 2019 and 23 April 2019 and the circular of the Company dated
1 April 2019 in relation to the acquisition of shares and subscription of
new shares in Harbour Group Holdings.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT T E#R %

MAJOR EVENTS (continued)

Acquisition of shares and subscription of new shares in
Harbour Group Holdings (continued)

On 11 March 2019, (i) Ample Talent Ventures Limited (“Ample
Talent”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, and Ample Talent
conditionally agreed to purchase 80% shareholding interest in
Harbour Group Holdings at a consideration of HK$35,712,000 (the
“Harbour Group Acquisition”); and (i) Ample Talent and Harbour
Group Holdings entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which Harbour Group Holdings conditionally agreed to issue
and allot to Ample Talent, and Ample Talent conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 450 ordinary shares of Harbour Group Holdings,
representing approximately 4.5% of the total number of shares
of Harbour Group Holdings in issue as at the date of subscription
agreement at an aggregate subscription price (the “Subscription
Price”) of HK$2,008,800 (the “Subscription”). The Company indirectly
interests in 80.86% shares of Harbour Group Holdings in issue upon
completion of the Harbour Group Acquisition and Subscription on 23
April 2019.

The consideration for the Harbour Group Acquisition was settled
in cash of HK$28,512,000 by Ample Talent to the Vendor and the
remaining amount of HK$7,200,000 by means of the issue of the
three promissory notes (“Promissory Note(s)”), each in the principal
amount of HK$2,400,000 by the Company to the Vendor. The
Subscription Price was settled in cash.

Harbour Group consists of Harbour Group Holdings, Harbour Group
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Harbour Group Consulting (UK) Limited,
HGH Technology Sdn. Bhd., Mountain Managed Cloud Consulting
Limited and Vanguard Business Services Limited. Harbour Group is
principally engaged in the provision of IT Services mainly in HKSAR
with expanding business in the UK, Malaysia and Singapore. The
Directors are of the view that the Harbour Group Acquisition and the
Subscription can broaden the Group’s revenue base and benefit from
the diversified return in future. The Harbour Group Acquisition and the
Subscription constituted a business combination and was accounted
for using the acquisition method under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 3 Business Combinations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT I E#R %

MAJOR EVENTS (continued)

Acquisition of shares and subscription of new shares in
Harbour Group Holdings (continued)

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor agreed
to guarantee that the audited consolidated net profit generated from
operating activities of the Harbour Group in its ordinary and usual
course of business, prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (the “Net
Profit”), for the years ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”), 31
December 2019 (“FY2019”) and 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”, and
each such 12-month period, a “PG 12-Month Period”) shall be no less
than HK$7,200,000 per annum (the “Guaranteed Profit”). In the event
that the Net Profit during the each PG 12-Month Period is less than
the Guaranteed Profit, the Vendor unconditionally and irrevocably
undertakes and guarantees, as a continuing obligation, to pay the
shortfall multiplied by the ratio of 1.13 to the Group by way of cash
and/or setting off the same amount from the amount owed by the
Company under the Promissory Note(s) issued to the Vendor.

The profit guarantee for FY2018 was met but the profit guarantee for
FY2019 and FY2020 was not fulfilled.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 7 April 2020, the shortfall
for FY2019 profit guarantee equals to HK$2,187,091 (rounded to the
nearest dollar). Such amount was deducted from the Promissory Note
in the principal amount of HK$2,400,000 and the outstanding amount
of HK$212,909 (i.e. after deduction of the shortfall amount) of the
Promissory Note was paid to the Vendor by the Group.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 7 May 2021, the shortfall
for FY2020 profit guarantee equals to HK$2,538,041 (rounded to the
nearest dollar). Such amount was deducted from the Promissory Note
in the principal amount of HK$2,400,000 and the outstanding amount
of HK$138,041 after deduction of the Promissory Note was paid by
the Vendor to the Group.
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PROSPECTS

The Group actively proceeded with the Optimization and Upgrading
Plan since 2011 in relation to the New Mining Right of the Enlarged
Kaiyuan Mine. The Acquisition enlarged the Group’s coal resources
and allowed the Group to enhance the development of its sales
operations of Kaiyuan Mine in the future. The Directors consider that
the transaction is in line with the Group’s strategy to expand the coal
mining business of the Group.

In the coming years, there will be (i) a reasonable expected amount
of expenditure in capital assets, in particular for the new plants and
machines for the environmental protection remedial works and (ii)
reasonable expenditure for works required by the Safety Bureau to
improve safety standard of our coal mine. Sources of funding are
expected to come primarily from the coal sales revenue and external
banking facilities of the Group.

In addition to coal mining, the Group has been exploring new markets
and seeking to develop its business coverage on technological and
renewable energy sectors, in particular, the acquisition of Harbour
Group in 2019 and NEFIN Group in 2018. It is one of the objectives of
the Group to diversify its business portfolio into sectors offering higher
growth momentum.

Due to the recent social and political instability in HKSAR and the
outbreak of COVID-19 worldwide, we are facing the difficult business
environment, which negatively impact the growth of our business. In
particular IT Services business in HKSAR is expected to be hit hard
by the prolonged social unrest and subsistence of the COVID-19 in
HKSAR.

The Board will continue to keep track of the latest development of
the COVID-19 and will use its best endeavors to manage the Group’s
business portfolio with a view to improving the Group’s financial
performance and enhance shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

| wish to thank my fellow directors, management and staff for their
unrelentless efforts for the business development of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, | express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and business
partners for their continuing support of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Kwan Man Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021

* English translation for identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$130,521,000
for the Year (2020: approximately HK$127,989,000). It represents an
increase of approximately HK$2,532,000 or approximately 1.98% as
compared with the previous year.

Coal Mining Business

During the Year, the revenue of approximately HK$100,688,000
of the coal mining business is increased by approximately
HK$26,778,000 or approximately 36.23% as compared to
approximately HK$73,910,000 last year. The increase in revenue
of the coal mining business was mainly due to the reason that the
Group sold approximately 1,438,392 tonnes (2020: approximately
1,037,492 tonnes) of coal during the Year, representing an increase
by approximately 38.64% in volume compared to that in the previous
year.

Renewable Energy Business

During the Year, the renewable energy business recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$1,285,000 (2020: approximately HK$775,000).
The increase in revenue of the renewable energy business was mainly
due to the enhanced production capacity during the Year.

IT Services Business

During the Year, the IT Services business contributed a revenue
of approximately HK$28,548,000 (2020: approximately
HK$53,304,000). The decrease in revenue of approximately
HK$24,756,000, representing a decrease of approximately 46.44%
was mainly due to the prolonged social unrest in HKSAR and
subsistence of the COVID-19 worldwide.

Cost of services and goods sold

Coal Mining Business

The cost of sales of the coal mining business for the Year
was approximately HK$53,913,000 (2020: approximately
HK$31,765,000). The cost mainly comprises direct labor cost, cost
for explosive works, depreciation, amortisation and cost of services
and materials, etc. The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to
absorption of fixed costs to cost of goods sold which are unamortised
to inventories due to the suspension of mining operations until August
2020, and also the increase of coal extracted for 0.81 million tonnes
for the Year.

Renewable Energy Business

During the Year, the cost of services of the renewable energy business
is approximately HK$517,000 (2020: approximately HK$306,000).

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

ot 7% 51 B8

e
RAFERN AEBHBKEY
130,521,000 B ;. ( = & = & S
127,989,000 7 jT ) + B2 X F #8 bb 18 0 49
2,532,000/ T3k £)1.98% ©

BAZI-@J*W L 2E 75 W 25 49 100,688,000
T - BRZE 4 4973,910,0005% JT 48 Eb % N
#926,778,000 7% JT 3% 36.23% ° K & ¥ 15
WHEMEZEHRAEERAFEHELD
1,438,392W( —Z =T : 491,037,492l )
Bk - BERAFILINLS8.64% °

o] BEBERER

RAFERA - TEEE“?F%%%&%%%%%E%@
1,285,000/ 7L ( Z T ZFF : #9775,000/%8
J0) o Al BAEREREBWRIEMEERNA
FERNNEER®D °

BRI RS ER

RAFER  BABEREESE R
7 #)28,548000 B L (Z 2 ZFF : 4
53,304,000/ 7T ) ° Yz i@ 4 4924,756,000
B HERBAH46.44% 0 EBHRE
B E RS E)E K2 BCOVID-19%

BERE -

EERKERE BB

REAFE  BREEXEFBZHEXNEY
53913000 B T (Z E = F : 4
31,765,00087L) - KAF EREEELH
FRAR ~ @A TREACA ~ & - LA R BRTS
B RIS o SHERAENEZ AR EE
ERARBEDET MR + ZERAFE K
BEBEEEZ_Z_ZF ) N\AREKFEH

Rk 28 HN10.81 8 BMEM Y AR BHETT
AJ B BERERE

REFENRA - ‘Jﬁt{%ﬁ%ﬂﬂz}%ﬁi‘%}ﬂw
#3517,0008 L (ZZE=Z 4 : 4306,000/%8
JT) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstia &2

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of services and goods sold (continued)

IT Services Business

During the Year, the cost of services and goods sold of the IT Services
business is approximately HK$21,484,000 (2020: approximately
HK$43,704,000). The decrease in cost of services and goods sold
was largely in line with the drop of revenue during the Year, particularly
the significant curtail of operations in Malaysia and HKSAR by the
subsidiaries of Harbour Group, as compared with the previous year.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased to approximately
HK$54,607,000 (2020: approximately HK$52,214,000). It represents
an increase of approximately HK$2,393,000 or approximately 4.58%
and gross profit margin increased by approximately 1.04% for the
Year to approximately 41.84% as compared with last financial year.
Coal mining business contributed approximately HK$46,775,000
(2020: approximately HK$42,145,000), IT Services business
contributed approximately HK$7,064,000 (2020: approximately
HK$9,600,000) and renewable energy business contributed
approximately HK$768,000 (2020: approximately HK$469,000).

Other revenue

The Group’s other revenue for the Year was approximately
HK$8,661,000 (2020: approximately HK$5,833,000), representing an
increase of approximately HK$2,828,000 or approximately 48.48%
as compared with last financial year. This is mainly due to the net
effect of 1) increase of interest income on bank deposits substantially
from the coal mining business of approximately HK$2,639,000;
2) no sales derived from the coal gangue in the Year (2020:
approximately HK$2,041,000); and 3) government grants amounting
to approximately HK$2,403,000 (2020: Nil) from the Anti-epidemic
Fund set up by the HKSAR government under an Employment
Support Scheme as time-limited financial support to employers to
retain employees who may otherwise be made redundant during the
Year.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the
Year was approximately HK$34,505,000 (2020: approximately
HK$49,411,000), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$14,906,000 or approximately 30.17% as compared with the
previous year. This was mainly due to the 1) the saving of payment
of additional land fee in the current year (2020: approximately
HK$7,579,000); 2) the reduction of legal and professional fee for
approximately HK$3,173,000; and 3) the decrease in salaries and
allowances for approximately HK$2,477,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstm R o

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the Year

Loss for the Year of the Group was approximately HK$2,208,000
(2020: loss of approximately HK$24,604,000), representing an upturn
of approximately HK$22,396,000 as compared with last year. The
upturn was mainly due to the net effect of the following:

a)

the saving of a supplemental resources fee in the current year
(2020: approximately HK$85,688,000);

the exchange gain of approximately HK$7,979,000 (2020:
exchange loss of approximately HK$4,672,000);

the increase of gross profit by approximately HK$2,393,000;
the increase of other revenue by approximately HK$2,828,000;

the decrease of administrative and other operating expenses by
approximately HK$14,906,000;

change in fair value of convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$24,857,000 (2020: change in fair value and gain arising
from modification of convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at FVPL of approximately HK$71,443,000);

fair value loss of contingent consideration receivables of
approximately HK$3,648,000 (2020: fair value gain of
approximately HK$3,009,000);

the increase in the finance costs by approximately
HK$2,674,000;

impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$14,503,000
(2020: approximately HK$3,831,000); and

the turnaround from income tax expenses of approximately
of HK$6,182,000 in the previous year to income tax credit
of approximately of HK$14,326,000 for the Year as the
Group reached an agreement with relevant tax authority in
the Mainland China for a preferential tax treatment on the
deductibility of certain expenses incurred during the year ended
31 March 2020, and accordingly a tax refund was received from
the relevant tax authority and was recognized as income tax
credit for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the Year (continued)

Change in fair value and gain arising from modification of
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL

The zero coupon convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond”) of the
Company in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 was issued on
14 March 2008 with a conversion price of HK$0.2 per share (subject
to adjustments) and maturity date of 17 March 2011 (details of which
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 28 January
2008 and 14 March 2008).

The maturity date of the Convertible Bond was then extended to 13
March 2014, 13 March 2017, 13 March 2020, and further extended
to 13 March 2023 (details of which were respectively set out in the
circulars of the Company dated 21 February 2011, 13 February 2014,
16 February 2017 and 24 February 2020 and announcements of the
Company dated 11 March 2011, 10 March 2014, 7 March 2017 and
11 March 2020).

As at the date of this annual report, the outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bond is HK$200,000,000.

The Company conducted valuation for the fair value of the Convertible
Bond every financial year after its issuance in compliance with the
relevant accounting policies. The Company has engaged ValQuest
Advisory Hong Kong Limited (“ValQuest”) as its independent
professional valuer for the purpose of assessing the fair value of the
Convertible Bond as at 31 March 2021. In assessing the fair value
of the Convertible Bond, the binomial option pricing model was
adopted and factors including stock price of the Company, specific
terms and structure of the Convertible Bond, trading conditions and
liquidity of the Convertible Bond, and ancillary effects associated with
the exercise or conversion and partial conversion of the Convertible
Bond were taken into account. The credit rating of our Company is
estimated to be CCC with reference to Standard & Poor’s Corporate
Rating Criteria, where Corporate Bond with issuer credit rating
from CCC- to CCC+ and similar time to maturity were selected, the
discount rate is 13.20% (2020: 18.80%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E&Tim &

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the Year (continued)

Change in fair value and gain arising from modification of
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL
(Continued)

The fair values of the Convertible Bond were approximately
HK$171,283,000 and approximately HK$146,426,000 as at 31
March 2021 and 2020, respectively. The amounts were assessed and
reviewed by the Directors and reviewed and audited by the auditor
of the Company. According to the relevant accounting policies, the
increase in fair value of the Convertible Bond represents an increase
in liabilities of the Company. The amount of the change in fair value of
the Convertible Bond of approximately HK$24,857,000 was derived
by taking the difference between the fair value of the Convertible Bond
as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The significant change in fair value
of the Convertible Bond was mainly due to the significant change in
the stock price of the Company during the Year and the expected
volatility of the stock price of the Company. The closing stock prices
of the Company were HK$0.09 and HK$0.12 as at 31 March 2021
and 2020, respectively and the expected volatility of the stock price of
the Company was 88.74% and 70.97% based on the historical price
volatility of the Company for the financial years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020, respectively.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segment

Information reported to the executive Directors, being identified as the
chief operating decision makers (the “CODM”), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered or services rendered. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

(1)  Coal mining business segment: mining and sales of coal mine in
the Xinjiang of the Mainland China;

(2) Renewable energy business segment: service income from
renewable energy solutions in Malaysia; and

(8) IT Services business segment: provision of IT Services in

HKSAR, Singapore, Malaysia and the UK.

Segment revenue and results
Segment revenue represents revenue derived from (i) coal mining
business, (i) renewable energy business and (iii) [T Services business.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

DEER(E)
Pl eI E I

Coal Mining Business () IRIEFEH
Coal mining is the major business of the Group at present. It BBEANEEBANEZER - RAF
contributed a revenue of approximately HK$100,688,000 for F; ZER 7 WzE49100,688,00058 7T
the Year (2020: approximately HK$73,910,000), representing —E 4 #973,910,000/8 7T ) ¢
an increase of approximately 36.23% as compared with last B EFIEIN4I36.23% ©
year.
Sale and Production of Coals JRIR A E R A
During the Year, the Group sold approximately 1,438,392 RAFE - AEBE T 491,438,30218
tonnes of coals (2020: approximately 1,037,492 tonnes) with HiR(ZE-FF : #91,037,4920F )
total sales income of approximately HK$100,688,000 (2020: 4835 E I A 47100,688,000/8 (==&
approximately HK$73,910,000). Details of sales of coals in —TE - 4973,910,0008 7T ) o LAMAET
tonnes are listed in the below table: RS ERREN T & ¢
2020
—E-THF
1,438,392 1,037,492
tonnes tonnes
Sales of coals 87! 1 Mg
Coal Sales (tonnes) and Percentage of Coal Sales SRR EE (M) J R IR P E B 7 H
Coal Sales Coal Sales
(tonnes) in %
R HE HIRIHE
(mg) Epalsd
Slack Coal R 1,002,548 69.70
Weathered Coal ekl 435,844 30.30
Total &=t 1,438,392 100.00
Renewable Energy Business (i)  ABEBERER
Service income from renewable energy business contributed RAREE fBARBREBESE 2R
a revenue of approximately HK$1,285,000 for the Year (2020: A B B2 491,285,000/ T ( —
approximately HK$775,000). The increase in revenue of the TTF : 49775,00087T) c A4
renewable energy business was mainly due to the enhanced BEREFRWSENFTEHRANFEETE
production capacity during the Year. BELRHATER ©
IT Services Business (i) BRI IREES

Service income from IT Services business contributed a
revenue of approximately HK$28,548,000 for the Year (2020:
approximately HK$53,304,000). The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the prolonged social unrest in HKSAR and
subsistence of the COVID-19 worldwide.

RAFE  BBEREEREE S
HEWﬁz)\ﬁﬁmﬁém%ﬁzts,ooo;‘%7‘z
ZE T F : #953,304,000/ 7T ) ©
WaR LT EERNEA SR RAMNT
2H)E K E2IRCOVID-19&Z B HE M

ﬁ( °
Annual Report 2020/21 4%

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstia &z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reserves and Resources

The Group owns a mining right located in Xinjiang. The estimated
remaining reserve in Kaiyuan Mine (excluding the Enlarged Kaiyuan
Mine (as defined in “Major Events”)) was approximately 5.11 million
tonnes as at 31 March 2020.

On 2 December 2019, the Transfer Agreement was officially passed
by the Xinjiang Natural Resources Department to Kaiyuan Company.
According to the Competent Person’s report and valuation report
of the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine dated 19 August 2020, the probable
reserve in the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine was approximately 63.48 million
tonnes as at the date of acquisition of the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine.

During the Year, approximately 1.90 million tonnes of coal was
extracted (2020: approximately 1.09 million tonnes).

Total approximate reserve of the mine in Xinjiang as at 31 March 2021
is equivalent to 66.69 million tonnes (i.e. the sum of the estimated
remaining coal reserve in Kaiyuan Mine including the Enlarged
Kaiyuan Mine) (2020: approximately 5.11 million tonnes).

Coal Reserve as at 31 March 2021 = Coal Reserve as at 31 March

2020 — Amount of coal extracted by the Group during the Year + the
probable reserve in the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstia &2

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical segment

The geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location where the goods are delivered or services are rendered.
The Group’s revenue and results from operations are mainly derived
from activities in the Mainland China, HKSAR, Singapore, the UK
and Malaysia. Activities outside these five locations are insignificant.
The principal assets of the Group are located in the Mainland China,
HKSAR and Malaysia.

Goodwill

The major goodwill of the Group arises from the acquisition of
80.86% equity interests in Harbour Group on 23 April 2019 with
cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) engaged in IT Services (the “IT Services
CGu”).

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors assessed the recoverable
amount of the IT Services CGU with reference to value-in-use (“VIU”)
calculations using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
and forecasts covering a five-year period and extrapolation of cash
flows beyond such period conducted by ValQuest.

Key assumptions used for cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of the goodwill allocated to IT Services CGU are as
follows:
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Growth in revenue year-on-year
during the five-year period

Budgeted gross profit margin BiZERNE
Perpetual growth rate KB RE
Discount rate (pre-tax) ALIR K (FHAT)

The Directors determined the growth rates are based on past
performance and the expectation of market development. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
IT Services CGU.
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1.80%
26.00%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E&Tim &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, in light of keen competition from the IT Services
sector and the recent development of COVID-19, which are expected
to have a negative impact on the revenue and growth rate of the IT
Services CGU, the recoverable amount of the IT Services CGU of
approximately HK$18,772,000 fell below its then carrying amount.
Accordingly, the goodwill allocated to the IT Services CGU was
impaired by approximately HK$14,503,000 during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Yet, the IT Services segment would continue to sustain its established
foothold in HKSAR, the UK, Malaysia and Singapore in responding
to the business development of its existing customers in the IT
Services and also cloud related services, though the Group did
not enter into long term written service agreements with these
customers. The Group expects the existing customers from the
information technology and communication industry worldwide
would gradually recover once the pandemic is over. In addition, in
view of the HKSAR government’s continuous policy measure to
facilitate the multi-faceted development of IT industry in HKSAR,
which includes establishing specific government authorities (i.e. the
Innovative and Technology Bureau in 2015) to promote the industry,
setting up funding schemes to support industry-oriented research and
development and nurturing technological entrepreneurship, the Group
expects such measures could aid the recovery of the industry once
the COVID-19 is contained.

Intangible assets

The Directors conducted impairment review of the mining right
and stripping activity assets at the end of each reporting period or
when impairment indicator exists. In such connection, the Company
engaged ValQuest to assess the VIU of CGU of the non-current
mining assets, including property, plant and equipment, mining right,
stripping activity assets and prepayment for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of the individual mine site, of the coal mining
business of the Group (the “Coal Mining Assets”) for the purpose of
impairment testing as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, with reference
to valuations conducted by ValQuest using discounted cash flow
method, the Directors expected that the VIU of the Coal Mining Assets
is higher than its carrying amount by approximately HK$23,773,000
and thus concluded that no impairment loss was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

In light of the current mining right which is expiring in August 2049 as
disclosed below, the Directors are of the opinion that, based on past
experience and current laws and regulations in the Mainland China,
the Group is eligible to further renew the mining right without incurring
significant incremental cost, given the Group continues to comply
with the requirements as required by the relevant local authorities in
the Mainland China. In this connection, when assessing the VIU of the
Coal Mining Assets, the Directors adopted a cash flow forecast which
covers beyond the expiry date, representing the remaining periods of
the mine until the expected coal reserves of the mine is fully utilised.

Having considered the sensitivity analysis about the possible
outcomes for any mining activities after August 2049 and the
likelihood of successful renewal of the mining right with reference to a
legal opinion issued by the lawyer in the Mainland China, the Directors
considered the risk exposed to the renewal of mining right after
August 2049 may not have significant impact on the VIU of the Coal
Mining Assets.

In assessing the VIU of the Coal Mining Assets, the future cash flows
of the coal mining business are discounted to the related present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to such business.
Parameters used in the projected cash flows included but were
not limited to selling prices and sales volumes of coal, production
cost and other expenses, capital expenditure, production plan and
discount rate, respectively, which reflected the current conditions
of the market and the Group and estimated trend in the future. In
particular, the Group may revise the annual production plan and the
expected sales volumes of coal adopted in the cash flows projection
with reference to the latest government policies announced from time
to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstia &z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

When evaluating the appropriate discount rate for the CGU, the
Capital Asset Pricing Model (“CAPM”) had been used. Under CAPM,
the appropriate expected rate of return was the sum of the risk-
free return and the equity risk premium required by investors to
compensate for the market risk assumed. In addition, the expected
rate of return of the CGU was expected to be affected by other firm
specific risk factors that are independent of the general market. The
cost of equity was determined by the risk-free rate, market return and
estimated beta of the CGU and firm specific risk factors. Therefore,
the Group may update the inputs of discount rate and other valuation
parameters with reference to the latest market information and
the firm’s specific risk factors based on the most recent available
evidences from the relevant appropriate sources, e.g. the competent
person’s report on mine reserve.

Key assumptions used for cash flow projections to undertake
impairment assessment of the Coal Mining Assets are as follows:
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Details of the Group’s mining right at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

Mining right Location
RiERE 1 2h

3.00%
47.72%
3.00%
13.72%

Expiry date
& 5w B H

Kaiyuan Mine and
the Enlarged Kaiyuan
Mine
SUIRBERE N 4% K SRR AR

Area in Xinjiang

FoE A SR A 7 AR LU R R AR [
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Inside Zhundong Meitian Xiheishan Coal Mining

Mining right expired in August 2049
with existing mining permit until 21
December 2021 (renewable)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E&Tim &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

The as-mined coal from Kaiyuan Mine or Enlarge Kaiyuan Mine is
screened to various sizes and to the local thermal coal market. The
mine has an established thermal coal sales market with low risk for
future sales. The significant customers include thermal coal domestic
and industry in the local areas.

Xinjiang is remote from major industrial cities in the Mainland China,
and hence coal produced in Xinjiang is mainly consumed locally by
customers due to the logistic and the transportation costs. The Group
did not enter into long term written service agreements with the
existing customers.

However, the management of the Group closely monitors the
short-term operation strategy and profit margin of different coal
products and, if necessary, modifies the production plan through
understanding the local government’s policies and the coal market
demand. The Group keeps strict control over the costs and expenses
to maintain a strong financial position in the coal mining business
segment.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as otherwise disclosed, there were neither significant
investments held as at 31 March 2021 nor material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries during the Year.

Save as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any future
plans for material investments. There will, however, be a reasonable
expected amount of expenditure in capital assets, in particular for the
new plants and machines for the environmental protection remedial
works. Sources of funding are expected to come primarily from the
coal sales revenue and also external banking facilities of the Group.

vl

PEER(E)

\mEEE(E)

FREE SRS R R R ERD
BRRAN  WEBBEHE) NS © %
HIEHEKANB) NEEETS » BRKH
ERBRE - TERFBEEHE HERA
RIZERP -

MBEMTEAME2TRWT - Bt - &
Rl BBARA 2 A5 - FBAERKE
ZREMEFER - AEEREGRREETS
R KRB RS % o

A - AREEREREREG L ERK
NAERERERE R - (IFE  BRK
B2 & T B RIE TS T KA R A ES
B o AN B G BRAR 122 Il B AN B2 A ST AR I
IRFABREE D ER MBI AR, ©

FiFEARRE - WEBLARIZEAXRR
BEHESHEUREARERER
BE 2 RETE

BRETREEN R_BE-_—F=A=+—
RYEFAEARE  RAFETERB R
BZEAMBREESE -

BRATREEN  AEBAYEEFAEARE
ZARKETE - R - AEREBEHERERNE
EFH AR - LEHERANRERHEKTRE
ZHRRE K es o MBS WIREZRA AR
B 2 R IHE W R HMNBIRITRLE

Annual Report 2020/21 4%

23



24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstm R o

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had:

° net current assets of approximately HK$87,610,000 (2020:
approximately HK$127,070,000).

° cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$204,079,000
(2020: approximately HK$235,126,000), which comprised
restricted bank balances of Nil (2020: approximately
HK$73,760,000) and the bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$204,079,000 (2020: approximately
HK$161,366,000), were the major components of the Group’s
current assets of approximately HK$240,342,000 (2020:
approximately HK$259,694,000). All the cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank balances are denominated in
HK$, Malaysian Ringgit (‘MYR”), Singapore Dollars (“‘S$”), Great
Britain Pound (“GBP”), United States Dollars (‘US$”) and RMB
(2020: HK$, MYR, S$, GBP, US$ and RMB).

° current liabilities of approximately HK$152,732,000 (2020:
approximately HK$132,624,000) which comprised mainly
trade and other payables of approximately HK$81,071,000
(2020: approximately HK$54,929,000) and interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$60,636,000 (2020:
approximately HK$63,345,000).

The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable from within two
years to five years since their inception. The average effective
interest rates on the interest-bearing borrowings were ranging
from 5.1% — 9.1% (2020: 4.9% - 8.0%) per annum. The
interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in HK$ and RMB
(2020: HK$ and RMB).

° non-current liabilities of approximately HK$257,873,000 (2020:
approximately HK$233,637,000) which comprised convertible
bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL of approximately
HK$171,283,000 (2020: approximately HK$146,426,000) and
non-current portion payable of approximately HK$82,522,000
(2020: approximately HK$80,155,000) related to mining right
payables.

The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 2.16 (2020:
approximately 1.98). The computation is based on total debt
(convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL, mining
right payables, promissory notes, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
borrowings) divided by total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E&Tim &

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2021, there were 765,373,584 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue.

The Convertible Bond of the Company with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 were issued on 14 March 2008 the
maturity date of which was approved to be further extended for 36
months to 13 March 2023 by the shareholders of the Company on 11
March 2020.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had pledged its mining right with
carrying amount of approximately HK$132,175,000 (2020: restricted
bank balances of approximately HK$73,760,000) to the bank as a
security for interest-bearing borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB, HK$ and MYR and incurs
costs in RMB, HK$ and MYR. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk based on fluctuations between HK$ and RMB arising
from its core operation in the Mainland China as well as HK$ and MYR
arising from its operation in Malaysia. The currency exchange risk for
the Year is mainly derived from the net exchange gain on convertible
bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL, which is a result from
the currency appreciation of RMB against HKS. In order to minimise
the foreign currency risk exposure between these two currencies, the
Group maintained cash balances in both currencies that are sufficient
to meet several months’ operating cash flows requirements of the
Group.

TREASURY POLICIES

Apart from the issuance of Convertible Bond at their face
value of HK$200,000,000 and the interest-bearing borrowings
amounting to approximately HK$60,636,000 (2020: approximately
HK$65,345,000), the Group finances its operation mainly by internal
generated resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 120 employees (2020: 126)
spreading amongst HKSAR, Malaysia, Singapore, the UK and the
Mainland China. Total staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$33,406,000 (2020:
approximately HK$50,609,000), representing a significant reduction
of manpower in HKSAR and Malaysia under the IT Services segment,
and the increase in number of staff in the coal mining business in
Xinjiang. Employment relationship has been well maintained by the
Group with its employees.

* English translation for identification purpose only.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Man Fai (“Mr. Kwan”), aged 52, is an executive Director
appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Kwan has been the chairman
and managing director of the Company since March 2017 and is
a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and a postgraduate
certificate in laws. Mr. Kwan also holds a master degree in laws from
The London School of Economics and Social Sciences, the University
of London and a master degree in the Mainland China law from
the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan is now a consultant of
Messrs. Anthony Siu & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan has
over 10 years of experience in corporate finance and banking work,
including assisting various companies in their listing on the Main
Board and the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Wang Xiangfei, aged 69, is an executive Director appointed
on 25 March 2008. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang Xiangfei graduated from
Renmin University of China with a bachelor degree in economics
in 1982. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is now a senior accountant. Mr. Wang
Xiangfei serves as the financial advisor of CSIH Limited. Mr. Wang
Xiangfei is also an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1065) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang Xiangfei
is a director of Ascent Goal Investments Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the father of Mr.
Wong Sze Wai, an executive Director, and the brother of Mr. Wang
Xiaoyao, the alternate Director to Mr. Wang Xiangfei. In addition,
Mr. Wang Xiangfei and Mr. Wong Sze Wai have cross-directorships
in Ascent Goal Investments Limited, Alpha Apex Global Limited,
Brilliant Kirin Limited, Starry Bridge Limited, Outstanding Pro
Investments Limited, True Spirit Holdings Limited, Pallotta Limited,
CIF Petrochemical Co., Limited, CIF Airport Company Limited and
Golden Access International Limited.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

In addition, Mr. Wang Xiangfei was an independent non-executive
director of Chongqging Iron & Steel Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1053)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from July 2002 to June 2009
and China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 998) and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from December 2006 to November 2012.
Mr. Wang Xiangfei was an independent non-executive director of
Shandong Chenming Paper Holdings Limited from April 2010 to May
2013, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1812), and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang
Xiangfei was an independent non-executive director of SEEC Media
Group Limited (stock code: 205), a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange, from June 2003 to May 2015 and China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (stock code:
1062), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange,
from March 2012 to January 2021. Mr. Wang Xiangfei was also an
external supervisor of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank from April
2009 to May 2015.

Mr. Wong Sze Wai, aged 38, is an executive Director appointed
on 20 November 2018 and was an alternate director to Mr. Wang
Xiangfei, the executive Director, from 18 July 2017 to 16 March 2020.
Mr. Wong Sze Wai is the member of remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong Sze Wai is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He was the personal assistant to Mr. Wang Xiangfei
during the period from 1 August 2018 to 19 November 2018. Mr.
Wong Sze Wai is also the alternate director to Mr. Wang Xiangfei in
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong Sze Wai obtained a
master degree in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in
2010 and a bachelor degree in Science from McMaster University of
Canada in 2007. Mr. Wong Sze Wai is currently a director of several
private companies in Hong Kong. His industrial experience includes
research and development, business development, and legal and
compliance, etc. Mr. Wong Sze Wai is a director and an alternate
director to Mr. Wang Xiangfei of Ascent Goal Investments Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong Sze Wai is
the son of Mr. Wang Xiangfei, an executive Director, and the nephew
of Mr. Wang Xiaoyao, the alternate Director to Mr. Wang Xiangfei.
In addition, Mr. Wong Sze Wai and Mr. Wang Xiangfei have cross-
directorships in Ascent Goal Investments Limited, Alpha Apex Global
Limited, Brilliant Kirin Limited, Starry Bridge Limited, Outstanding Pro
Investments Limited, True Spirit Holdings Limited, Pallotta Limited,
CIF Petrochemical Co., Limited, CIF Airport Company Limited and
Golden Access International Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 25 March 2008. Dr. Wong Man
Hin Raymond is the chairman of the remuneration committee of
the Company and a member of both the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Wong Man Hin
Raymond is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
holds a certificate in financial management (CFM). Dr. Wong Man
Hin Raymond holds a bachelor degree in chemical engineering, a
master degree in economics and a doctorate degree in business
administration. Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond is an executive director
and deputy chairman of Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code:
229), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond is also an independent
non-executive director of Modern Healthcare Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited) (stock code:
919) and Tak Lee Machinery Holdings Limited (stock code: 2102),
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond was an independent non-
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 8366), a company whose shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, from July 2017 to March 2021. Dr.
Wong Man Hin Raymond is the vice president and council member of
the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association and
an independent manager of TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.

Mr. Chan Yiu Fai Youdey (“Mr. Chan”), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Chan is a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and a
postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Chan also holds master degrees
in laws from the City University of Hong Kong and from the People’s
University of China. Mr. Chan is currently a partner of Messrs. David
Y.Y. Fung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in civil and commercial crime litigation and also handles
various transactions for corporate clients and banks in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Qingin
Foodstuffs Group (Cayman) Company Limited (stock code: 1583),
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung Martin (“Mr. Pak”), aged 57, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 19 September 2017. He is the
chairman of audit committee, a member of each of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company. He is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
associate of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He has over 25 years of experience
in finance, accounting and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak had
held positions as the chief financial officer and the company secretary
at various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Pak is currently an
independent non-executive director of Dragon Mining Limited (Stock
Code: 1712), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Pak is also an independent non-executive
director of Viva China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8032), the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He had
been an independent non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2468) from January 2017 to August
2018, the shares of which were delisted on 23 August 2018 on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1886) from June 2019 to January 2021, the shares of which
were delisted on 18 January 2021 on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of Convoy
Global Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1019) from December 2017
to May 2021, the shares of which were delisted on 4 May 2021 on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1991) from April 2016 to October 2018, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Xiaoyao, aged 68, is an alternate Director to Mr. Wang
Xiangfei with effect from 17 March 2020. Mr. Wang Xiaoyao has
been appointed as the personal assistant to Mr. Wang Xiangfei on
1 April 2020. Mr. Wang Xiaoyao graduated from the University of
International Business and Economics with a major in international
trade in 1990. Mr. Wang Xiaoyao has worked in the shipping
transportation department of COSCO Group for nearly 30 years.
Following his retirement in 2013, Mr. Wang Xiaoyao has worked for a
private shipping logistics company, where he has been responsible for
shipping logistics business.

Mr. Wang Xiaoyao is the brother and the uncle of Mr. Wang Xiangfei
and Mr. Wong Sze Wai, the executive Directors, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Chun Fung (“Mr. Li”), aged 39, is the company secretary of
the Company appointed on 21 April 2015. Mr. Li graduated from the
Imperial College, University of London with master degree in chemical
engineering. Mr. Li is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has extensive experience in corporate
governance and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Directors had reviewed the Company’s performance of its
corporate governance practices that the Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the Year, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
as set out in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive” of
this Corporate Governance Report.

THE BOARD

Roles and responsibilities

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. It
should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders at
all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors the
performance and activities of the senior management.

The executive Directors and the senior management of the Company
are responsible for the day to day operations of the Company
whereas the independent non-executive Directors are responsible
for ensuring a high standard of financial and management reporting
to the Board and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide
a balanced composition in the Board so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board composition

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Kwan Man Fai (Chairman & Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Wong Sze Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Man Hin Raymond

Chan Yiu Fai Youdey

Pak Wai Keung Martin

Alternate Director:
Wang Xiaoyao (alternate to Wang Xiangfei)

After annual assessment by the nomination committee of the
Company at a meeting on 22 June 2021, the Board considers
that all the Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise so as to give a balance of skills, knowledge and experience,
and diversity of perspectives required for the running of an effective
Board. The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, three
independent non-executive Directors and one alternate Director. The
brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
and relationship among them are set out in the section headed
“Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Board diversity

In June 2014, the Company adopted a policy on diversity of the Board
members, which has been revised in January 2019. The policy is
to review, assess and recommend any appointment, re-election or
any succession plan of any Directors to the Board from time to time
after considering a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and tenure of appointment to allow for
the Company’s business model and specific needs.
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THE BOARD (continued) EES(H)
Board meetings and general meetings EESSERRREAE
During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings and two ~RAEER - EFS BRI THEHEL
ad-hoc meetings, and the Company held two general meetings. The  —)RFafE@:% » URANA T L EITMNARE
attendance records of individual Directors at the Board meetings and A€ - AR EESNEEeeZ LB EAS Y
at the general meetings are set out below: HE ST
Number of Number of R/ HE/
Board meetings  general meetings RER BB
attended/ attended/ HE i
eligible eligible 31 BRAE
Name of Directors to attend to attend Expg RN RE
Executive Directors: HTES:
Kwan Man Fai 6/6 22 BNE 6/6 2/2
(Chairman & Managing Director) (FRRESHIRE)
Wang Xiangfei 6/6 2/2 IR 6/6 2/2
(with Wang Xiaoyao as alternate) (TBEEERES)
Wong Sze Wai 6/6 2/2 T 6/6 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFyTES:
Wong Man Hin Raymond 4/4 212 BXE 4/4 2/2
Chan Yiu Fai Youdey 4/4 2/2 e 4/4 2/2
Pak Wai Keung Martin 4/4 2/2 Hig% 4/4 2/2

# Independent non-executive Directors had attended meeting(s) independently held ~ * B IEH{TEZE R AEE N EHESSEEM
with the chairman of the Board without the executive Directors present on the BEANEERBELABEARARITZEIES  #
direction of the Group's strategy and policies during the Year. TEEWELF -

All Directors have access to the company secretary of the Company 2 fEEZHR[EBAARZARMWME A
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed FIMEBERRES SR FENESTRME
and all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. SEARA LR FIE LETE o

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely manner, ES=eMRAEKEESERHEMEAEEET
with all necessary information in a form and of a quality appropriate to X GEEZ NWEER - LMEESSETER

enable the Board to discharge its duties. =
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and general meetings (continued)

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company and are available for inspection by any Director.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the nomination committee of the Company. In accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who represent half of the Board and with two of whom
hold appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code specifies that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai Youdey, were
appointed on 25 March 2008. Their service agreements have been
extended for one year commencing on 25 March 2021. Mr. Pak
Wai Keung Martin, the independent non-executive Director, was
appointed on 19 September 2017 and the service agreement has
been extended for one year commencing from 19 September 2020.
However, they are still subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and after annual assessment by
the nomination committee of the Company at a meeting on 22 June
2021, the Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and officers’ liabilities has
been provided to cover potential legal actions against Directors and
officers.

Training and support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. The
Group provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills. Details of the continuous professional
development participated by the Directors for the Year, that the
Company received, are set out below:

Exg(R)
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ARRERA Y ESR RSRMEEDR 2%
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Attended seminars or SHERHER

Name of Directors briefing/read materials BEENE Bhe MEER
Executive Directors: HITES :
Kwan Man Fai HE

(Chairman & Managing Director) v (XRREFHLE) 4
Wang Xiangfei v FAIR v
Wong Sze Wai v F g4 v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIEHITES :
Wong Man Hin Raymond v Ep v
Chan Yiu Fai Youdey v PR R HE v
Pak Wai Keung Martin v SEEGH v
Alternate Director: BERES
Wang Xiaoyao T

(alternate to Wang Xiangfei) v (BREAR) v
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS EERHRNF

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive (the “CE”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the Year, the Company did not have any officer with CE
title. Mr. Kwan Man Fai, the chairman and managing director of the
Company, also carried out the responsibility of CE during the Year. In
view of the size of operation of the Group, the Board considered that
this structure is more suitable for the Company as it can promote the
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own
terms of reference. The views of different committees and their
recommendation not only ensure proper control of the Group but
also the continual achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the committees
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
set up in March 1999 with specific terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company have included the
duties which are set out in code provision C.3.3 of the Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee were amended on 15 March 2016 in order to
comply with the amendments to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Pak Wai Keung Martin, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond and
Mr. Chan Yiu Fai Youdey.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

A total of two meetings were held during the Year and the
attendances of individual members are as follows:

EEZEE(H)

BEREEE (H)

RAFER - KBITMREH - BRKEZ
HEREmT

Number of HE

meetings attended/ EEREE

Name of members eligible to attend REHE g3
Pak Wai Keung Martin (Chairman) 2/2 BE&R(ER) 2/2
Wong Man Hin Raymond 2/2 BXHE 2/2
Chan Yiu Fai Youdey 2/2 PR 2 pE 2/2

The Audit Committee together with the management of the Company
have reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters including the review of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

The Audit Committee reviewed the interim and annual results, risk
management and internal control systems, and financial reporting
matters in conjunction with the external auditors during the Year.
The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted
by the Company and had the best of its ability assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this annual report complies
with the applicable accounting standards and Disclosure of Financial
Information set out in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was set up in July 2005 with specific terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
have included the duties which are set out in code provision B.1.2 of
the Code, with appropriate modifications when necessary. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee were amended on 27
March 2012 in order to comply with the amendments to the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five members,
including the chairman and managing director of the Company, Mr.
Kwan Man Fai, the executive Director, Mr. Wong Sze Wai and three
independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai
Youdey and Mr. Pak Wai Keung Martin.

The remuneration packages of Directors and senior management of
the Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee to
the Board for determination, as authorised by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting, having regard to the operating results of the
Company, individual performance and prevailing market conditions.
The Board conducts regular review of the structure and composition
of the Remuneration Committee with particular attention to the skills,
knowledge and experience of individual members.

During the Year, two meetings were held and the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the existing remuneration packages of the
Board and the senior management of the Company and to make
recommendation on the remuneration package of all Directors and
senior management. The attendances of individual members are as
follows:

EEZEE(H)

FMEEE (&)
YNZESBRmaBXEER - BEAR
BIERESFHCERELE  TES
ITM@EER=RBEIIFNTEEFEXRE
T(HFMEEEXR)  RBERLERARR
pita i

AAREEREREBAB ZFHMEBHH
MEZEERESSEE  YHEFSKRER
RRBREAFAGRERL ZEN - k&2
EARDAEEEE - AARARBRITHRE
BT EFoTiRITMEZES2R/ER
REMEG - LEERMERIKE 2K - AH

RAFER  HFMESSERTMASEL
EERESERARAEREBAEBREH
HrsE  THEREFRSRERENSH
B ELEEREEE - [ERIKE 2 HF s
B

Number of HE

meetings attended/ SERLE

Name of members eligible to attend REHE SRRH
Wong Man Hin Raymond (Chairman) 2/2 EHEYHE(EE) 2/2
Kwan Man Fai 2/2 8 2 2/2
Wong Sze Wai 2/2 T PO 4 2/2
Chan Yiu Fai Youdey 2/2 Per 2 4 2/2
Pak Wai Keung Martin 2/2 ShEEE 2/2

Remuneration paid to senior management
Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the
Year falls within the following band:

TRFEREREAB ZFHM
AEBRAFEINTRREERAR ZFH M
TFATEE

Number of
individual(s)

AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was set up in March 2012 with specific terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company have included the duties which are set out in code provision
A.5.2 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee will take into consideration a candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives, the requirements applicable to the Company and the
structure and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care that
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before making
recommendation to the Board for their final appointment. Factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience will also be taken into account to maintain a
balanced composition and diversity of the perspectives of the Board.

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
tenure of appointment.

The Board is currently composed of diversified members of different
gender and age, with education in economic, legal, accounting
and chemical engineering respectively from leading universities
in Mainland China (including HKSAR) and the UK. Business and
professional experiences of the Board are even diversified which
include but not limited to, multinational entrepreneurship, listed
companies directorship in HKSAR, Shanghai and Shenzhen, legal
practices in HKSAR, corporation finance and investment banking,
accounting and auditing, and financial management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the information (including sex,
age, educational background, business experience, professional
experience, term of appointment and designation) of the Board
Diversity Policy is as follows:

EEZEE(H)

REZEE(H)

RAERAL  BERSTLBEZ AR

(BEMR - ik HEER
BEXRZR  EHEBB)MT

BT

No. of Directors

EEAY
Age group: 31 t0 40 31E405% 1
Fesan - 41 to 50 A1 E508% 0
51 to0 60 512 605% 4
Over 60 HBIB60RT, 1
Gender: Male B 6
5l Female 7 0
Educational background: ~ HKSAR BAERR 5
HEES : Mainland China R A 3, 3
Overseas pisEIN 4
Business experience: Multinational entrepreneurship FE T 3
EEH S Listed companies directorship in BEARRE - AR 6
HKSAR, Shanghai and AN ETARES
Shenzhen
Professional experience: Legal practices in HKSAR BV L EAD 2
EHLE Corporation finance and PERER 1
investment banking WEIRTT
Accounting and auditing FETREZ 2
Financial management B ER 3
Length of service (year): <1 HR—F 0
BRI R R (FREFR) - 1-5 1E5%F 2
6-10 62105 0
Over 10 H2i810%F 4
Designation: Executive Director HITES 3
B - Independent Non-executive Director — J& / FF#{TE= = 3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee at a meeting
on 22 June 2021, the Company considers that the Board has
achieved the following measurable objectives under the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year:

1. at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

28 at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
including the chairman and managing director of the Company, Mr.
Kwan Man Fai as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
three independent non-executive Directors namely, Dr. Wong Man
Hin Raymond, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai Youdey and Mr. Pak Wai Keung
Martin.

During the Year, three meetings were held and the Nomination

BEEZE2(HA)

REZESG(E)
RELEEN T —F A +HHET
SHETEEIRE  XRARE EE
RAFEANDEZTESSLILBERIETZ
THAIETEEE -

1. EEGEL=n2z-KERBILIEH
TEE R

0. EFAEL—AMABEBRH R
BEEG -

REZESHEAAMNBAKEHEN  BEAX
RAEFEREFAEEBXEREREE
BeXFE)R=2BIFNTESH AR
T BRRERAERARREE -

RAFER  REZBQLBRITREH -

Committee had reviewed and adopted the existing policy for the TP IR EFIE R 2K - [ERIKE
nomination of Directors. The attendances of individual members are 7 HER8500T -
as follows:
Number of HE

meetings attended/ SERLE
Name of members eligible to attend REHE =E
Kwan Man Fai (Chairman) 3/3 RSO (EFE) 3/3
Wong Man Hin Raymond 3/3 ERE 3/3
Chan Yiu Fai Youdey 3/3 Per 2 1 3/3
Pak Wai Keung Martin 3/3 ShEE 3/3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Board committees had developed and reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and reviewed the compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination Policy
The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) was
adopted by the Board and became effective on 9 January 2019.

Objective

° The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting,
or the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

Selection Criteria
° The factors listed below could be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:
- Reputation for integrity
- Accomplishment and experience in the related industry
- Relevant skills and experience to contribute to the Board
- Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest
= Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational

background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued) EER(E)

Nomination Policy (continued) RABCK ()

Selection Criteria (continued) R (4E)

e  These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be FHERERIAMBE W TEEREME
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the Az W AERTFEHIER - RBEEE
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate. ALAEIRBIAHERERENAL -

° Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary 2 NE S e BIIREE T S EHE' %S

personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the
public disclosure of their personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
standing for election as Directors.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

The company secretary of the Company shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members or senior management if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
company secretary of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment relating to annual and interim
reports, inside information and price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements. As at 31 March 2021, the Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. The statement of the external auditor of
the Company about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
from page 63 to page 73 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
During the Year, the Group has complied with code provision C.2 of
the Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the
Board oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing
basis. Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises
the following phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks

persistently.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2020/21, no significant
risk was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components of
the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures to provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

° Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is present and
functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of disclosure
requirements in relation to the Group, which include:

° the access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

° confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

° the executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2020/21, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are reported to
the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted semi-annually. Several areas
have been considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but
not limited to:

(i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since
the last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment; and

(i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the
Year. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the
training programmes and budget provided were sufficient.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The audit works of the Group for the Year were performed by Mazars
CPA Limited.

For the Year, fees paid or payable to the auditor of the Company,
Mazars CPA Limited, and its affiliates by the Group are as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Li Chun Fung (“Mr. Li"),
who has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDER’S COMMUNICATIONS

A shareholders communication policy was adopted on 27 March
2012 to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company. The shareholders communication policy is available on the
Company’s website. The Company has established various channels
of communications with its shareholders such as publication of interim
and annual reports, press release and announcement of the latest
development of the Company in a timely manner. The annual general
meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. External auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. Moreover, resolutions are
proposed at annual general meeting on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The 2021 annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be
held on 30 August 2021. A notice of annual general meeting will be
sent to the shareholders of the Company at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting.

Dividend Policy
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was
adopted by the Board and became effective on 9 January 2019.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Company could also take into
account, inter alia:

(@  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;
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SHAREHOLDER’S COMMUNICATIONS (continued)

Dividend Policy (continued)

(d) the Group’s capacity from current and future operation, future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

) any restrictions under the law in Bermuda and the Company’s
Bye-laws;

(@ the dividends received from the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those
subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend;

(h)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements;

(i) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
motion control business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group; and

() any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of future
dividends under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s
continuing determination that the Dividend Policy and the declaration
and/or payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the
Group and shareholders, and are in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting its shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy.

The Board could continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify
and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Group
in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group
to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time, there can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
abovementioned factors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. The written requisition must state the purposes
of the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the company
secretary of the Company will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the right to vote at
the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit
a written request stating the resolution intended to be moved at the
AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal office
in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the
Company, not less than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week
before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the
written request is in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM;
or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money
reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM or
the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
company secretary of the Company by post, fax or email. The contact
details are set out as below:

Registered office: Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Principal place of 8/F., Tower 2,
business in Admiralty Centre,
Hong Kong: 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Postal address: 8/F., Tower 2,
Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel: 3845 5790
Fax: 2110 1907
Email: info@nannanlisted.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the Year, there were no change in the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The subsidiaries
of the Company are principally engaged in (i) mining and sales of
coal; (i) renewable energy solutions; and (jii) provision of information
technology outsourcing, consultancy and technical services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 74 to 222. The Board does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the Year, a discussion on
the Group’s future business development and principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group is facing are provided in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 11 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 25 of this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company promotes the culture of adhering to the high ethical
standards of business conduct and commits to complying with all
prevailing laws and regulations in all its operating regions. During the
Year, the Company did not aware of any material non-compliance or
breach of legislation.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set
out on pages 223 to 224 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company does
not adopt share option scheme.

CONVERTIBLE BOND
Details of the Convertible Bond issued by the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Convertible Bond” of this
Report of the Directors and Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the Year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that our management, employees,
customers and business partners (including suppliers, financial
institutions and academic bodies) are key stakeholders to the
Company’s success. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability
through engaging our management and employees, providing quality
products to our customers, collaborating with business partners to
deliver quality sustainable products and services and supporting our
community.

ENVIRONMENTAL, POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report within three months after the publication of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that all Directors and officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance is arranged to cover the directors and officers of the
Group against any potential costs and liabilities arising from claims
brought against them.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its HKSAR employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the MPF Scheme generally at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer
and the employee are subject to a maximum contribution of
HK$1,500 per month (for period after 1 June 2014) and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by
the government of the Mainland China. The subsidiaries contributed
certain percentage of basic salaries to the retirement benefits plan to
fund the benefits. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirements benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Contributions to the above retirement schemes vest immediately.
No forfeited contributions under the above retirement schemes is
available to reduce the contribution payable by the employer in future
years.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration policy of the Company is reviewed regularly, making
reference to market condition and performance of the Company and
individual staff (including the Directors). The remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of the Directors and management team are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board which are
detailed in the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors consider that those related party transactions disclosed
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, save as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Convertible Bond” under the Report of the Directors on page 53,
the Company did not have any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR EVENTS
The major events of the Group are provided in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 11 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus of approximately HK$128,013,000 may be distributed under
certain circumstances. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account with a balance of approximately HK$191,534,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 65.66% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 22.81%. Purchases of goods
and services from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
95.92% of the total purchases for the Year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 80.49%.

At no time during the Year, the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest
in the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Kwan Man Fai (Chairman & Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Wong Sze Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Man Hin Raymond

Chan Yiu Fai Youdey

Pak Wai Keung Martin

Alternate Director:
Wang Xiaoyao (alternate to Wang Xiangfei)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wang
Xiangfei and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai Youdey will retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 92 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wang
Xiaoyao shall hold office as an alternate Director to Mr. Wang Xiangfei
only until the next annual election of Directors, or if earlier, the date on
which Mr. Wang Xiangfei ceases to be a Director, or until Mr. Wang
Xiangfei removes him as an alternate Director. Mr. Wang Xiangfei, has
confirmed to re-appoint Mr. Wang Xiaoyao as his alternate Director.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 30 of this annual report.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to the
publication of the 2020/21 interim report of the Company are set out
below:

(1)  Subsequent to a review of Directors’ duties and responsibilities
in the Company as well as the market conditions, the executive
Directors’ emoluments were approved and revised by the Board
with effect from 1 April 2021. The monthly emolument of Mr.
Kwan Man Fai was changed to HK$127,893. The monthly
emolument of Mr. Wang Xiangfei was changed to HK$105,4009.
The monthly emolument of Mr. Wong Sze Wai was changed to
HK$105,409.

(2)  The service agreements of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Wong Man Hin Raymond and Mr. Chan
Yiu Fai Youdey, entered with the Company expired on 24 March
2021 and their service agreements had been extended for one
year commencing on 25 March 2021; and

(8) The service agreements of the executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwan Man Fai and Mr. Wang Xiangfei, entered with
the Company expired on 24 March 2021 and their service
agreements had been extended for one year commencing on
25 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly in any transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any its subsidiaries was party at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2#H4%

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions
Interests in shares of an associated corporation of the Company

EERFTETRAERRGKREEHE
Rz EER KR

R-F-_—F=ZA=+—H ARAEEK
TETBRABRARRSKEMBEE(EE
REZRHEED ([ E5 RBE GG ) FEXV
)z - HERD REST - BHEAE
RN AR RIRIEE 75 & B 5] 55 35215 A
FEZERMzEmlRR  REETR
A8+ PrEIRESTRIZA S TG A AR R
BERXPT 2 s ROAB AT ¢

"R
RE R EEEOE B (7 =

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

share capital of

Number the associated
of shares corporation

Name of interested LR EE
Name of Director Note  associated corporation Capacity BEEREZ B BITIRA
EEnA Mzt AEECEEEE g4 RHEE BROADL
Mr. Wang Xiangfei 1 New Bright International Interest of spouse 3,000 (L) 30%
FARSEE Development Limited Bio (B HEE 25

(“New Bright”)
EERRERER AR
(T8 ])

(L) denotes as long position

Note:

1. Ms. Lo Fong Hung is interested in 3,000 shares in New Bright, representing
30% of the issued share capital of New Bright, which currently owns
70% shareholding interests in CSIL Limited (“CSIL”). CSIL is the holding
company of Ascent Goal Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The shareholding interests of Ascent Goal in
the Company is set out in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” of this
annual report. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the husband of Ms. Lo Fong Hung and is
deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares of New Bright under the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2 4%

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, neither the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate at any time during the Year or at the end of the
Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Group has not adopted any share option scheme during the
Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2#H4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (continued)

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the

FERRARORERERD 2 ER

Kxa (&)

RARBRGBEBERD 2FE

Company
Approximate
percentage of
the total
number
of issued
shares of
Total number  the Company
Number of of shares (Note 6)
underlying and underlying EN|
Number of shares held shares held BRTRA
Name of Shareholders Notes  Nature of interest shares held Fr EROR BEBAEIL
RRER HE M BEntE FRRAME HERGEE ABEROLH (HzE6)
Ascent Goal 1,4 Beneficial owner 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
Zi2 ERBBA
CSIL 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
ZHER corporation
XEEE R
New Bright 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
=) corporation
XEEE R
Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan Veronica 3,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
st corporation
A s
Mr. Lev Leviev 5 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.13%
Lev LevieviE 4 BrEEA
5 Interests of controlled 65,808,000 - 65,808,000 8.60%

corporation
REEE  w
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2 4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the

Company (continued)
Notes:

1. Ascent Goal was directly interested in 569,616,589 shares and further
1,000,000,000 underlying shares which may be fully allotted and issued
if the Convertible Bond are converted at the conversion price of HK$0.20
per share. These 1,569,616,589 shares were held by Ascent Goal directly
as beneficial owner. It includes (i) interests in 569,616,589 shares and (ii)
the Convertible Bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying
shares.

2. Since Ascent Goal is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSIL which is beneficially
owned as to 70% by New Bright, the interests of Ascent Goal is deemed
to be the interests of CSIL and in turn the interests of New Bright under the
SFO.

3. Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan Veronica is deemed to have interests in the shares and
underlying shares through her 70% interests in New Bright.

4. The 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares under the
Convertible Bond represent approximately 74.42% and approximately
130.66% of the total number of issued shares of the Company respectively,
thus the total of 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares
represent approximately 205.08% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company. The conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bond will
not be exercised and the Company will not issue the conversion shares if,
immediately following the conversion, the Company would be unable to meet
the public float requirement under the Listing Rules.

5 For the shares held by Mr. Lev Leviev, of these shares, 36,866,000 shares
were held by Africa Israel Investments Ltd., a company controlled by Mr.
Lev Leviev through his approximately 48.13% interests in Africa Israel
Investments Ltd.; 28,942,000 shares were held by Memorand Management
(1998) Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev through his 100%
interests in Memorand Ltd. which holds 100% interest in Memorand
Management (1998) Ltd.; and 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Lev Leviev
directly.

6. The approximate percentage of shareholdings is based on 765,373,584
shares as at 31 March 2021, not the enlarged number of issued shares of the
Company upon full conversion of the Convertible Bond.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above), who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2#H4%

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
No Director had interests in a business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, over 25% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company is held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by Mazars CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Mazars
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Kwan Man Fai
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT R S

mazars

R E KR K

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 222, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

MAZARS CPA LIMITED
PERREDSHHERFERLT
42" Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EABFEEE 18 PIRES 428
Tel EBFE: (852) 2909 5555

Fax 8E: (852) 2810 0032

Email EE: info@mazars.hk

Website #81it: www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & EiiR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & & Ei iR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on coal mines related non-current

assets

Refer to Notes 2, 3, 4, 12, 13 and 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Key Audit Matter
HREXSE

EREZEE(E)
KIRAEBASE R B E ERE G

BRMGAUEHRENFE2 341213
%18 o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMzERNmEERRERSER

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held various coal
mines related non-current assets, including property,
plant and equipment, prepayments for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in
the People’s Republic of China with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$73,076,000, HK$4,102,000 and
HK$186,117,000 respectively.

The Group would, at least annually, perform impairment
assessment of coal mines related non-current assets
and the management engaged an independent
professional valuer (the “Valuer”) to assess the value-
in-use of coal mines related non-current assets for the
purpose of impairment assessment. The impairment
assessment involves the management’s estimates
in certain areas including the discount rate and the
underlying cash flow projection based on the future
market supply and demand conditions. Any changes in
the management’s estimates may result in significant
financial impact to the Group.

We have identified the impairment assessment on coal
mines related non-current assets as a key audit matter
due to significant estimates made by the management
in determining the recoverable amounts of the
corresponding cash-generating unit.

As set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management concluded that the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
higher than its carrying value and no impairment
provision was required for the current year.

Our key audit procedures included:

@

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer engaged by the management
to assess the value-in-use of coal mines related non-
current assets;

assessing and challenging the valuation
methodologies adopted in the valuation with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

assessing the suitability of the source data as the
basis for the valuation by comparing key financial
information in the source data with the financial
statements and operational forecast prepared by the
management;

assessing the key assumptions underlying the
operational forecasts by comparison with historical
financial performance together with market and other
externally available information;

assessing the discount rates applied in the cash flow
forecasts, by benchmarking against those of similar
companies in the markets;

re-performing the management’s calculations of
the sensitivity of the key assumptions adopted in
the cash flow forecasts and considering possible
management bias in the selection of assumptions;
and

evaluating the sensitivity of impairment assessment to
changes in key assumptions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & EiiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on coal mines related non-current

assets (continued)

Key Audit Matter
AREXEE

BREXEEE)
KIRAERASE R B & ER(E R4 ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & & Ei iR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill for information
technology outsourcing, consultancy and technical

services business (“IT Services business”)

Refer to Notes 2, 3, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
HAREXSE

EREZEE(E)

BB HRINE - B REMAREER
([ BB BRTE X5 1) 2 8 2 RERT
1

F2HRAMBERME2 - 3 4R14 -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMzERNNEE@RRERSEE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had goodwill of
approximately HK$5,814,000 in relating to the
acquisition of 80.86% equity interest in Harbour Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Harbour Group”) and the Harbour Group had
net assets value with carrying amount of approximately
HK$11,581,000.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
management engaged the Valuer to assess the
impairment on goodwill for IT Services business. The
impairment assessment involves the management’s
estimates in certain areas including the discount rate
and the underlying cash flow projection based on the
future market supply and demand conditions. Any
changes in the management’s estimates may result in
significant financial impact to the Group.

We have identified the impairment assessment on
goodwill for IT Services business as a key audit matter
due to significant estimates made by the management
in determining the recoverable amounts of the
corresponding cash-generating unit.

As set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management concluded that the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
lower than its carrying value and impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$14,503,000 arising
from IT Services business has been recognised for the
current reporting period.

Our key audit procedures included:

@)

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer engaged by the management
to assess the value-in-use of IT Services business
and related non-current assets;

assessing and challenging the valuation methodologies
adopted in the valuation with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

assessing the suitability of the source data as the
basis for the valuation by comparing key financial
information in the source data with the financial
statements and operational forecast prepared by the
management;

assessing the key assumptions underlying the
operational forecasts by comparison with the
financial performance together with market and other
externally available information;

assessing the discount rates applied in the cash flow
forecasts, by benchmarking against those of similar
companies in the markets;

re-performing the management’s calculations of
the sensitivity of the key assumptions adopted in
the cash flow forecasts and considering possible
management bias in the selection of assumptions;

considering the appropriateness on the recognition of
impairment loss on various classes of assets; and

evaluating the sensitivity of impairment assessment to
changes in key assumptions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & EiiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill for information
technology outsourcing, consultancy and technical
services business (“IT Services business”) (continued)

Key Audit Matter
HREXSEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMzERNAEERRELSER

R-ZE-—F=ZA=+—08 > BSE£EERESEER
BRAFIREWB AR (FHE 5 5E ])80.86%M% 1
B ZRAELAE5,814,0008 T LB FEEEGREE
#911,581,000/8 JTLH) & EE/FE ©

SRERETNE - BRECREMEMTHERARE
REEHzHERE - ARABRENESIREEBST
FEGE - BREMBAEXRUMERARETSEKERZ
HERERERAR - EREER 2 EARESAES
B BERBEREAUBTZE

AT BRI E B MR RIS B TR B ERHE &
ARELER RAREEERECHEASELE
iz 2 7] Bl Y & B E R E A fhRT

MINGE A MR 14 - BERERRACE
ABuzA Ol RENEREE  BERHEATR
THEEREMMERGEGELEREREBEY
14,503,000/ 7T °

BT EBBZIEF B

(@)

X EE TR A ERMETEE B RS %55
MR RS EEFAEBEBRZEE  EHEE
B

RE2EHRTGAERNZER  FFERE RN EER
PR ZEETTA

BRGRBBZ ERMBENERBRRREEE
B REFFRETHE - SHERBIBEDEAE
REELE

B BLL BB = R A TS R A BT 2 &
B ARSI T BB

Amig ERUAREREE - HAR S RETERPT
RARIRE

BEMETEREHReREMAMKAFERR
BREFEREZEREERRFETEEIRFE 2R
=
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & & Ei iR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (the

“Convertible Bond”)

Refer to in Notes 2, 3, 26 and 32(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

Key Audit Matter
BREXSHE

AREZEE(E)
EBEARATFEIRIEERANEE 2
emeEzRRES ([ UTBRRKRES]
2B

FERREEREMEHREN T2 3~ 265%32(b) °

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMzERNAEE@RRELRSEE

As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of the Convertible
Bond was approximately HK$171,283,000.

The management engaged the Valuer to estimate the
fair value of the Convertible Bond as at 31 March 2021.

We have identified the valuation of the Convertible
Bond as a key audit matter because the amounts
involved are significant and the valuation of the
Convertible Bond and the related disclosures require
market data and modelling techniques which rely on
a range of inputs. Where observable market data are
not available, or where instruments are not liquid,
estimates must be developed based on the most
appropriate source data. These estimates are subject
to significant judgement. In addition, we have identified
the disclosure of the fair value of the Convertible Bond
in the fair value hierarchy as an area of focus. Besides,
the recognition and measurement of the Convertible
Bond involved significant judgement and estimates by
the management.

RZE-—F=ZA=+—8 AR EHFZAFEY
A171,283,000/8 7T, °

EREDERGEMEN S —F=A=+—8H7
B ES 2 R EEITHE -

BB RBESZ BERBREZEE  RE
BAPEREARABRBES 2AELEREERE
MEHERERAEHABIER 2EZRNTT - HABR
TISHBEENE - T ARARBIYE - AIMER
BREE 2 KREBER G - RF[AXERHE
BRI BRib 29N - RAEHR A FERERARKE A%
BREHZ AFEBHRED © 1o - AHRRES 2 T
RAMFTEESERE ZEAHE RAEE -

Our key audit procedures included:

(@

evaluating the Valuer’'s competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

assessing and challenging the appropriateness of
the valuation methodology, and the reasonableness
on the key inputs used and assumptions by the
Valuer and agreed by the management including the
discount rate and share price; and

evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by the
Valuer in relation to the fluctuation on the discount
rate and share price of the Company’s shares.

BT T EEZIEFBYE

AHEEERD 2 FEE - e RFEIL -

AR RERGEETERTAE - MG ER A
REEBMABEZERGABE(BREMEA R LK
BIRBRENGERE &

Arfh B ERM AL IR & &
Bt BURREDNT ©

BERRIRGD ZBERE A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & EiiR &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s 2021 annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors of the Company in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

RIMEERA M BHRE L ERLTRERME
B RMR RS R AR ER R

ZEE G o

RELGAMBHRERME - RANEEIRE

BIEMER - FlERET - ZEEMENE

BEGA P RR B MERZBIET E

RZBEREEXNERE - KA REAERBERR

o ERRABMITHIE - MREMAR

Hit ERHFAEBERERRA - RAEREZ
B oty m - AL EETRE -

ESRZEREERABRGEY
BHREREAEZERE

BERARERAAARBRBGTASEM
ZERBUEREEYRBBRBIRD 2
RERBEEMTE 2HEEMBHRE - &
H BRRESRRAEGEMBHER AR
TEEBERRFFRERMER 2 EAHRMK
MFTME 2 AEEREE -

EREUZEMBHERE - BRRESEER
A BERERELE RS YEERIB
MNEBREFBEKLEAMZER  URER
REQEERGHER  FE BEL/RES
BER BEREBRIUFLELE  HRIEH
B2 ERITER -

BERZEemEY BEAREFETEE =B
SEZHMBHREBIEZEME -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & & Ei iR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

RBMRER G M BRREARZ
B

B2 B ERHERGRAMBRRESTF
BN FF S EE R MG 2 BAERRERIMER
FRERE  YHABRRRMER 26
HE - BPIREBE-NN\—FARERRES
MfkER MT(BE)HERMER I
EEMBEN - RATSRAREZARRAE
AT E AL E ESAETFEE -

BEFRE/RKFZRE - BTERIRE
BRBEAETT 2 ERAER —EAERRM
AR AR B3R - SHARFRAM ATl ARFF el sh
ARSI - {5 T2 B R EL (8 Bl s BE 4R PR R BE
FEGAVBMREBEMEL ZEER
E - RIBRASERIRIRR REAEIE

RIREESRBERETTER 2 BIET - &
PIERBRHE L RFBRIRELER © i
Jh

o BRI AFIE I AREE BB AR 1T 8 BUkR
EMBHRERFEEANBRRLZ R
B RATWAITERIEFURHEZF
Rk - ARERTE R LEE 2 EZR
& ERRMER ZER - BREGE
ARES N ER  RE - ERERE
R - SRERABEEZ £
BERBEBRBRBMFEMER 2 BB AHER
PR 2 e B R 86 R T B B2 E X8R
R 2 BB AR

o MEMERZMEBIAMEE UK
REEBRZERERF  BYES
4 BEEENREZEIRUERER -

. B EAREEFEBEHERZ
& T AR 5t RARBI R
A -

Annual Report 2020/21 4%



72

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & EiiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B\ & & Ei iR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 June 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang

Practising Certificate number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEaRaRkAMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_F-—F=A=+—HALEE

Revenue
Cost of services and goods sold

Gross profit
Other revenue

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and other operating expenses

Exchange gain/(loss), net
Finance costs
Supplemental resources fee

Change in fair value of contingent consideration receivables
Change in fair value and gain arising from modification of
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities

at FVPL
Impairment loss on goodwil

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expenses)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss, net of nil tax
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translation of the Company’s
financial statements to presentation currency
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange difference on translation of functional currency

to presentation currency

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to:

- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

Loss per share (expressed in
Hong Kong cents)
- Basic

- Diluted

4
B

PEROHER
TR EER
B3/ (B S
BER A

RREFER

Rl AR B ATERE

BEiET AL TEIEYE
BrnREyeuaty
TERES T ATERHR
e

BEAEEE

BEAIEA

FEtER/(B3)

FRE

A2 EEE  NREHE
TEEMNEERH A
BEXLFMBARREIE
RIELER

BRI BN EERR L

EH
BENRERAZIIEK
EXER
FREMEEBE
ERRABRAE
ATALEEFRESR :

—ARAEEA
—JFIRRE

ITALREFAZE
BEEE
—AREHBA
— RS

FRERAEILZS)
—EX
-#3

The notes on pages 81 to 222 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2021 2020
—E_-f ZT%F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz T#x T
5 130,521 127,989
(75,914) (75,775)

54,607 52,214

6 8,661 5,833
(642) (367)

(34,505) (49,411)

7,979 (4,672

7 (9,626) (6,952)
- (85,688)

15 (3,648) 3,009
26 (24,857) 71,443
14 (14,503) (3,831)
7 (16,534) (18,422)
8 14,326 (6,182)
(2,208) (24,604)

9,118 (4,856)

(10,392) (2,988)

(1,274) (7,844)

(3,482) (32,448)

(2,936) (25,306)

728 702

(2,208) (24,604)

(4,243) (33,089)

761 641

(3,482) (32,448)

10 (0.38) (3.31)
10 (0.38) (5.87)

5 E N 81 2222 H 2 MFEHEAK
BwKR 2z —#BD °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIARR R

As at 31 March 2021
R=-B=-—f=A=+-—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Prepayments for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Contingent consideration receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Mining right payables, current portion

Interest-bearing borrowings
Promissory notes

Lease liabilities
Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FET
IRBEE

VI - BE MR 12 109,011 96,856
m B 13 187,577 128,886
S 14 10,043 24,546

WHEMZE -« B K&

SEUNE O 18 4,102 1,093
BT IBEE 30 9,113 2,065
JEW S AR RAE 15 = 6,186

319,846 259,632
RBEE
FE 17 23,265 8,179
JE U & R % E A R U SR IR 18 12,998 16,389
ZIR BRI T A B 20 - 73,760
Re ke EEER 21 204,079 161,366
240,342 259,694
RBAE
FER &R E M R kI8 22 81,071 54,929
JE (S ERAERE SR IE

BNEAEE S 23 3,901 3,348
EEE 24 60,636 65,345
GRSt 28 2,400 2,400
HEaE 29 1,836 1,905
FEIHLIR 2,888 4,697

152,732 132,624
REEEFE 87,610 127,070
HEERRBAE 407,456 386,702

Annual Report 2020/21 4%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #& B &R &R
As at 31 March 2021
R-B=—%=HA=+—H

2021 2020
i 2 —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET

Capital and reserves B R
Share capital R 25 76,537 76,537
Reserves & 69,770 74,013

Equity attributable to owners of the RAREE AELER

Company 146,307 150,550
Non-controlling interests JEIEARRE RS 3,276 2,515
Total equity R 149,583 153,065
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Convertible bond designated as financial &7 A1z A FES BRI FE

liabilities at FVPL BahNREseRaEs

R ES 26 171,283 146,426
Provision for close down, restoration and  E8E] - 1828 RIRIBAK AN

environmental costs B 27 2,941 2,726

Mining right payables, non-current portion & ERAEREZRIE
FERNERER > 23 82,522 80,155
Promissory notes A ZEE 28 - 2,211
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 349 1,333
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEAE 30 778 786
257,873 233,637
407,456 386,702

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised — #ZE4GEHEREAN - —F A =-+=
for issue by the board of directors on 22 June 2021 and signed on its B &=t RIS - WHLTAL

behalf by REHEZ
Kwan Man Fai Wong Sze Wai
B el
Director Director
0 0

The notes on pages 81 to 222 form an integral part of these  Z|EH R FE1E2208 7 stk Z L im 4 bt
consolidated financial statements. Bk —8B7 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERREER
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-E--S=ZHA=+—HLFE

Atributable to owners of the Company

KAFRENER
Exchange Non-
Share Share Capita Statutory ranglation Specl  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium T6SENVe TeSENes BSEVe T6SEIVe [osses Totd interests equity
10 RipiaE s b ] B HRE  ZHER B8 HihER s
Noesd)  Noeel)  Moesa)  NoeZal)  Nie2sa)
(Fsan) (o) (Wsosam)  (Fesan)  (Rfesml)
HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS1000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Thn TEn T Thn Thn Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
Asat 1 Apr 2019 W-5-NERA-A 16537 191,534 14882 22,986 919 2,143 (158,633) 183,639 1,044 184,083
Loss for the year iy . = = = = = (25,306 (25,306 10 (24,604)
Total other comprehensiveloss:  EH2EEBEE:
I thet wilnot e rcssfed EET SRR EE
foproft orloss
Evchange diference on transeionof - #EADTEIB R A
the Compeny's francilstatements ~ EH B 28
o presentation currency - - - - (4,656) - - (4.856) - (4.856)
e that maybe recassied subsecuenty 4T EFHER S,
{oproftorioss b
Bichange difeence on transkfion of ~ BET R A2 R,
functional curency topresentation 3 £8
ety - - - - e - - B oy
Othercomprehersieloss fortheyear ~ EMEH2AEE - - - - 1783 - - 1789 ) 784
Tota comprehensive ossfor e year ~ ER2EEEES = - - - (7,789 - (25,306) (33,089) 41 (32.448)
Transactions with owners: FREARGRG
Appropriation of statutory reserve EREIAR - - - 71 - - 751) - - -
Appropriaton for maintenenceend  EEREEEEZ9F
production funds - - - 16,534 - = (16534 = = =
Utlsaion of maintenance and BEREEERZOR
producton funds - - - (16,534) - - 16,534 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling ST ke
nterests - - - - - - - - (1,010 (1,010
- - - 75t . - ) . aoln 100
Changes in ownership nfests FREERES
Non-contoling inerests arsng from ~~ RERABEEA3HAR
busiess combination 2 - - - - - - - - 1840 1840
As at 31 March 2020 RCE-EE=A=1-H 16537 191,53 14882 B137 1401 183 (184,690) 150,550 2515 183,065

The notes on pages 81 to 222 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

SIEN EB1E222H 2 M E B Z AR A M
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &HREE=E R
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_E-_—S=A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROTERARS

Exchange Non-
Share Share Capital Stafutory ~ translation Special  Accumulated controlling Total

capital premium resenve TESeNves resene resene losses interests equity
ied BiE LY HERf EfiRf GhRE  RiER F FiRER i
(Note25(a))) ~ Mote25(alil)  (Note25falfil)  (Note25fa)  (Note 25(a)fv)
(We2o)  (sosam)  (skos(ain) (ko) (REE25(a)
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tn Thn Thn Tn Tin Thn Thn Thn Tin Tn

Asat 1 April 2020 A-3-%EMA-A 16537 191,534 14,882 PANKTS 1407 a0 (184690 10,550 2515 153,065

Lossfor the year Efgig - S = s = (2936) (29%) 28 (2208)

Total other comprehensive loss: ~ EH2EFESE

lemtatuil ot bereckssiedts  FEEHFEZER
proft orloss BA:

Echergedfeencontansaionol ~ AEALFERERAE
teComparys ancilsitements  2J|SE BN EE

o presentation curency - - - - 9,118 - - 9118 - 9,118
e thet maybe recassied subseuenty  ZATE EFEEERL
toproftorloss Ef

Bxchange dference on tranglion o~ #E s ERA27IE% Y
functional curency to presentation ~ [EYEE

ey - - - - (e - - 04y B0
Other comprehensiie oss fortheyear  EREMAEEE - - - - (t,30) = - (t,307) k) (1.274)
Total comprehensie oss for heyer A2 A LS - - - - (1,307) = (2.936) (4243) 161 (3482
Transactions with owners: HREAET2RS
Appropriaton of statutoryresene. S EEEZAE - - - 107 - = (1072 = = =
Appropration for mantenanceand  £BREEESIHE
production funds - - - 9997 - - 9,997) - - -
Utlsaton of maintenance and EBREEELER
production funds - - - 9,997) - - 9997 - - -
- - - 1072 - - m - - -
As at 31 March 2021 RoB--EZf=1-A 16,587 191,534 14,682 24,809 100 718 (188,698) 146,307 3216 149,583

The notes on pages 81 to 222 form an integral part of these &R ES81 £ 2228 7 M sFHERK
consolidated financial statements. kR — 2o o

;g’l:
g
&
o
{uni}
&t

ST

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/_\éiﬁaﬁiﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-—f=A=+—HALEE

2021 2020
ZB--f —_T_TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(i3 THET FAT
Operating activities R
Loss before tax BRA AR (16,534) (18,422)
Adjustments for: B THIIR R (ERE
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERERENE
equipment 10,112 7,373
Amortisation of intangible assets which was EREERHEGIA RS
included in “cost of services and goods ARTs R E A ])
sold” 6,687 2,956
Change in fair value of contingent RN AR EZ A TAE
consideration receivables ) 3,648 (3,009)
Change in fair value and gain arising AR A AT EYIRYT
from modification of convertible bond ERHEARESRAR
designated as financial liabilities at FVPL Z A ES 2 AFE
e EE 2 s 24,857 (71,443)
Charge of loss allowances of trade FENE T IERE < 2
receivables 20 7
Rent concessions HEER (20) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BENEEZ
equipment BB - 170
Impairment loss on goodwil EHERERBE 14,503 3,831
Exchange differences, net fE 5 ZEEFE (19,410) 14,344
Finance costs BERA 9,626 6,952
Interest income FEHA (5,824) (3,185)
Operating cash flow before movementsin  &EESEFHF < KLEHERE
working capital 27,665 (60,426)
Changes in working capital: BEEGE)
Security deposits RiERe = 5,232
Inventories FE (14,886) (721)
Trade and other receivables R B R E A FE UK IE 4,232 6,910
Trade and other payables [ENERREMIERTIR 11,220 (8,573)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations R % FE,/(FrR)BHE 28,231 (57,578)
Interest paid BERFE (2,334) (4,433)
Income tax refunded/(paid) BiRiE/(BR)ETEH 5,305 (5,141)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities &% &8/ (FTH) B4 F8E 31,202 (67,152)
Investing activities REE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WENSE (13,307) (24,709)
Additions to intangible assets NEBVAE (54,037) (39,838)
Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant Wi #1% - BE RE#E 2
and equipment TBIFUA (4,731) (533)
Net outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEMB AR F R 34 = (24,494)
Redemption of financial assets measured BOEAFEYRTERER
at FVPL BEEREE > 57,247
Interest received BHFLE 5,824 3,185
Net cash used in investing activities RELEFAESSE (66,251) (29,142)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS SR8 HERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

Financing activities

Inception of interest-bearing borrowings
Release of restricted bank balances
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Repayment of promissory note

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Effect on foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Short term deposit with an original maturity of
three months or less

Cash on hand

BMEEH
STREEEN

FRBR SR HISRTT 4 58
BETEEE
BEHEAE
BEALER

MEXBAE /(MR RLFR

ReRASEEEAEM
(R ) F8

FAZRERHAEEEER

FRZASRAEEEER

RERRESEEERE ZERDIN

RITESR LIRS

REIBAA=EAZARZ
%_L/HQW?TA

FHERSE

The notes on pages 81 to 222 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT FAT
57,661 -
77,266 -
(67,041) (3,709)
(2,154) (1,422)
(213) (2.400)
65,519 (7,531)
30,470 (103,825)
161,366 278,814
12,243 (13,629)
204,079 161,366
173,022 95,746
30,749 64,365
308 1,255
204,079 161,366
FIE N E81 £ 2228 2 WK ZELRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-—f=A=+—HALEE

GENERAL

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its holding
company is Ascent Goal Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with
limited liability and its ultimate holding company is New Bright
International Development Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use. Its ultimate
controlling party is Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The Company is an investment holding company and the
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in (i)
mining and sales of coal; (i) renewable energy solutions; and
(iii) information technology (“IT”) outsourcing, consultancy and
technical services (together referred to “IT Services”). The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of compliance (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2020 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year as set out below.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs:

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the
market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the
replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark). In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an
acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees
to account for such rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. It applies to Covid-19-related rent concessions
that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022.
The amendments do not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application
permitted. The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments in the current year. In accordance with the
transition provisions therein, the amendments have been
applied retrospectively by the Group recognising the cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to
the opening balance of accumulated losses and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated.

The early adoption of the amendments resulted in the
recognition of rent concessions amounted to approximately
HK$20,000 as “Other revenue” in the profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2021 as disclosed in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
the contingent consideration receivables, which was classified
as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”"), and the convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at FVPL, which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All'intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses and
profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.

TEETEHRE)

Basis of consolidation (continued) mEREEE(E)
Allocation of total comprehensive income T EE E W AR

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest determined at the date when
control is lost and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the parent had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary
are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Incomes
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income where appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If some or all of
the goodwill allocated to a CGU was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period, that unit shall
be tested for impairment before the end of the current annual
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
and depreciated separately.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses and is amortised based on the units of
production method utilising only recoverable coal reserves as
the depletion base.

Exploration right

Exploration right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Cost of the exploration right is
transferred to mining right upon the government’s approval
of the mining license and the commencement of the mining
activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Stripping activity assets

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either the
production of inventory or improved access to the ore to be
mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form
of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping
costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those
inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access
to ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as a
stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition to
intangible assets if the following criteria are met:

(@) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved
access to the ore body) associated with the stripping
activity will flow to the entity;

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for
which access has been improved; and

(c) the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with
that component can be measured reliably.

Other production stripping costs are charged to the profit or
loss as operating costs as they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Stripping activity assets (continued)

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping activity that improves access to the identified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production
measure is used to allocate the production stripping costs
between the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset. This production measure is calculated for the identified
component of the ore body (i.e. coal reserves) and is used
as a benchmark to identify the extent to which the additional
activity of creating a future benefit has taken place. The Group
uses the expected volume of waste extracted compared with
the actual volume for a given volume of ore production of each
component.

The stripping activity asset is subsequently amortised using
the unit of production method over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more accessible as a
result of the stripping activity. The stripping activity asset is then
carried at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses.

Renewable energy service contract

Renewable energy service contract is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 25 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial
asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially
measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”);
(i) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or (iv) measured at
FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing them, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first annual
reporting period following the change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances and
cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

@

Financial assets measured at FVPL

These investments include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL, financial assets resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial
assets that are otherwise required to be measured at
FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant
gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does
not include any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets. Dividend or interest income is presented
separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is
assessed for classification.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include the contingent consideration receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction
costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the financial
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing borrowings, promissory notes, lease liabilities,
mining right payables and convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at FVPL. All financial liabilities, except for
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless
the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for
trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at FVPL and financial liabilities that are contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain
and loss recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion of fair
value changes of financial liabilities designated at FVPL that are
attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities which is presented
in other comprehensive income unless such treatment would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The
amounts presented in other comprehensive income shall not be
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. Before the adoption
of HKFRS 9, all the fair value gain or loss of financial liabilities at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)

(i)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in
the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not
a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL
only if:

(i)

(i)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or financial
assets and financial liabilities that are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives, in which
case the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a
financial liability at FVPL, except where the embedded
derivatives do not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded derivatives is
prohibited.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The convertible bond issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivative) is designated as financial liabilities at
FVPL on initial recognition. Subsequent to the initial recognition,
the entire convertible bond is measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for the changes in fair value attributable
to the changes of the credit risk of the liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVPL.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that is not
an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host, and the hybrid contract is not measured at
FVPL.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

TEETEHRE)

BT AEE)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under BB IR EERFONEBT 22 ME
HKFRS 9 ERAMER RE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost which the impairment requirements apply in
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accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments Eﬂéj)ﬁﬁw}gﬁa b = I N v = 1] v
as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures BREEIN NERELH  WEE
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to BEEZEREBVIBIERIARBEIL
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has i HIJZIKE@&m—r AT HITEHAE &
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk RS ETEZeMEEZBER
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial B HemEEEERR B VIRTER

recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that PASRI AR Z 1 hn - B AL BIRAZS

financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.
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For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the TEeRMEEMS  EEEEAZTER
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to BEAEOERNE LRSS RElHE ‘&%i\
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity FWERR e REZBNE=EMNRE

expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the past due information or
other credit risk characteristics.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria:

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
except for which the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under

HKFRS 9 (continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

()  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash
flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts (if
any) that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_Z-_—H=A=1+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
Nature of goods or services

The nature of goods or services provided by the Group is as
follows:

(i) sales of coals;

(i)  renewable energy solutions;

(i)  sales of IT hardware products;

(iv)  IT outsourcing services; and

(v)  IT consultancy and technical services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)
Identification of performance obligations
At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identify
as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(@)

(b)

a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct; or

a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)

the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service
is capable of being distinct); and

the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or
service is distinct within the context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sales of coals and IT hardware products are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income from renewable energy solutions, IT outsourcing
services and IT consultancy and technical services are
recognised over time when services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the output method (i.e. based on
the direct measurements of the value to the customer of the
goods or services transferred to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because the method provides a faithful depiction of
the Group’s performance, or the input method (i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date as compared
to the estimated total inputs) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation because
there is a direct relationship between the Group’s inputs and the
transfer of control of goods or services to the customers, where
appropriate, and reliable information is available to the Group to
apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation.

The following output methods are applied:

- Renewable energy solutions: unit of energy produced

- IT consultancy and technical services: appraisal of
progress achieved

The principal input applied in the input method is:

- IT outsourcing services: usage of staff hours by customer

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component
(i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised consideration for the effects of the
time value of money. The effect of the significant financing
component is recognised as an interest income or interest
expense separately from revenue from contracts with
customers in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components (continueq)
The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract
inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate
implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the
cash selling price of the goods or services to the amount paid
in advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the
Group’s borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the
effect of the significant financing component if the period of
financing is one year or less.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract
is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)
For the Group’s businesses, it is common for the Group to
receive from the customer the whole or some of the contractual
payments before the services are completed or when the goods
are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such
transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until it
is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant
financing components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

The Group’s billing to its customers which are largely in line with
the timing of revenue recognition and no significant contract
assets are recognised. Contract liabilities in relation to advances
from customers are recognised under “Trade and other
payables”.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) for the convenience of
the shareholders as the Company is listed in Hong Kong. The
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)
The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at the
end of each reporting period;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rate;

o all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity;

o on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised;

° on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation and are not reclassified
to profit or loss; and

° On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount
of exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

— investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(continued)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use (“VIU”). In assessing VIU,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or VIU (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior periods. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the period in which the
reversals are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

TEETEHRE)

EERA

B  ERIEEFTERFHEA A
BRARERERHECEERZKAH
ZERERRNGERMCRREEKEAZ
— &b o AR RN EE A HRE
B e

RAEBREEKRE— BN ZEEX
ZKEFH%%EZEFJSE%E ELEE
RAREEERABE A& HHE
BRZEBETEETHRERBBER
ft- BEEEEREERARTERA RN
HEMPT BRI DEFB TS LE
HEKE - BERNESEFHIFL
BARAE -

BERIAREE
EASERBATEHRAAEATRME
EEE - RATGEAUEER=RLE 2
FABTEBHETEZ e EE
R B TmEREREEIBE
BARAREE WEB HHEEEEE
X BEDEREEFBRTETCIEZ
IREFIER o

AR BEE B BN SRR AR S
BRI SEfGE - MIEERBEARA
BfE - BRIFEN IR Z AT R 1R
1K - ATRE IR 2 BERERURAR B
ELRERLE-HAZHEN - NKE
REARE - RIFEENRR LA
BEMEIRIE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence caused
by the resettlement of the land at the mining sites. Depending
on the circumstances, the Group may relocate inhabitants from
the mining sites prior to conducting mining activities or the
Group may compensate the inhabitants for losses or damage
from close down and land subsidence after the sites have been
mined. The Group may also be required to make payments for
restoration, rehabilitation or environmental protection of the land
after the sites have been mined.

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling and
demoalition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Close down and restoration
costs are provided in the accounting period when the obligation
arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs
during mine development or during the production phase,
based on the net present value of estimated future costs. The
cost is capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether
the rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of
the operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
other than that is included in the cost of inventories is amortised
over the life of the operation and the increase in the net present
value of the provision is included in borrowing costs or other
items where appropriate.

Where there is a change in the expected decommissioning
and restoration costs, an adjustment is recorded against the
carrying value of the provision and related assets, and the effect
is then recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a prospective basis
over the remaining life of the operation except for the portion
included in the cost of inventories. Provisions for close down
and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations
which are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of the reporting
period to reflect changes in conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(@  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d)  anestimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantiing
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

TEETEHRE)

HE

AEERENERRIEENREE R
FBEEHE - MENRBRIKREMLS
T — R ARSI 2 B 5 & EE R
BN RIZAHRHESRBEHE -

EBRA
ArEEHECHAENREEETNER
BERHRE - ZSHEHBNHEEN
FIRESEINHERRNER AR

AEECEERTUEHEEARIE O+ D
BE L IFHEMAKE Y - YHRERE
AERER D NI AE R IE T S AR B
ARIEREBEEAKID -

AEEKHES T EHEEKID
BRER-BHEERE AR - A5E
BaNRERESEK B BB
EBRELESEESHEEKED

REBERELBEBEXIED 2 BN
BRBIENEZ A NEB D RBIEK
Mo EREZ D -

AEBRBERKBREREREE
ENEEAE -

ERREEETRRAETIRE
HAp Bk

(@) MHEREMIRESE

(o) AR B2 BIATERERIAE
ERNF BERRKEREEE
H;

€ AEBEEEHTRIBEEK
VN3

(@) AEEFEEBHREBEEE - I
BIEREEMESH R IERE
EREEME R MRFARE
REEAS T E LAV BRI - BRIE
ZERAREEFEMESL °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives
of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of
the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term
or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group
will exercise a purchase option — in which case depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of
the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the
incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the
in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating
interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group
remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)
When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification:

(@)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate over
the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of
the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided
in Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021 and does not assess
whether eligible rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic are lease modification.
The Group accounts for any change in lease payments resulting
from the rent concession the same way it would account for
the change applying HKFRS 16 if the change were not a lease
modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic
and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to
all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics and in
similar circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as expense
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group’s entities established in
Hong Kong in an independently administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “Mainland China”), the employees of
the Group’s entities established in the Mainland China are
required to participate in defined contribution retirement
plans organised by local governments. Contributions to those
plans are expensed as incurred and other than these monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits to its employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payment

Share options granted by the Company to directors and
employees of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment (continued)

Share options granted by the Company to directors and
employees of the Company (continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can
be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(ii
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the holding company of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)()) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a holding
company of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to holding company of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s executive
directors for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period.

Reserve estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
coal reserves. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological, technical
and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production
techniques, recovery rates, production costs, transport costs,
commodity demand and commodity prices. Estimating the
quantity and/or grade of reserves requires the size, shape and
depth of ore bodies or fields to be determined by analysing
geological data such as drilling samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgements and
calculations to interpret the data.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Reserve estimates (continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional
geological data is generated during the course of operations,
estimates of reserves may change from period to period.
Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s financial
results and financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:

(i) asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in
estimated future cash flows.

(i)  depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
the profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where the
useful economic lives of assets change.

(i)  decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv)  the carrying value of deferred tax may change as a result
of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Carrying value of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses,
where appropriate. These carrying amounts are reviewed
for impairment whenever internal and external sources of
information indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and VIU. In estimating the
recoverable amounts of assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with the non-current
assets and discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will
need to be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s
results of operations or financial position. The impairment
assessment of the Group’s mining right and stripping activity
assets included in intangible assets is further discussed below.

Impairment of mining right and stripping activity assets
The Group assesses each CGU annually to determine whether
any indication of impairment exists, which included internal and
external sources of information for mining right and facts and
circumstances for stripping activity assets. Where an indicator
of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount is made, which is considered to be the higher of the
fair value less costs of disposal and VIU. These assessments
require the use of estimates and assumptions such as long-term
commodity prices, discount rates, future capital requirements,
exploration potential and operating performance. It is difficult
to precisely estimate fair value because quoted market prices
are not readily available. In determining the VIU, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which require significant judgement and estimates such
as sale volume, selling price and amount of operating costs. The
management has assessed its CGU as being an individual mine
site, which is the lowest level for which cash flows are largely
independent of other assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the VIU of the
CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the VIU
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected cash
flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Details of the estimates used to calculate the recoverable
amount are given in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and other receivables by using various inputs
and assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss
rate. The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which
is based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables. Details of the key assumption and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The Group’s contingent consideration receivables and
convertible bond are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the Company have to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 15 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
various assets and liabilities.

Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

The directors of the Company determine the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. The management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Write down of inventories

The directors of the Company review the ageing analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The directors of the Company estimate the net realisable
value for consumables and coals based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a item-by-item basis at the end of
each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs is determined by the directors of the Company based
on their past experience and best estimation of future
expenditures, after taking into account existing relevant in the
Mainland China regulations. However, in so far as the effect
on the land and the environment from current mining activities
becomes apparent in future periods, the estimate of the
associated costs may be subject to revision from time to time.

Recognition of stripping activity assets

The recognition of stripping activity assets is determined by the
directors of the Company based on their past experience and
best estimation of future benefits associated with the stripping
activities incurred. The estimate may be influenced by changes
of actual geological conditions, coal reserves and future
production plan.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets which arose
from deductible temporary differences. The realisability of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether it is probable
that future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available against which the assets can be utilised. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits or taxable temporary
differences generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit
or loss for the period in which such reversal takes place.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being identified as the chief operating decision
makers (“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services rendered. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are
as follows:

(1) Coal mining business segment: mining and sales of coals
in the Mainland Ching;

(2) Renewable energy business segment: service income
from renewable energy solutions in Malaysia; and

(8) IT Services business segment: IT consultancy and
technical services (including sales of IT hardware
products) and IT outsourcing services in Hong Kong,
Malaysia, Singapore and the United Kingdom (the “UK?”).

Segment revenue and results

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from (i) coal
mining business; (i) renewable energy business; and (iii) IT
Services business.

Segment results, which are the measures reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance, represent the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation of
changes in fair value of contingent consideration receivables
and convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL
and exchange gain or loss.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill, prepayment for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets, contingent
consideration receivables, inventories, trade and other
receivables, restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents. All assets are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities include convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at FVPL, trade and other payables, interest-
bearing borrowings, promissory notes, lease liabilities, mining
right payables, tax payables, provision for close down,
restoration and environmental costs and deferred tax liabilities.
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

In addition, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s place of domicile is Hong Kong, where the central
management and control is located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER(HE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEUNEE R A ()

The followings are analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

AT RAKE R HREREED K

by reportable and operating segments:

mREEDT -

Coal Renewable IT
mining energy Services
business business business Unallocated Total
EEHR EfRE
BREEK £% PR R OB @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL TEL TEL THEL
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E--F
ZA=t+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers and R BINER P 2 Wz K
reportable segment revenue RESEkE 100,688 1,285 28,548 - 130,521
Gross profit E7 46,775 768 7,064 - 54,607
Seling and distriution expenses  $EERDHER (642) - - - (642)
Segment results DEEE 46,133 768 7,064 - 53,965
Other revenue Hipdezs 5,876 517 2,236 32 8,661
Administrative and other operating TR AMELER
expenses (13,048) (660) (5,634 (15163  (34,505)
Finance costs BEKA (9,136) = (221) (269) (9,626)
Change in fair value of contingent ~ JEEAR Bz ATFEED
consideration receivables - - - (3,648) (3,648)
Change in fair value of convertible 5 AR TAEFIBR I
bond designated as financial ERENEEZSBAEY
liabilities at FVPL akER AT EE = = = (24,857) (24,857)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE - - (14,503) - (14,503)
Exchange gain, net ey - - - 7,979 7,979
Profit/(Loss) before tax BEATER/ (BiB) 29,825 625 (11,058  (35926)  (16,534)
Income tax creit FriEBiEs 14,288 11 27 - 14,326
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEREF/(BE) 44,113 636 (11,031) (35,926) (2,208)
Additional segment information: A7 EER -
Amortisation B 6,621 66 - - 6,687
Depregciation e 7,526 413 1,010 1,163 10,112
Additions to property, plant and RENE  BEREE
equipment 5178 9,874 788 - 15,840
Additions to intangible assets NEEVEE 54,037 - - - 54,037
Charge of loss allowance of trade  FEEFUE BB 2 Uit
receivables - 6 14 - 20
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. DEWER(HE)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—H=A=1+—HILLEE

Segment revenue and results (continued) TENE R EE (E)
Coal  Renewable T
mining energy Services
business business business  Unallocated Total
EARR BB
BEER 5% RBEH% N @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-BoBR
ZRZt+-BLEE
Revenue from external customers and R B4MFEP 7 iz Kk
reportable segment revenue Bk Ep e 73,910 775 53,304 - 127,989
Gross profit EH 42,145 469 9,600 - 52,214
Seling and distrioution expenses &R D HER (367) - - - (367)
Segment results DEEE 44,778 469 9,600 = 51,847
Other revenue Hip iz 4,215 = 15 1,603 5,833
Administrative and other operating TR G LB H
expenses (21,559) (1,005) (4,889) (21,958) (49,411)
Finance costs BARAK (6,228) = (349) (375) (6,952)
Supplemental resources fee BRERER (85,688) - - - (85,688)
Change in fair valug of contingent ~ EM sk AR B2 ATEE
consideration receivables - - = 3,009 3,009
Change in fair value and gain arising ~ :BZ4ETE AR AT EFIRT
from modification of convertiole EEENERE SREEY
bond designated as financial R ESF D TEED R
liabilities at FVPL Efzha = = - 71,443 71,443
Impairment loss on goodwil HEREEE = S (3,831) = (3,831)
Exchange loss, net & 3 B 5 - - - (4,672) (4,672)
(Loss)/Profit before tax BEAI(EE),/ %5 (67,482) (536) 546 49,050 (18,422)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FER(ER) /e (5,764) 23 (441) = (6,182)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(ER),/ &7 (73,246) (513) 105 49,050 (24,604)
Adcltional segment information: A7 EER
Amortisation BiH 2,890 66 - - 2,956
Depreciation e 5,215 229 789 1,140 7,373
Additions to property, plant and RENE  BERLE
equipment 32,634 18,937 1,479 870 53,920
Additions to intangible assets NERNEE 116,115 - - - 116,115
Charge of loss allowance of trade  EEFEBEE 2 T H
receivables - - 7 - 7

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
The followings are analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities T AAEBAIREREEDHHE
by reportable and operating segments: EREEIN
Coal Renewable IT
mining energy Services
business business business Unallocated Total
ABERE  EARE
REES % RBEK ROE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL
As at 31 March 2021 R-B--£=A=+-H
Property, plant and equipment M  BE MR 73,076 33,690 1,058 1,187 109,011
Intangible assets M EE 186,117 1,460 - - 187,577
Goodwil EES = 4,229 5,814 - 10,043
Other assets Hin & 197,474 1,642 13,789 40,652 253,557
Total assets BEE 456,667 41,021 20,661 41,839 560,188
Convertible bond designated as ~ $87E AIRATFEFIEEL £
financial liabilities at FVPL BRNEE 2RaE
akES - - - (171,283)  (171,283)
Promissory notes R EE - - - (2,400) (2,400)
Mining right payables R RS IR (86,423) - - - (86,423)
Other liabilities HinaE (144,375) (773) (3,393) (1,958)  (150,499)
Total liabilities marE (230,798) (773) (3,393)  (175,641)  (410,605)
As at 31 March 2020 N_E-TF=A=1+—H
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 69,990 23,244 1,280 2,342 96,856
Intangible assets BREE 127,360 1,526 - - 128,886
Goodwill S — 4,229 20,317 — 24,546
Contingent consideration U HARE
receivables - - - 6,186 6,186
Other assets Hin & 171,618 6,638 12,850 71746 262,852
Total assets BEE 368,968 35,637 34,447 80,274 519,326
Convertible bond designated as ~ #5F ARAFENRIE
financial liabilities at FVPL BRAEEeRERL
R ES - - - (146,426)  (146,426)
Promissory notes AHEE = - - (4,611) (4,611)
Mining right payables JENEIEERIR (83,503) = = = (83,503)
Other liabiltties HiaE (110,024) (9,510) (6,133) 6,054)  (131,721)
Total liabiliies mefE (193,527) (9,510) (6,133  (157,001)  (366,261)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
goodwill and prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (“Specified Non-current Assets”). The geographical
location of the revenue is presented based on the location of
the customers. The geographical location of the Specified Non-
current Assets is presented based on the physical location of
the assets.

Location of revenue
Revenue from external customers

DEER ()
HIEER

TR\ EERBINEEFP 2 Wk
RAEREYE - BFER&H - B
BE BERUEBYDE  BELR
ZIRNFAE(TEEFRBDEE ) 12
B ZEH - Wt IR BIRE P AT
EHET - HEIFRDEEWIRM
ERBECERUEZS -

Wi v &
KESINBEF 2 Mas

Year ended 31 March
BZ=B=1+—HILEE

The Mainland China R A
Hong Kong BA
Malaysia =P it
Singapore TN
The UK HE

Location of the Specified Non-current Assets

The Mainland China R B (A 3,
Hong Kong HE
Malaysia B3k pgan

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

2021 2020
= i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
100,688 73,910
19,549 32,537
3,101 14,160
4,576 3,891
2,607 3,491
130,521 127,989
EEHRBEENE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB—F —E-EF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
263,295 198,442
13,748 29,695
33,690 23,244
310,733 251,381




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER(E)
Information about major customers EBEFrEREFZER
Revenue from external customers contributing 10% or more of 1HBILZE10% 3k DA _ERSNER R P Uk
the total revenue is as follow: WA

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$000
THERT FHET

Customer A and its affiliated companies K 8 & AR IRFE 150 20,2

from IT Services business segment BEPEANMEEE AT * 22,112
Customer B from coal mining business 3k BETE%5 532 X B

segment 29,773 *
Customer C from coal mining business 3K B BIE%EH &2 5 PC

segment 19,124 *

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the * BE-_T-_—FRKR=-T=-_TF=H

total revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 March 2021 =+—BIEFE - ARG EEARE
and 2020. @%@ukﬁ%ﬂo%ﬁb{i °©
5. REVENUE 5 Wz
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers &4 81 75 £ & 2 Bl 551558
within HKFRS 15 REABPE K2 W=
Coal mining business RIEER
— Sales of coals —SHER X 100,688 73,910
Renewable energy business AT EERERER
— Service income from renewable — A BARERERAEY
energy solutions RRFEUA 1,285 775
IT Services business BERMBREER
— Sales of IT hardware products —HEEMBEEGER 5,424 13,893
— IT outsourcing services —EMEHRINBARTE 18,187 32,028
- IT consultancy and technical services — & sl BHE: 54 58 K B0 AR 7% 4,937 7,383
28,548 53,304
130,521 127,989
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)
In addition to the information shown in segment disclosures,
the revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 is
disaggregated as follows:

Wz (&)

B BIREMIIRZERSIN - BAEY
BREENFIGHRREFTFEL 2K
SBATHADHF

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT

Timing of revenue recognition: W 5 HERR RS R -

- at a point in time - RE—FEE

Sales of coals SHE LR

Sales of IT hardware products HEAMEHREGEM

- over time —HERFREER

Service income from renewable energy A A §EIRFRRITE 2
solutions BRASUA

IT outsourcing services BRI AR TS

IT consultancy and technical services & s RHE a8 0 & 7 T AR

6. OTHER REVENUE

100,688 73,910
5,424 13,893
106,112 87,803
1,285 775
18,187 32,028
4,937 7,383
24,409 40,186
130,521 127,989

Guaranteed profit compensation REE =M EE
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRZ A BUA
Sales of coal gangue SHERTA
Government grants (Remark) BT 2B (fE5F)
Rent concessions HEER

Others HAtb

Remark: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company received
government grants from the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
a Employment Support Scheme as time-limited financial support
to employers to retain employees who may otherwise be made
redundant. The scheme provides two tranches of subsidies to
eligible employers. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

2020

—E-FF

HK$’000

FET

22 435
5,824 3,185
= 2,041
2,403 =
20 =
392 172
8,661 5,833

#E: BE_ZE-_—H=RA=+—HI*#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRERIEE
This is stated at after charging/(crediting): kR (GEA) TEI &AL 2

2021 2020
—B-—F —ET_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Finance costs 5= {24
Interest on interest-bearing borrowings s EEE R &8 2,185 4,251
Interest on mining right payables FERHERIERE R IE R & 7,103 2,272
Interest on promissory notes AN EER R 189 247
Interest on lease liabilities HEBRENE 149 182
9,626 6,952
Staff costs B I
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BTN (ESME (M)
remuneration (Note 11)) BRAN)
Basic salaries, allowance and other EAXF© - R R E A A
short-term employee benefits EEEF 31,756 48,725
Contributions to defined contribution — FEXEMHFGR KT 215k
retirement plan 1,650 1,884
33,406 50,609
Other items Hitig g
Amortisation of intangible assets EREAEEHEN BEERBE R
(charged to “cost of services and ERAA P HER)
goods sold”) 6,687 2,956
Auditor’s remuneration ZEAN N &
- audit services — %R 1,038 1,310
— other services — H A AR 510 360
1,548 1,670
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAKR 58,963 43,553
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WE MR IE MR
equipment and right-of-use assets BENE 10,112 7,373
Charge of loss allowance of trade e E R EBREEZ T
receivables 20 7
Exchange gain on financial BATEY BRI E B R NEE Y
liabilities at FVPL, net TRA EE RS FRE (11,830) (6,802)
Other exchange loss, net HAbbE H BT 3,851 11,474
Expenses recognised payments under 55 ATH €~ FAERAI B X
short-term leases 1,041 1,756
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥E - WE MEEZER
equipment = 170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

8.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES 8. F3Bi(ESRE) BX
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Income tax (credit)/expenses comprise: FriE8%i (%) B EIE :
The Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax 2 B A b (> ¥ A5 R
(Note) (B&E) (7,599) 5,922
Hong Kong Profits Tax BHANEH 151 370
Malaysia corporate income tax BRI EMEH (180) -
Singapore corporate income tax N EFTISH
(“Singapore CIT”) (T IR ZE PRI D) = 38
The UK corporate income tax KB EEFTEH = 296
(7,628) 6,626
Deferred tax (Note 30) IRIERIA(FM13E30)
— Origination and reversal of —ERERENESE
temporary differences K B [El (6,698) (444)
(14,326) 6,182

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group reached an
agreement with relevant tax authority in the Mainland China for a
preferential tax treatment on the deductibility of certain expenses
incurred during the year ended 31 March 2020. Accordingly, a
tax refund was received from the relevant tax authority and was

recognised as income tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and is exempted
from income tax. The Company’s subsidiaries established in the
BVI and Samoa are exempted from income tax of the respective
jurisdictions.

Under the Law of the Mainland China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

In March 2018, the two-tiered profits tax rates regime was
signed into law of Hong Kong, under which the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%
(the “graduated tax rate”), and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5% for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
The profits of corporations in the Group not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

Wi #E—_T_—F=ZA=+—HLEFE"
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Wik o Bt - AEBEAEBERIEKEA
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=+—BUFEBHRBSHIER -

AR BI85 A o AR AL I 5 R R
NEBER - RABNRE R E
B NIEEGKI 2 B R RER R
& RDAEBATEH

RIEF BRI RAETOA( REFAE
BOE) RIEEFAEBOEZ BIED] -
MM ERRRMEFEZRER
25% °

R-ZE—NE=R  EBEOIFEEDIA
FISHREH - Bl - REE_T=—
FEN_TE-_TE=R=+—RHIFE
BB EE 55 2,000,000 7T 2 %
F128.25% ([ 2EFE |) BANFIIE - T
{8 182,000,000/ JT Z i A #5 12 16.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

8.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (continued)
Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the rate of 24%
of the estimated assessable profits of the Group’s entities
in Malaysia arising from Malaysia during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
Malaysia incorporated entities with paid-up capital of Malaysia
Ringgit (“‘RM”) 2.5 million or less enjoy tax rate of 18% (2020:
17%) on the first RM600,000 (2020: RM500,000) and remaining
balance of the estimated assessable profits at the standard
rate.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised
an over provision of Malaysia corporate income tax in respect of
prior years of approximately HK$180,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Singapore CIT is
calculated at the rate of 17% (2020: 17%) of the estimated
assessable profits of the Group’s entities in Singapore arising
from Singapore with no rebate (2020: Singapore CIT rebate of
20%, capped at Singapore Dollars (“S$”) 10,000).

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, Singapore
incorporated companies can enjoy 75% tax exemption on the
first S$10,000 of normal taxable income and a further 50% tax
exemption on the next S$190,000 of normal taxable income.

The Group’s entity established in the UK is subject to the
corporate income tax at a statutory rate of 19% for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

8.

FIBHi(Ee), B ()
BRAREMESRIERNEERE K
Ao EBEREEZE S —FK_F
—EF=ZRA=t+—HILFEESEKRA
90 B A Bl R E ER B 5 F 12 24% Y B
R - HE_ZT-_—F=A=+—
BIEFE » EHE AR E2,500,0005 5K
S HE ((EE DA THERAE
M BN T ERTEN &
600,000 8 (=ZZ =ZF4F : 500,0005
WI218% ( — T - FF  17%)HIF R
BB - M ERER AR IE R R T -

HEr—_ZTE-_—F=A=+—HItHF
B AEERERADBEFELE
PSSR B BB 1% 49180,000/8 7L, ©

Hze—_ 2 - =-fA=+—HIt#F
B FMmEe¥EMmBHNERALEE
AT IN 3 2 B B 11 3 A4 B AE A 1
SERBRAIEIT% (T T F
17% )R R1E - TEERF (=T
ZEF  E20%HT N EMERE
i o _EFRA10,00087 hn3 7T ([ 03
1)) e

BE_Z-_—FRk_ZL-_FF=H1
=t+—BIFE - FIEEMA A
A F) B 10,000 %7 h0 3 T B IE 5 B AR B
WARIZET75% M THIER G » MER
190,000%7 M3 TT A 1E & FE R B UL A AT
ZHEEEIN0%RIFIIEIAR

BE-Z-_— K- =_FTF=H
=t+—HBIFE  AEEREBEKT
ZERBARI9% M AT R E M
FriSHi o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (continued) 8. FiIBH(ESR) BIX(HE)
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the REEZAETRS ER T A EE 2 8
loss before tax as follows: RO
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Loss before tax FREERIEE (16,534) (18,422)
Notional tax on loss before tax, LRI RS 5 2
calculated at the rates applicable to BARETERTAIEEZ
profit in the countries concerned EENIE (2,761) (8,169)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  TMEHIF X 7 TS5 £
for tax purposes 7,167 26,661
Tax effect of income not taxable for HERTWA Z R 2
tax purposes (3,531) (12,842)
Tax effect of graduated tax rate and ZEBMRNFERERZ
tax concession Hsse (333) (207)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised &) F:@ 1 R 2T 1B 518
tax losses (4,616) -
Over provision for prior year BEFEBRERE (7,779) _
Recognition of previously unrecognised #EZ2i@ 7 AR
deferred tax assets EEFIBEE (1,686) -
Others Hit (787) 739
Income tax (credit)/expenses FRAEHER), FX
for the year (14,326) 6,182
9. DIVIDEND 9. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the current reporting period (2020: Nil).

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (@) BEREXEHE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year is based on the
following data:

Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per AT EEBREAREIE Y
share (Loss for the year attributable to 538 (4~A A A
owners of the Company) B FAEE) (2,936)

AARHER ABHERABRER
BRI T 5 BB E -

Weighted average number of LR INET S8
ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ordinary  FibASTE G RRE AR
shares for the purpose of basic loss Eia 2 EEk

2021 2020
—EC-—-F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
(25,306)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RHEE HEE
765,373,584

per share DK 765,373,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 10. EREE(E)
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE

The calculation of the diluted loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year is based on the
following data:

ARARBEEARGFASREE
EERIRE T 58 E

(i)  Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ()  AEREEENENERE
Company 15
2021 2020
—B-—-F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Loss for the year attributable to IN/NCIE ¥ =N Y e
owners of the Company E518 (2,936) (25,306)
Change in fair value and gain arising %48 FE A% AFE
from modification of convertible HRRIT A B AR IR 2
bond designated as financial CRIBEZ TR ES
liabilities at FVPL ZRFERREEL
W25 24,857 (71,443)
Exchange gain on convertible bond 157 Az A FEFI8RIF
designated as financial liabilities FIEZANRE 2 A
at FVPL IR &S 2 b H as (11,830) (6,802)
10,091 (103,551)
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i)  EBERINEFITE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TEF
Number of Number of
CHETEEES shares
BB 4=

Weighted average number of RUGTESREREIR
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 EBARINRE T8
of basic loss per share

Effect of conversion of convertible — EIR[GRE A 2 &

765,373,584 765,373,584

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

bond

Weighted average number of FRAGTE GRS
ordinary shares for the purpose B8z TRk
of diluted loss per share I

1,765,373,584 1,765,373,584

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company’s
outstanding convertible bond had an anti-dilutive
effect to the basic loss per share calculation, the
conversion of the above potential dilutive shares
is not assumed in the computation of diluted loss
per share. Therefore, the basic and diluted loss per
share for the year ended 31 March 2021 are equal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

11. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 1. FRESEIREBESHA
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID T2 & ¥
INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESBFHEN
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and ARaEFE UM EW Z HEE
receivable by the directors of the Company are as follows: FEIAT

Other emoluments

Hit#s

Salaries,

allowance
and other  Retirement
short-term benefits

employee scheme
benefits contributions
e 2ER
Hith 55 H RIAER
we  EEEH AT EIfR B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET THET FET

Forthe year ended 31 March 2021  HZ-ZT=-fF

=A=1-HLFE
Executive directors: HITES:
Wang Xiangfei FHR - 1,352 - 1,352
Kwan Man Fai B 1,512 138 2 1,652
Wong Sze Wai (Note a) T4 (Fizta) - 1,334 18 1,352
Alternate director: EREE
Wang Xiaoyao (alternate to FR(BREIR)
Wang Xiangfel) (Note b) (HizEb) = = - -

Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES .

Wong Man Hin, Raymond EXE 336 - - 336
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey GigE 336 - - 336
Pak Wai Keung, Martin SYEE: 336 - - 336

2,520 2,824 20 5,364
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

11. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

11. B
+

NE
o
=

BARAERSHA

(@ E=HME)

Other emoluments
HitEe

Salaries,

allowance

and other  Retirement
short-term benefits
employee scheme

Fees benefits  contributions Total

FE 2R
Hiwrgt  RER

wE  EEEF

| SR et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-ZF

ZA=+—HLFE
Executive directors: WiTEsE:
Wang Xiangfei AR = 1,341 = 1,841
Kwan Man Fai WxE 1,632 - - 1,632
Wong Sze Wai (Note a) F i (ffta) - 1,248 18 1,266
Alternate director: ERESE:
Wang Xiaoyao (alternate to FR(EREAR)
Wang Xiangfel) (Note b) D) = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHTES -
Wong Man Hin, Raymond BN 336 - - 336
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey BiRE 336 - - 336
Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE® 336 - - 336
2,640 2,589 18 5,247
Notes: P%E
(@  On 17 March 2020, Wong Sze Wai ceased to act as an @ WHZTZTF=FA++RH FE

alternative director (alternate to Wang Xiangfei) of the
Company but remains as an executive director of the
Company.

(b) On 17 March 2020, Wang Xiaoyao was appointed as

an alternative director (alternate to Wang Xiangfei) of the
Company.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

11.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2020: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2020: two) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

1. FRESEINRIBREHFA

TZER (&)
b) EEBZEHFAL

Salaries, allowances and other
short-term employee benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
plan

BE®EH

TE R RET IR

The emoluments of the two (2020: two) highest paid non-
directors fall in the following bands:

¥ra o RRA R HAREE

RAEBREESHFALH =
GZ(ZZT_TF : ZZ)BARA)
EE HMEHEN X - 82T
H(ZEZZF - MB)REFA
TZBEmT

2021 2020
=B=—F —ToTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB% Fiar
1,669 1,663

36 36

1,705 1,699

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE

1,500,000 7T

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

Z%1,000,000/8 7T

WME(ZZE-ZTF : MB) R
FBEBEZIEN T N IEBNSEE

Number of individuals

2020

i

1 1
1 1
2 2

RBE-E-—FR-_ZT-_FF
A=+ BUIMEEE @ &%
EYERARREERAERS
FATZEMABE - SMER
HEMBREESRINBAER
B2 H2E) - SRIEBM S 2 BERAE
B -REE_T-_—Fh_FT—
TE=ZA=+—HIWEEE
BECANEHES AR TaH
AT HRES R HEE A2
ZHE -

Annual Report 2020/21 4%

145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—H=A=1+—HILLEE

11. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(©)

(d)

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors of the Company that were entered into
or subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or connected entity
of the directors of the Company, had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2021 or at any time during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT
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(c)

(d)

LEEASRAZER &
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BE_Z - —FR T -_FTF=
A=+—HItMEFE - ##E:]
VHFEARRREESTEHA
ZER - EEFHEMRZS -
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2B RKER
KARESLEREBRE + R
BT F=ZA=+—RHILF
EXRFBE_ZT-_—FR=_T—
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_Z-_—H=A=1+—HILEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BERRE
Fumiture,
Leasehold equipment
Right-of-  land and Leasehold ~ Plantand  andmotor  Construction-
useassets  buildings  improvements  machinery vehicles in-progress Total

BELHE HER &H RER
fEREEE g7 BEkE i pt: ERIE aE
HK§'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000  HK$'000
T TEL TEn T ThEL TEL Tin

(Note 29)
(Ktzt20)
Cost A
Asat 1 April 2019 RZE-NEmA-A = 14,458 - 25,298 7,500 32,350 79,606
Exchange realignment XA - (1,049 4 (2,109) (256) (1,889) (5,306)
Adjustment on transition to SEERARNBREED
HKFRS 16 F16%EL AR 2339 - - - - - 2339
Additions through acquision of - EBRKEHEAFIFE
subsidiaries 565 - - - 24 - 589
Additions RE 1,768 248 297 2,147 301 49,159 53,920
Transfers &2 - 19,216 - 40,455 - (59,671) -
Disposals e = - - - (500) - (500)
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-F%=A=1-H 4,672 32,873 293 65,791 7,069 19,950 130,648
Asat 1 April 2020 R=Z-FEMA-A 4,672 32,873 293 65,791 7,069 19,950 130,648
Exchange realignment ERa% 2 2,624 2 5,183 1,207 816 9,888
Additions HE 1,098 1,196 - 1,469 1,108 10,969 15,840
Transfers &z - 705 - 28,653 - (29,358) -
Disposals k3 - - - (33 (233) - (266)
As at 31 March 2021 R-E--%=fA=1-A 5,802 37,398 319 101,063 9,151 2311 156,110

Annual Report 2020/21 43k 147



148
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—H=A=1+—HILLEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BRERZE(E)
(continued)

Fumiture,
Leasehold equipment
Right-of-  land and Leasehold ~ Plantand  andmotor  Construction-
useassets  buildings  improvements  machinery vehicles in-progress Total
RELHE BER fil RBR
fRELE ge HELE Ha HE fRIR g
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
THL Thr T Th T T THL
(Note 29)
(Kt09)
Accumulated depreciation ~ BHTEREESE
and impairment losses
As at 1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA-A = 1,757 - 16,758 4721 - 28,236
Exchange realignment fE5 A - (402) (1) (840) (244) = (1,487)
Charge for the year ERT 1677 1,010 55 3,981 650 - 7373
Eliminated on disposals HERHE = = = = (330) - 330)
As at 31 March 2020 e e 1,677 8,365 54 18,899 4,797 - 33,792
Asat 1 Apri 2020 R-E-FENA-A 1,677 8,365 54 18,899 4,797 - 33,792
Exchange realignment ERa% 5 696 10 1,719 1,031 = 3461
Charge for the year Efxit 2,043 1437 59 5979 504 -2
Eliminated on disposals ERHS - - - (33) (233) - (266)
As at 31 March 2021 RZE=-5=fA=1-H 3,725 10,498 123 26,564 6,189 - 47,099
Net carrying amount BHRE
As at 31 March 2021 W-8--£zB=1-A 2,017 26,900 196 74,499 2,962 2317 109,011
As at 31 March 2020 W-BE-E5=f=1-H 2,99 24508 239 46,892 2212 19,950 96,856
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BMERRE (&)
(continued)
The above property, plant and equipment, except for BREZTRRI - L% - BE KK
construction-in-progress, are depreciated on a straight-line BUABEREIE TS FRRITE -

basis at the following rates per annum:

Right-of-use assets Shorter of useful live ranging FREEE R AFEN T2
from 2 years to 5 years or FESFHMHEER
over unexpired term of lease B BAEE B 2 FIER

RE

Leasehold land and buildings  Over the shorter of the term of HETH K LT & F Bi5k3.33%
leases or 3.33% gF ZHBEE

Leasehold improvement 20% HERE 20%

Plant and machinery 4% to 25% G 4%ZE25%

Furniture, equipment and 10% to 25% R~ RAER 10%E25%

motor vehicles it

The Group’s leasehold land is under original lease term of 48 AEFB HETHBERBERHASEEM@E

years. The leasehold land and buildings were situated in the B A48 - HE L MIEFHM R F

Mainland China. B A o

No impairment loss was recognised during the years ended 31 He_ZE - —FhK_ZE_ZTF=HA

March 2021 and 2020. =t+—RIFE - SEERREESE -
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150

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREEE
Exploration Renewable
and Stripping energy
evaluation Mining activity service
assets right assets contract Total
BER HEEEH TEERR
THEE PRuERE EE BREEY i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THT THT THET
(Notes ii &iii)  (Notes i &iii) (Note i) (Note iv)
(P i Beiii) (PRI Reiii) (FfF=ED) (Pt =Eiv)
Cost A
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-AENA—H 46,484 98,392 - 1,618 146,494
Exchange realignment [ 5 - (6,871) - - (6,871)
Additions NE - 116,115 - - 116,115
Write-off s (46,484) - - - (46,484)
As at 31 March 2020 R-_E-EF=A=+—H - 207,636 - 1,618 209,254
As at 1 April 2020 ZE-FFMA—H - 207,636 - 1,618 209,254
Exchange realignment [Rﬂﬁ - 16,231 1,581 - 17,812
Additions NE - - 54,037 - 54,037
As at 31 March 2021 RZB=—-F=H=+—H - 223,867 55,618 1,618 281,103
Accumulated amortisation Rt R REEE
and impairment losses
As at 1 April 2019 R-Z—-NFNA—H 46,484 81,479 - 26 127,989
Exchange realignment fEE i % = (4,003) - - (4,093)
Charge for the year FRYH - 2,890 - 66 2,956
Write-off i (46,484) - - - (46,484)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZ-ZF=A=1+—H - 80,276 - 92 80,368
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZEMA—H - 80,276 - 92 80,368
Exchange realignment M N A% - 6,423 48 - 6,471
Charge for the year FRLH - 4,993 1,628 66 6,687
As at 31 March 2021 RZBE-Z—-F=B=+—H - 91,692 1,676 158 93,526
Net carrying amount BREFE
As at 31 March 2021 RZB=—-F=H=+-—H - 132,175 53,942 1,460 187,577
As at 31 March 2020 RZE-EF=H=+—H - 127,360 - 1,526 128,886
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13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(i)

The mining right and the exploration and evaluation assets acquired
as part of a business combination during the year ended 31 March
2010 were initially recognised at their respective fair values on
acquisition with reference to a professional valuation using discounted
cash flow method based on the operating environment of each of the
operating entities.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s mining right with net carrying
amount of approximately HK$132,175,000 was pledged to secure
bank facilities granted to the Group (Note 24).

Mining right and stripping activity assets

The directors of the Company conducted impairment
review of the mining right and stripping activity assets
at the end of each reporting period or when impairment
indicator exists. In such connection, the Company
engaged ValQuest Advisory Hong Kong Limited
(“ValQuest”), an independent professional valuer, to
assess the VIU of CGU of the non-current mining assets,
including property, plant and equipment, mining right,
stripping activity assets and prepayments for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment of the individual mine
site, of the coal mining business of the Group (the “Coal
Mining Assets”) for the purpose of impairment testing as
at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
with reference to valuations conducted by ValQuest
using discounted cash flow method, the directors of
the Company expected that the VIU of the Coal Mining
Assets is higher than its carrying amount by approximately
HK$23,773,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,649,000)
and thus concluded that no impairment loss was
recognised during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

In light of the current mining right which is expiring
in August 2049 as disclosed below, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that, based on past
experience and current laws and regulations in the
Mainland China, the Group is eligible to further renew
the mining right without incurring significant incremental
cost, given the Group continues to comply with the
requirements as required by the relevant local authorities
in the Mainland China. In this connection, when assessing
the VIU of the Coal Mining Assets, the directors of the
Company adopted a cash flow forecast which covers
beyond the expiry date, representing the remaining
periods of the mine until the expected coal reserves of the
mine is fully utilised.

,\\\ﬂ/ﬁfs (:fﬂﬁ)

BT -

(@

@i

BE_Z-ZF-_A=tHILFEK
E%Tmﬁ!;%’f&LA&&JJ%&:HHE%T?{’E%%W

/5\1;4:—%5 Iﬁﬁ”&&ﬁx«#&?%ﬁ%«#&

REZCHBRBRSREBINAFL 28

1E1E MZNRERE B 2 AFEE
KRB —F=A=+—H A%£EE

IR F IR E (B (E 49132,175,00078 LK)
FIRE AR T ASLBRTRE (
F24) o

RBEERAETEEE
RERE HAR 4 R ek K IR E R
R ARBRESYEEER
HEEEEEETRERT - B
o RZEBE-Z—FRN T _TF
=R=+—8 ' AAFEEEE
iiiﬁ@%¢ﬂ E1(BB)AE
RNEN([FPaETT ) A AL
l@%%%z#m@%ﬁﬁﬁ
(BESESZME  BEREXR
- REEREBEEEEENR
WM BEMIEBEENR
B)([REEE ] ReEAEN
ZEREBE  AERERH -
BE-_Z - FRN_T-_TF=
A=+—BIMEFE K28
FRBETEREMRBESRES
EEH 2B AR RIEETEH
HEEEZFRAEESNERR
E#)23,773,0008 L (— - F

& #92,649,000/87T) © E Mk
E@I—?— i&—?—?ﬂz

ZA=T-AEFELEERE
fAREREE -

FRATXHEEN_ZTONAEN
REw 2 RSRERE - AARE
ERA - REBELBRIFBENA
IR ENEDI RIRG] - BRAARE
B — B a 18R B it 77 i
B ESKMEHE - A BRI TE
BEFEINRBER AT E— P EE
RiERE - ALt - FTAEREEY
FREER  NARESKRAT
—(EREEHBHRE(EETS
B AT RS KRS LRI
E}\]H%FEEDE)UEEi//\LEfE EUHJQ
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BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(i

Mining right and stripping activity assets (continued)
Having considered the sensitivity analysis about the
possible outcomes for any mining activities after August
2049 and the likelihood of successful renewal of the
mining right with reference to a legal opinion issued by
the lawyer in the Mainland China, the directors of the
Company considered the risk exposed to the renewal of
mining right after August 2049 may not have significant
impact on the VIU of the Coal Mining Assets.

In assessing the VIU of the CGUS, the future cash flows of the
coal mining business are discounted to the related present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to such business. Parameters used in the projected cash
flows included but were not limited to selling prices and sales
volumes of coal, production cost and other expenses, capital
expenditure, production plan and discount rate, respectively,
which reflected the current conditions of the market and
the Group and estimated trend in the future. In particular,
the Group may revise the annual production plan and the
expected sales volumes of coal adopted in the cash flows
projection with reference to the latest government policies
announced from time to time.

When evaluating the appropriate discount rate for each of the
CGUs, the Capital Asset Pricing Model (‘CAPM”) had been used.
Under CAPM, the appropriate expected rate of retum was the
sum of the risk-free retum and the equity risk premium required by
investors to compensate for the market risk assumed. In addition,
the expected rate of retum of the CGUs was expected to be
affected by other firm specific risk factors that are independent
of the general market. The cost of equity was determined by the
risk-free rate, market retumn and estimated beta of the CGUs
and firn specific risk factors. Therefore, the Group may update
the inputs of discount rate and other valuation parameters with
reference to the latest market information and the firm’s specific
risk factors based on the most recent available evidences from
the relevant appropriate sources, e.g. the competent person’s
report on mine reserve.

Key assumptions used for cash flow projections to
undertake impairment assessment of the Coal Mining
Assets are as follows:

13.

BREE(E)

@)

Growth in revenue kit £
Budgeted gross profit margin B iEEF|=
Long-term growth rate REPER R
Discount rate (pre-tax) BRIR = (FiAT)

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

RRER AR EHEE ()
£ EE I TIAEN B
B B R RS
LA, 2 Reh B Py 28 T B 2k 4
FEE LR RRNE SRR
Tl - AAAEERE - B
&~ BUNE B RERES R
MR K LA (A (B
ERREATE -

RIHEHESEL B 2 EREE
B RIRES 2 RARBR S MER
FAR] R BR & i Al < & RSB
18 R AB B8 S 75 45 T AR 2 FR AR AN
REIR KGR S AARAIRE - FEAR
EREMERZ 28D RIEHEE
IR [ BR 355 2 N 55 [ 3R LA
BRI AGFT EEE 2 B E (B M3
B HERAREMAS - BX
FS ~ EERTSIRBEIRE - LH
= AEERIRB TR QMDY
RHMBATHE @ (BRI 2 FEER
2| &R R ETRR P IR A TRER

RIS R ELENM 2 EREE
Rl CRAEAEEE(E
BA(EXREETERN]) - 1R
BEABETERN  AEHE
HA[m) i R 25 488 [ o o] SR B4R B
R FTAE SRR M ARG
Z sk R\ B i (B 2 #BAN © Uit
Sh - BEAR G EA BN 2 FAHD
R BN BETISAINZ H it
PEFERBREMTE - #i
PR THZ R A X - 508
KRG ELEBEMN 2 EF BB RH
UAREESERBAZEE
It AEEA2REHTISEM
A RARBAE B BE & & 2R (A0HE
EFENSEBALRE)AB
ROHERGHZARNEER
BRE - FHRRRBARER
HibfHE2H -

ATE PR A E AR B R (E A 3R
EREFRAAENEZREL

As at As at

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
RZZZTF
=A=+—H

3.00% 4.55%
47.72% 49.19%
3.00% 3.00%
13.72% 21.00%
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13.

() Mining right and stripping activity assets (continued)
Details of the Group’s mining right at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Mining right Location
R b B

BLEE(E)

(@i

RIBERABEBEE (&)
BB EN SRS HIR 2 SRiEhE
(I

Expiry date
JEw B 2

Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine  Inside Zhundong Meitian Xiheishan Coal Mining Mining right expired

(the “Kaiyuan Mine”) and Area in Xinjiang
the Enlarged Kaiyuan

Mine (as defined in

Note iii below)

IURBEAEE([SURERE]) FEERERARLEKERSR
REBERIBREB(EER
T B R

(ii) Exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration and evaluation assets represented the
exploration right possessed by the Group. For the year
ended 31 March 2013, the exploration and evaluation
assets were fully impaired based on a professional
valuation, which concluded that no defined or reliable
future economic benefit could be drawn due to the
following facts and circumstances:

the exploration right had been renewed twice and
the expiry date of it would be on 20 February 2014;

- according to a legal opinion obtained by the Group,
that under Mainland China law and regulation the
exploration right could only be renewed twice, and
no further renewal for period beyond 20 February
2014 could be obtained;

- the directors of the Company re-assessed the
status and considered that the Group was not able
to obtain a mining right prior to the expiry of the
exploration right; and

— that no defined or reliable future economic benefit
could be drawn based on the current progress
relating to the Optimization and Upgrading Plan (as
defined in Note iii below).

(ii)

in August 2049
with existing
mining permit until
21 December
2021 (renewable)
FEER — TN F
NAEm - mRE

FRUE T Al 35 B WU
ETE-—F4
A-+—BAIt
(ATE#E)
BERFFHERE

R EEERAEEES 2
HiEE - HE_T—=%=A4
=t+—HIFE  HERFEE
ECBREBEZEEGHERERE A
HHEAEBEREERUNTEER
B m g E RS A 5 2

BRI

- BB HCOEERK e
RZE—MNF-_A=+H
FIH

- REAKEMBIEER
R RRHBAMER R
R BREETEEM
R AER-ZT—HF—
A-tBRRELZEEED
RE

- ARBAEFEHMNMGEE
N BRRAEERENRE
REZI M AT BUS RIZHE
4

- ERBEARITE(EER
TXHfERiiD 2 BRTERE -
B & B RS B RSk A 52

BRI -
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BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(ii)

Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2013, the
following facts happened in relation to the exploration and
evaluation assets:

on 19 March 2014, the relevant government bureau
exercised an administrative discretionary right
and granted a renewed exploration right with valid
period from 25 February 2014 to 25 February 2016;

on 19 May 2016, the Company further obtained
a renewal permit from Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region
(the “Xinjiang Land Department”) granting the
renewal of the exploration permit of Zexu Open Pit
Coal Mine (the “Zexu Mine”) (“Exploration Permit”)
with valid period from 5 April 2016 to 5 April 2017;
and

on 16 May 2017, the Company further obtained
a renewal permit from Xinjiang Land Department
granting the renewal of the exploration permit with
valid period from 16 May 2017 to 16 May 2019.

on 6 December 2019, the Optimization and
Upgrading Plan was executed and completed and
the Exploration Permit was written-off during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(iii) Optimization and Upgrading Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Xinjiang Land
Department informed the Group that pursuant to the
instructions of the National Development and Reform
Commission of the Mainland China, the Xinjiang Land
Department is planning a management restructuring of
different coal mines in the Xiheishan Mining Area (the
“Optimization and Upgrading Plan”), where the Group’s
Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine are situated.

On 14 March 2012, a proposal (the “Proposal”) was
issued by the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak
Autonomous County, where the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine
is located, to the Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry
of Changji Prefecture (the “Changji Administrative
Bureau”). According to the Proposal, which is part of the
Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the mining area of the
Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now conducting mining
activities, is proposed to be increased to 4.12 square
kilometers, with the estimated additional coal resources
of approximately 131.18 million tonnes. In the Proposal, it
is also stated that the production capacity of the Kaiyuan
Mine will increase from 0.9 million tonnes per year to 3
million tonnes per year.

The Group received a letter dated 13 June 2012 issued
by the Changji Administrative Bureau (the “13 June
Letter”) informing the updated status of the Management
Restructuring Plan (as defined in the announcement of
the Company dated 11 November 2011). According to
the 13 June Letter, the following proposals in relation to
the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine (the “Updated
Proposals”) have been submitted to the working group
head office for coal industry structural upgrade work of
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for consideration and
approval:

- the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine will be restructured and
upgraded, and the exploration rights in the Zexu
Mine granted to the Group will be terminated; and
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(iii) Optimization and Upgrading Plan (continued)

= the mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where
the Group is now conducting mining activities,
is proposed to be increased from 1.1596
square kilometers to 4.12 square kilometers,
with the estimated additional coal resources of
approximately 131.18 million tonnes.

Pursuant to the terms of the transfer agreement
(the “Transfer Agreement”) on 2 December 2019
entered into between the Xinjiang Land Department and
REZYRHE K BRETAA (Mulei County Kai Yuan
Coal Company Limited*, “Kaiyuan Company”) in respect
of the new mining right with an enlarged mining area for
a term of 30 years from August 2019 to August 2049
(the “Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine”), Xinjiang Land Department
agreed to sell and Kaiyuan Company agreed to purchase,
the mining permit in respect of the Enlarged Kaiyuan
Mine, at an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB160,978,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$177,221,000), which shall be settled in cash and
paid by Kaiyuan Company to Xinjiang Land Department
in fifteen instalments over a period of 15 years. As part
of the Transfer Agreement, Kaiyuan Company is also
required to pay an additional supplemental resources
fee of approximately RMB76,503,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$85,688,000) to Xinjiang Land
Department within 30 days from signing of the Transfer
Agreement for the accumulated unpaid output of 19.8
million tonnes of coal of Kaiyuan Mine up to 30 April 2019.
The amount was fully settled and recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2020.

On 6 December 2019, the Transfer Agreement was duly
executed by Xinjiang Land Department and Kaiyuan
Company.

According to the Transfer Agreement, the estimated coal
reserves of the Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine are 41.6433 million
tonnes for the mining life of 30 years as at the date of
acquisition.

* English translation for identification purpose only.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13. B EE (&)
(ivy Renewable energy service contract (iv) TBE4ERREEL

The renewable energy service contract relates to the
Renewable Energy CGU (as defined in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) and represented a
legally binding service agreement entered into between
NEFIN Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (“NEFIN
Technologies”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of NEFIN
Leasing Technologies Limited (“NEFIN Leasing”) (together
referred to as “NEFIN Group”), and its customer, which
was acquired as part of the Group’s acquisition of NEFIN
Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 and was
initially recognised at its fair value at acquisition date
with reference to a professional valuation conducted
by ValQuest using discounted cash flow method. The
remaining useful life of the renewable energy service
contract as at acquisition date is determined by the Group
to be 25 years.

The renewable energy service contract is tested for
impairment at least annually and has been included in the
Renewable Energy CGU for impairment assessment of
goodwill.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the directors of the
Company expected that the recoverable amount of
renewable energy service contract exceed its carrying
amount and thus concluded that no impairment loss was
recognised during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

14. GOODWILL 14, BHE
Coal Mining Renewable IT Services
CGU  Energy CGU CGU Total
RERS UBLRE  EANBEE
EEEfN HEELEN BEELEM g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT ThL THT
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Pif(a)) iRV (FitsE ()
Cost A
As at 1 Apri 2019 R=E-NENA—H 37,469 4,229 - 41,698
Avising from acquisition of Wl B L Rl (Firisd)
subsidiaries (Note 34) - - 24,148 24,148
As at 31 March 2020, 1 Apri 2020 RZZ-TF=A=1+-H"
and 31 March 2021 ZZCTEMA-AR
“F--%#=f=+-H 37,469 4,229 24,148 65,846
Accumulated impairment losses B HESE
As at 1 April 2019 RZE-NFMA-H 37,469 - - 37,469
Impairment loss on goodwil BERERR - - 3,831 3,831
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-ZF=A=1+-H 37,469 - 3,831 41,300
As at 1 Apri 2020 RZZE-ZFMA-A 37,469 - 3,831 41,300
Impairment loss on goodwil HEREER - - 14,503 14,503
As at 31 March 2021 R-B--FE=A=+-H 37,469 - 18,334 55,803
Net carrying amount RERE
As at 31 March 2021 R-B--F=A=1+-H - 4,229 5,814 10,043
As at 31 March 2020 RZZ2-ZF=F=+-H - 4,209 20,317 24,546

14(a) Coal Mining CGU
The goodwill arising on acquisition of 21 & 2 /B &
AR E AT (Qitai County Zexu Trading Company
Limited*, “Zexu Company”) and Kaiyuan Company was
fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2011.

14(a) BIER SELEN
HE—_T——4F=A=+—H1t
FE WETEHEEEREEAR
EERAREBRRAR D RIEA
RIEEREEDELRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

14. GOODWILL (continued)
14(b) Renewable Energy CGU

14. BHE(E)
14(b) ATBAERERIREEEEN

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of 90% equity
interests in NEFIN Leasing and its subsidiary on 8 October
2018 with CGU engaged in renewable energy solutions
and solar farm development (the “Renewable Energy
CcGu).

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the directors of
the Company assessed the recoverable amount of
the Renewable Energy CGU with reference to VIU
calculations using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets and forecasts covering a five-year period
and extrapolation of cash flows beyond such period
conducted by ValQuest.

Key assumptions used for cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the goodwill allocated to
Renewable Energy CGU are as follows:

Growth in revenue year-on-year ARV IREWEERE

during the five-year period

Budgeted gross profit margin BIEERMN=
Perpetual growth rate KB R R
Discount rate (pre-tax) 838 = (B AT)

RZF—N\E+ANB - KFE*
BEIRAE & K HL B8 A ®190% i #E
BRI ERME A BLRIRERT
RRKGRe B BIREEBNR
SELBM([AIBERRESE
B DEERE -

KRB —FRZZFTF=A
=t+—H ARAREZRREA
RemEBAFERNEREERT
Al BAERRIASEEBMAR]
WEl&5E - miFeREERE
B 75788 & 1 BRTE R K P ki
THEHZ BB FER RS

Bl S
MEFTHE -

ROMER BERRREELS
R BETREARmED
ReEneBAMAz EEREN
™

As at As at

31 March 31 March
2021 2020

R —F Sl kS
EV-EL el —A=1—H

1.34% -1.45% 1.00% - 1.50%

48.12% 47.04%
3.00% 3.00%
5.85% 6.58%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

14. GOODWILL (continued)
14(b) Renewable Energy CGU (continued)

14(c)

The directors of the Company determined the growth
rates based on past performance and the expectation
of market development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Renewable
Energy CGU.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the recoverable
amount of the Renewable Energy CGU is higher than its
carrying amount by approximately HK$9,669,000 (2020:
approximately HK$3,060,000). Accordingly, there was
no impairment on the goodwill during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
they are not aware of any material change in the key
assumptions in determining the recoverable amount of the
CGU as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

IT Services CGU

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of 80.86% equity
interests in Harbour Group Holdings Limited (“Harbour
Group Holdings”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as “Harbour Group”) on 23 April 2019 with CGU engaged
in IT Services (the “IT Services CGU”).

As at 31 March 2021, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amount of the IT Services
CGU with reference to VIU calculations using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets and forecasts
covering a five-year period and extrapolation of cash flows
beyond such period conducted by ValQuest (2020: Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, “Peak Vision”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

14. GOODWILL (continued)
14(c) IT Services CGU (continued)

Key assumptions used for cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the goodwill allocated to
IT Services CGU are as follows:

Growth/Decline in revenue HF R 2R FWEs
year-on-year during the #E T
five-year period

Budgeted gross profit margin ERESFAF

Perpetual growth rate KB RE

Discount rate (pre-tax) AEIR K (FHAT)

The directors of the Company determined the growth
rates based on past performance and the expectation of
market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the IT Services CGU.

As at 31 March 2021, in light of keen competition from
the IT Services sector and the recent development
of COVID-19, which are expected to have a negative
impact on the revenue and growth rate of the IT Services
CGU, the recoverable amount of the IT Services CGU
of approximately HK$18,772,000 (2020: approximately
HK$28,314,000) fell below its then carrying amount.
Accordingly, the goodwill allocated to the IT Services CGU
was impaired by approximately HK$14,503,000 (2020:
approximately HK$3,831,000) during the year ended 31
March 2021.

14 %ﬁ(nﬂ)

14c) EABERBREELEEN
(ME)
ROBEZEMBRBRBEREEE
B e EEETRENSEmED
RERSTERFTA 2 EE/BRUW
™

As at As at

31 March 31 March
2021 2020

Mo —F I ecieses
=A=+—H

1.80% -23.64%
26.00% 18.00%
2.00% 3.00%
13.99% 12.73%

ARBREFTRBERR LM HE
EEMBERERER - AAREIRE
RATAT - RS K EARHRAR
BREELEMNHERRER

R—_ZE-_—F=A=+—H =
REEHL D B AR 5 3B IA
K COVID-19#y 3T BiZE R B
%ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ@%%ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ&ﬁ%iﬁﬁéi
Bl RIEREEEBEY
L WEMBERGREEAS
i /) A] Y [B] & EA 49 18,772,000
B (ZZEZZF : 28,314,000
BIL)EREERZREE - A
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HIEFE  HEREENEHE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. BE(E)
14(d) Sensitivity of key assumptions 14(d) FEBZNHRE
The management identified the following key assumptions BEEHNINATEERR - &8
in which a material change on an individual basis would BERE X EREKEBUEW
cause any or additional impairment loss. SEEINBEEE ©
Material changes that individually cause additional BEBEYA R EEREINKEE
impairment loss on the identifiable assets: BREREEF) :
2021
—E_—F
Increase of
Change impairment
BE RAE G AN
HK$°000
TFHT
IT Services CGU EARERBReELEN
Growth rate in revenue et R & Decrease 1% 8,901
WA1%
Budgeted gross profit margin BIZEM=E Decrease 1% 3,007
1%
Perpetual growth rate KB R R Decrease 1% 380
WA1%
Discount rate AEIR K Increase 1% 800
1%
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BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

15. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  15. FEW=SHARE

Reconciliation of carrying amount EREE AV BR

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 $R45 BARE B 24 RS

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries  [E| it Kt B 2 71 2 A=
(Note 34) (B¥5E34)

Transfer to guaranteed profit = R B S IR ERUR
compensation receivables (Bi5E18(0))

(Note 18(b))
Change in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Ba AR A HEES

At the end of the reporting period AR BRRE A4 R A

As part of the acquisition consideration upon the completion of
the acquisition of Harbour Group, the vendor of Harbour Group
(the “Vendor of Harbour Group”) has agreed to guarantee to
the Group that the audited consolidated net profit generated
from operating activities of Harbour Group in its ordinary and
usual course of business (i.e. the net profit after tax of Harbour
Group as to be shown in the audited financial statements of
Harbour Group), prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA for the relevant financial period by the auditors
appointed by the Group (the “Net Profit”) for each of the financial
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 (each such
12-month period is referred to as a “PG 12-Month Period”) shall
be no less than HK$7,200,000 per annum (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). In the event that the Net Profit during the PG-12
Month Period is less than the Guaranteed Profit, the Vendor of
Harbour Group unconditionally and irrevocably undertakes and
guarantees, as a continuing obligation, to pay such shortfall
multiplying the ratio (1.13) (the “Shortfall Amount”) presented as
below:

Shortfall Amount=1.13 x (Guaranteed Profit — Net Profit)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the profit
guarantee is for the exchange of control for the Harbour
Group and therefore considered as contingent consideration
receivables and measured at fair value. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration receivables shall be
recognised in the profit or loss.

2021 2020
—E_—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FBT
6,186 -

- 5,364

(2,538) (2,187)
(3,648) 3,009

= 6,186

EATERWESSER T KEREZ
—%n BEEEZEH((HEEE
Eﬁnﬁfﬁﬁﬁl%%-‘zfi
—NE TN ER_T_TF
+:H£+—E¢Mﬁ¢§%¢@%
+-EAEBA EFRE+T @
BHM])  BAEBAE TS
RS BRSEREE S SRS
Wiz BBV HERELVREZES
EEMA—REAFEBBREPLLTE
BEENERZEAMF([4EF ]

EBEECEZVBERRANZIZ
%EE@%ﬁ&@ﬁD%$P#i¢
7,200,00078 7T ([RFEHF 1) o M F
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o BESEBESEGER T HD
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15. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The initial valuation of the contingent consideration receivables
was conducted by Peak Vision, an independent professional
valuer, in accordance with HKFRS 13 and is mainly based
on the latest audited financial information of Harbour Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and Harbour Group’s
financial performance forecasts for the years ended/ending 31
December 2019 and 2020 prepared by the management of the
Harbour Group. Accordingly, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivables was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,364,000 as at the acquisition date (i.e. 23 April 2019).
Monte Carlo Simulation Method is used for the valuation of
contingent consideration receivables which is commonly-
adopted in the market. It was first introduced to finance in 1964
by David B. Hertz through his Harvard Business Review article,
and in 1977, Prelim Boyle pioneered the use of simulation
in derivative valuation in his seminal Journal of Financial
Economics paper.

The value of contingent consideration receivables is derived
from the cash flow compensation as a result of the possibility
of failure to meet the Guaranteed Profit by Harbour Group.
As such, Peak Vision adopted the Monte Carlo Simulation
Method, which is a path dependent model to consider the
probability weighted distribution of the possible outcomes
and factors the volatility of these outcomes. The Monte Carlo
Simulation Method is one of the most commonly adopted
valuation methodologies to value contingent receivable or profit
guarantee.

The Vendor of Harbour Group shall pay to the Group the
Shortfall Amount by way of cash and/or setting off the same
amount from the amount owed by the Company under the
Promissory Notes (as defined in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements) after the audited financial statements are
issued by the auditors of Harbour Group for the relevant PG-12
Month Period.

In the event that the Net Profit for the PG-12 Month Period
exceeds the Guaranteed Profit, such excess amount shall
not be carried forward to meet the Guaranteed Profit for the
subsequent period.
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15. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES 15. FEWERARNRE(E)

(continued)

According to the audited financial statements of Harbour
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 issued on 12
April 2019, the Net Profit of Harbour Group was approximately
HK$7,299,000 and was higher than the Guaranteed Profit by
approximately HK$99,000.

According to the audited financial statements of Harbour Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 issued on 31 March
2020, the Net Profit of Harbour Group was approximately
HK$5,265,000 and was lower than the Guaranteed Profit
by approximately HK$1,935,000. The Shortfall Amount
calculated based on the above formula equals to approximately
HK$2,187,000 and the Shortfall Amount was transferred to
guaranteed profit compensation receivables during the year
ended 31 March 2020 and it was settled by setting off the same
amount from Promissory Note 2 (as defined in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements) in May 2020.

According to the audited financial statements of Harbour Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 issued on 31 March
2021, the Net Profit of Harbour Group was approximately
HK$4,954,000 and was lower than the Guaranteed Profit
by approximately HK$2,246,000. The Shortfall Amount
calculated based on the above formula equals to approximately
HK$2,538,000 and the Shortfall Amount was transferred
to guaranteed profit compensation receivables during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and it was settled by (i) cash
of approximately HK$138,000; and (ii) setting off from
Promissory Note 3 (as defined in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements with principle amount of HK$2,400,000)
subsequent to 31 March 2021.

BEESSEER -_ZT—NAFMA+=
BRI 2H#HZ=-_FE—N\F+=A
=t BIEFELLEZABERE
BB ERE 2R 457,299,000 7T
B IMR R F114999,000/8 7T ©

BEESEER-_ZE_FTF=A
—+—RfBZ2HEZE=_Z—NF+=
A=+—RALFEZEEZMBR
% BEEE 2 F 455,265,000

R RARRE 3 A1) 491,985,000 7T ©
m%:m NEFEZTREBAOA
2,187,000 7T * BT BERNEE
—ERF-A=F+—RALFEERE
EUIRBE R FIHERE  ER22=
TFRAABBEALER2(EE R
A Y RAKE28) P IKEER & E T
LAEF o

BEAEEER T - —F=A
=t BHABZBEE-_T_TF+=
A=+ HBLEFEZEEXVIER
% &G & B 2 M F 4 F4,954,000%8
R PR FE R F472,246,00078 7T ©
m%:m N EZTREBAOA
2,538,000/ 7T + Mz TR EBEENE
E-E-_—F=ZA=1+—HILtFEE
ERWRFTFHERE  TRZF
——F=ZA=+—H%LA®)#I138,000
BILRE  Ri)B AR ZEI(ER
R EUMBERmERNE28 225 A
2,400,000/ 70 ) K (EFT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R&

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

15. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES 15.

(continued)

Upon the issuance of the audited financial statements of
Harbour Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
obligation of the Vendor of Harbour Group in respect of the
profit guarantee under the sale and purchase agreement was
fulfilled. Accordingly, the remaining balance of contingent
consideration receivables amounted to approximately
HK$3,648,000 was recognised in the profit or loss as change
in fair value of contingent consideration receivables for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Key inputs adopted in the calculation of the fair value of
contingent consideration receivables are summarised below:

B IERAR TR

PR R RAAE ()

TEESEBBE T _TF+ A
T+ HUEFEZEEZWBHRE
% BEEBEFCEREEHREE
TEREFRBEDT - Bt - KRR
RIBH#240/53,648,000/8 7T » WHE
2T -_—F=A=+—BIFEZ
BT ERAEMKARENAFE

AFEREEARERFEMRRZE
ERABUEEIAT

As at

31 March
2020
RIZZZTF
=A=+—H

Discount rate BRI 3R
Volatility R @
Time to maturity TR HA

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT

8.1%
59.46%
1.06 year
1.065




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

15. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The description of sensitivity of changes in unobservable inputs
for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements, are as follows:

Assets

&E

Valuation of technique

fH{ER %

T

Unobservable inputs

THEERARE

15. EWREAKREGE)

HEEUEE=RAFEFAEZTAE
R \BURE ) 2 BURE G M

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value
FABEm A B HE
NEEZBE

Contingent consideration

receivables

U RAAE

Monte-Carlo Simulation

SR REREDE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Discount rate

BE

\olatility

B8

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value, vice versa

BRI EME - BIAFER
K RZIFA

The higher the volatility rate,
the higher the fair value,
vice versa

RIBEA - BIAFE-
= RZIA

16. RMIBATZRE

Unlisted shares, at cost

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non

FEETRAD - AR

interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FAT

FEUF B A R R R EE AR - B K

ARBREFEE

Annual Report 2020/21 4%

167



168

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMMBARIZIRE (&)

Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

RKANFIR B - —FN B -FF=
A=+— B2 HBATREDT -

Place of
Class of shares  incorporation/
held/paid up registration and Issued shares and Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiary capital operation paid up capital ~attributable to the Company Principal activities
FERAER,/  HREL/ ERTRHK
MEARAR B4kx ERREERH BfRE  AQREERERS  TEER
Directly held:
E#ER:
Lasting Power Investments Limited ~ Ordinary share ~ The BVI United States Dollars 100 100 Investment holding
NERBBRAT LR RERIHE (US$")1 REBR
EZAEIA))
Indirectly held:
BiEes
Star Fortune Intenational Investment ~ Ordinary share ~ The BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited (“Star Fortune”) £ ABRAHE 100£7T REBR
ENERERRERRAA
(EVEE-1)
Ming Kei Kai Yuan Investment Ordinary share  Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited LEk A 60,000,000%7C REER
REIRRAARAR
Kaiyuan Company (Note i) Paid up capital  The Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Coal mining and sales
SRR (HH) BERA hEMD AKH30,000,0007 RRRBRREE
Zexu Company (Note i Paid up capital  The Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100 100 Inactive
BB (Fi) 4 (e HER AR2,000,0007C fmex
Radiant Day Holdings Limited Ordinary share  Samoa USS$1 100 100 Investment holding
ERERER AT Rk EED 9 REBR
NEFIN Leasing Ordinary share Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 90 90 Investment holding
MeEREE LR &8 1,000,000 7 REBR
NEFIN Technologies Ordinary share ~ Malaysia RM1,000,000 90 90 Renewable energy solutions
NEFIN Technologies Lk SRED 1,000,005 EELT S YiES
Ample Talent Ventures Limited Ordinary share~ Samoa US$1 100 100 Investment holding
(*Ample Talent') LER BED E REER

HEARARAR(HEAR])

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMIB AR ZIRE (&)
Place of
Class of shares  incorporation/
held/paid up registration and Issued shares and Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiary capital operation paid up capital  attributable to the Company Principal activities
FEROER,/  SREL/ BRTRAR
WEARER B4R= EMREELE BfRE  AQREERERSL  TTER
2020
F
%
Indirectly held (continued):
BE () :
Harbour Group Holdings Ordinary share  Hong Kong HK$2,018,800 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
B R Rk B 2,018,800 7 REERRRRS
Mountain Managed Cloud Consulting ~ Ordinary share  Hong Kong HK$10,000 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
Limited (*Mountain Managed EE% X 10,000%7 REERRERS
Cloud")
BEERERARAR(RESR])
Vanguard Business Services Limited ~ Ordinary share  Hong Kong HK$10,000 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
("Vaguard Business') Lak A 10,000%7 AR RE
FEEERBERAR(EEHE])
Harbour Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ~ Ordinary share  Singapore S$1 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
("Harbour Group Singapore) LEk il g RS RE

Harbour Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(THarbour Group Singapore )

Harbour Group Consulting (UK) Ordinary share ~ The UK Great Britain Pound 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
Limited gk B 100 RUCERMRRE
(*Harbour Group Consulting') 10058

Harbour Group Consulting (UK)

Limited
(THarbour Group Consulting])

HGH Technology Scn. Bhd. Ordinary share ~ Malaysia RM350,000 80.86 80.86 Provision of IT Services
("HGH Technology') Lk SRAT 350,0005 % REERRERE

HGH Technology Sdn. Bhd.

(THGH Technology)
Notes: Mi3E
0] Registered under the laws of the Mainland China as wholly-foreign- i) RERBEAEEAM AN EERE

owned enterprise

(ii) Registered under the laws of the Mainland China as domestic (i) BEPERM AR ARADE
enterprise

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding AR 45 HARS 45 SR B sk 3R 45 HARS N 1E 1)

as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the B MENBAREEEMNEET

reporting period. ZEBES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMMBARIZIRE (&)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

The following table shows the information relating to the non-
wholly owned subsidiary, Harbour Group, that has material
NCI. The summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations since acquisition.

Proportion of NCI's
ownership interests

BBEEAERENFERER ([ 3F
ERER ) cMB AR HBER
TRET| EEFERIIERER 2 I
2EMBRREEEEEHIER -
S ERHE Z &S W IR R R

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

BIRIENEE o

Harbour Harbour
Group Group
2021 2020
BEEE BEEE
—E—F —E-FF

eI e s FT A et s (b Bt
19.14% 19.14%
At 31 March At 31 March
2021 2020
REE=—F St
=A=+-—H =A=+—AH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
IEREEE 1,105 1,326
MBNEE 13,788 12,802
mEEE (2,788) (5,111)
JEmEBE (525) (950)
BEFE 11,580 8,067
IS 2 BREE 2,216 1,544
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMIB AR ZIRE (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with individually BEEEEERIE IR ER([3E
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (continued) R R |) 2 B A R 2 B &k

(%&)
From 23 April
2019
(date of
Year ended acquisition) to
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
H-T—NEF
BZE L =
—Z-—F EOEAEEDES
EFEr=[E e S SaS
=38 —F=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$" 000
FHET FHT
Revenue for the year/period FA Bk 28,548 53,304
Profit for the year/period FR, BT 3,472 3,936

Total comprehensive income forthe 7R, HiR 2 E U8 4258
year/period 3,512 3,732

Total comprehensive income for the  3E3EIRIERSFEIEE A, HIA

year/period attributable to NCI FHEHIKEATE 672 714
Net cash flows from/(used in): BensFEEEEe,/ (AR)
Operating activities K2R 8,481 (204)
Investing activities WEZEY (788) (1)
Financing activities BE X (2,216) (2,090)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, no dividend (2020: BE_T_—F=—A=+—HItF
dividend of approximately HK$1,010,000) was paid to NCI. B ERIEEREENRE(ZE

T #91,010,000/8 T 2 AR B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

17. INVENTORIES

Consumables HE M
Coals R

No inventories were written down for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. BE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
328 292
22,937 7,887
23,265 8,179

VTERBE-_T-_—FR_ZF_F
ZA=t+—HLEFEMREE

Trade receivables from EWE=ER
third parties
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FBNFIE - 124 & HA
receivables FEUGRIA
Other taxes receivables E e AR IE
Guaranteed profit U (R 5% 146 (B FN IR

compensation receivables
Prepayments for acquisition of WEEMZ ~ WEREE
property, plant and equipment T FIE

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT

18. EWER K EMEWFIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bk FHT FHT
18(a) 4,713 8,663
5,386 4,997
339 107
18(b) 2,560 2,622
4,102 1,093
17,100 17,482




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEWX

B R E Ao B W E ()

Analysed by: A -
2021 2020
—B-—fF —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets IEMBENE E 4,102 1,093
Current assets MENEE 12,998 16,389
17,100 17,482
All of the trade and other receivables that are classified as BN BEAERBEEZ RIKERNE
current assets are expected to be recovered or recognised as b, FE U FR TE FE HR A — £ (A Uk [B] sk R 22
expense within one year. RFAX -
18(a) Trade receivables from third parties 18(a) EWNE=RER

The Group’s sales to coal customers are largely done on
payment in advance basis. For certain well-established
customers, the Group allows an average credit period of
90 days.

The Group grants credit period up to 60 days from
the date of issuance of invoice to its customers from
renewable energy business segment and IT Services
business segment.

REERARKREF 2 HEKED
WBNRAELEEL - S5 TH
BRREZEFPME  AKEAFF
ZFEEEHROX -

AEERTHABLERRESD
BREABBRBEBAIEER
ZIEEMBEHERH AL R
%60RK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EWE R K H b fE R IE ()

18(a) Trade receivables from third parties (continued) 18(a) FEWEE=F E(1E)
Ageing analysis FREZ 2T
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of the KRS R RE - BIRER
trade receivables (presented based on the invoice date), (RBHZHEAZ5)) R0 E a5
net of loss allowance, was as follows: HIEZREEDITIAT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within 30 days 30K 975 2,882
31 - 60 days 31 KE60X 1,437 2,602
61 — 90 days 61 KZE90K 1,328 239
Over 90 days 90K A E 1,044 2,991
4,784 8,714
Less: Loss allowance W B EERE (71) (51)
4,713 8,663
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks BAAEEEG 2 EERE N E
and loss allowance for trade and other receivables W B TR N E A R W SR IE 2 S 1E
is included in Note 32 to the consolidated financial B2 BRI EH PR A B HRRMT T
statements. 32
18(b) Guaranteed profit compensation receivables 18(b) FE YRR BRI ERRIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Vendor of NEFIN Group FEEREEES 22 435
Vendor of Harbour Group (Note 15) /85 EE 75 (HizF15) 2,538 2,187
2,560 2,622
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

19.

20.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks (the “Banks”) in the Mainland
China (the “Derecognised Bills”), to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers
with a total carrying amount in aggregate of approximately
HK$5,589,000 (2020: Nil). The Derecognised Bills will mature
in one to six months after the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
Mainland China, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the Banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills,
because it is remote for the Banks to default the payment.
Therefore, it derecognised the full carrying amounts of the
Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure to loss arising from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted
cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills equal to their
carrying amounts.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from
the Continuing Involvement, during the year or cumulatively.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed with a bank in the
Mainland China, the amounts represent bank balances in the
bank in the Mainland China maintained solely for the purpose
of settlement of outstanding interest-bearing borrowings and
are restricted for use by the Group for any other purposes. The
restricted bank balances are denominated in RMB and carried
interest at prevailing market rates. As at 31 March 2021, the
respective borrowings were fully settled and the restricted bank
balances were released by the bank.

sk

20.

HESHEE
RN-E-_—F=A=+—H A&EEH
PHEHETHENEZBRERNMIRIT
(MRITDEHN B TRBER( &I
BRER]ETEE  UEMEMZ
SHERIREAES $/5495,589,000
BIL(ZE_2F - \)ZENHER -
RIFERERBARE BRI RE —
ZNE AR - RIBEFHEAMEE
5 MIRITHE RS R - AR IEERE
BREEASRSERBERE(FE
EFEML] - ARBEEZERE AR
IRITHARA R AT M RIE - RS
lEL%E%”t%%EFZ@K%
DR N B o FHilE - EEKIETER
BIEREBEREERNER CEH
BE@{E KEIF)TU%X.ZXJJ:T] e
B2RBEESEAURERZEZRIE
BREEZARMIRBE REMERKIE
KZmARR HERZEREZE
[EIRERE

BHE-Z-_—FR=-_F=_FTF=H
=t+—HIFE  AEBWEREE
ﬂtﬁMTFMEﬁMEHW 55
B WEBERRBFEESATLF
Ejiﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁo

ZIRFIRITERR
RIFEFPBR—FRITEEZER
Wik - ZESIETRAMEITZR

ERBEREBENEMEEM
ﬁ% KEIT B AEE M E B
#® o IBHIRITEBIUARESEL
BRRITMGHEFE - RZTE=Z—F
—A=+—8" ' &E> E*%ﬁﬁ
MER7TE BB ISR 1T 45
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$204,079,000 (2020: approximately
HK$161,366,000) comprised bank balances and cash held by
the Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The bank balances and bank deposits
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.68%
(2020: 0.01% to 2.60%) per annum.

21.

HeERBREEEEH

AEB 2R ERREEBEEE Y
204,079,000 L (ZZE=ZFF : 4
161,366,000 7T) © BIEAEEFS
ZHRTEBEBESUANRRESEAAZ
EASKAAZ ETR - RITER R
RITEZIRN F0.01%E1.68%( —F
ZZTFE 0.01%E2.60%) 2 TG EF
TEHE o

Bank balances IR1THESR

Short term deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less RETFR
Cash on hand FERE
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEEE

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

REERS=EAARZ

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZTTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
173,022 95,746
30,749 64,365
308 h255
204,079 161,366

FEERBETNIIARE

Re
B %LA?I\ZE%EHEZ%KIE =

KR
s

e T

HK$ BT
uss$ ET

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had balances amounted to
approximately RMB131,535,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$156,130,000 (2020: approximately RMB142,901,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$157,320,000), that were
placed with banks in the Mainland China. Remittance of funds
out of the Mainland China is subject to the exchange controls
imposed by the Mainland China government.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
38,091 68,350

1 22

NRZTE-_—F=A=+—H ' &&
EEFERTPBEAMBEITZERD A
A B # 131,535,000 7t ( 48 & 7 4
156,130,000 L) (ZZE=FF : &
A R #142,901,0007C © B E R4
157,320,000/ 7T ) © [ {1/ B (i35
INZEBEEBZFRANBBFETZI
PEE HIFTAR PR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. BENERREMENKIE
At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade RS HIRE A RS - BB (IRRE
payables (presented based on the invoice date) is as follows: REZA) ZBRER D ATAO T «
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Within 90 days COPNA 11,583 715
91 — 180 days 91 RXE180K 7,888 1,488
181 — 365 days 181 KE365K 14,355 3,993
Over 1 year HBiE1E 6,712 2,840
Trade payables JERTE 40,538 9,036
Contract liabilities BHaE 22(a) 1,328 2,023
Government levies payable FENBREE
— Economic development fees in — [ B R b A
coal resources areas BRE 28,505 26,819
- Others —HAth 481 445
Accrued expenses JEEHE A 6,451 5,813
Payables for construction-in-progress 7 &2 T 2 & {~t 218 175 8,952
Other payables ) AN 3,593 1,841
81,071 54,929
All of the trade and other payables that are classified as current B EARBABCENEREE
liabilities are expected to be settled within one year. M RIBTERT RN —F RS ©
The average credit period of purchases of goods is up to 180 FERR s FHEER&E180K - K
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in SEEHEMERRERBER - BR
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit BN FIEMNMEERRAEE -
timeframe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
22(a) Contract liabilities
The movements (excluding those arising from increases
and decreases both occurred within the same year) of
contract liabilities from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

At the beginning of the reporting AR HA#)

period
Receipts in advance TEU AR
Recognised as revenue R AW

At the end of the reporting period P EREHIZR

The Group applies the practical expedient and does
not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one
year or less.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT

B R EAtb e FROR (5)

20 EHEE

HEZZ - —FR-_Z-_FTF=
A=1T—HILFE - B8UBR
HERE1ISREFPENELENE
HNEBEEHN(TEERFTELERN
IR S B EE) )T

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT

2,023 564
1,328 2,023
(2,023) (564)
1,328 2,023

AEBRATIRETE « Lm
BEEMRE R ENENA
—ERANZ B TROEL A
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

23. MINING RIGHT PAYABLES

23. ERERERIE

Current mED
Non-current FERED

Pursuant to the terms of the Transfer Agreement relating to
purchase of Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine for a term of 30 years from
August 2019 to August 2049 as set out in Note 13(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, the consideration totaling
approximately RMB160,978,000, which shall be settled in cash
and paid by Kaiyuan Company to Xinjiang Land Department in
fifteen instalments:

(i) the first instalment in an amount of approximately
RMB32,200,000 shall be paid within 30 days upon
signing of the Transfer Agreement;

(i)  the second to fourteenth instalments in an amount of
approximately RMB9,200,000 each shall be paid before
20 November of every year from 2020 to 2032; and

(i)  the last instalment in an amount of approximately
RMB9,178,000 shall be paid before 20 November 2033.

The amounts due are unsecured and interest-free. The carrying
amount is determined based on the present value of the future
cash flows stated in Transfer Agreement discounted using the
effective interest rate of 8.47% per annum with reference to
valuation report issued by ValQuest.

2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FTET FHET
3,901 3,348
82,522 80,155
86,423 83,503

RIRER G B 75 R 2= B 53 1 3ii) ATk 5 8
BECBAINREE HEihz (T8
AT NAFNABRZE_ZTOAFN
AIEAB=+F)2&% - RIEBELD
A AR#160,978,0007T © #EHEVEA
Ao T REIER L ERERS
1

() SF—HLFELH ARE32,200,000
LR ERE H R EE0R A
=

iy FZETHHSHHOARE
9,200,000 TR —ZE=_FFH
—E-_FHREFt+—A=1
HRTZ R &

(i) HE—HEBHAREQ,178,000
TR _E==F+—HA=+H
BISZA o

e AEARRRE - RE T
SERFPETELZHERS  ER
ERERFRNEBA47%RH 2 HE
EMHAKRERELREET -
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

24. tEEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T

Current portion RENI D
Interest-bearing borrowings, secured zHEfEE - HiKHF

The interest-bearing borrowings with a clause in their terms that
give the banks an overriding right to demand for repayment
without notice at their sole discretion are classified as current
liabilities even though the directors of the Company do not
expect that the bank would exercise their right to demand
repayment.

As at 31 March 2021, the interest-bearing borrowings are
secured by:

(i) mining right with carrying amount of approximately
HK$132,175,000 as set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements (2020: restricted
bank balances with carrying amount of approximately
HK$73,760,000 as set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements);

(i)  unlimited personal guarantee given by a director of a
subsidiary; and/or

(i) limited government guarantee under SME Loan
Guarantee Scheme.

The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable from within two
years to five years since their inception. The average effective
interest rates on the interest-bearing borrowings were ranging
from 5.1% - 9.1% (2020: 4.9% - 8.0%) per annum. All the
interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in HK$ and RMB
(2020: RMB).
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60,636 65,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

(@

(GY)

25. BAK (&

RS EE

AEEZFEERE @D 2F
MR FEREGHREN 76
HER - ARBRFEARER =S

in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s B 2 BEFHIBHIINAT
individual components of equity during the year are set
out below:
The Company P N/NC |
Exchange
Share  translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
KiaE EXfiE  BABY  ZHER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL TAL TAL TAL
(Note i) (Note ) (Note vi
(Bitzk) GiR) (Bitzk)
Asat 1 Aprl 2019 RZE-NENA-H 191,034 12,102 128,013 (330,941) 708
Profit for the year FERgEH - - - 59,604 50,604
Total other comprehensive income:  Hft2 Fkis#E%E
Item that will not be reclassified TEEH FZEm
fo profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HEARATEERE A
the Company’s financial statements EHEMEAER
to presentation currency - (4,856) - - (4,856)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2 AR LE = (4,836) = 59,604 54,748
As at 31 March 2020 WZE-E£=f=1-H 191,534 7,246 128,013 (271,337) 55,456
As at 1 Apri 2020 RZE-TFNA-A 191,534 7,246 128,013 (271,337) 55,456
Loss for the year FNER - - = (48,502) (48,502)
Total other comprehensive loss: A2 EEEAE
Item that will ot be reclassified TeEN T HEZED
to profit or loss BH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #EARTEERE A
the Company’s financial statements EHEM AR
to presentation currency - 9,118 - - 9,118
Total comprehensive loss for the year X2 EKELE = 9,118 = (48,502) (39,384)
As at 31 March 2021 WZE--%£=f=1-H 191,534 16,364 128,013 (319,839) 16,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
Movements in components of equity (continued)

@

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium
The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from the acquisition of the additional
equity interest of subsidiaries in prior years. It represents the
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets of
the subsidiaries attributable to the additional interest at the
dates of acquisition and the fair value of consideration paid by
the Group.

Statutory reserves

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Mainland China regulations, all of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are required to
transfer part of their profit after tax to the statutory surplus
reserve, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions
are made. The amounts of the transfers are subject to the
approval of the boards of directors of these companies in
accordance with their articles of association.

Specific reserve for maintenance and production funds
Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China regulations, the
Group is required to transfer maintenance and production
funds at fixed rates based on relevant bases to a specific
reserve account. The maintenance and production funds
can be utilised when expenses or capital expenditures on
production maintenance and safety measures are incurred.
The amount of maintenance and production funds utilised
would be transferred from the specific reserve account to
retained earnings.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of functional currency
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

25. IRAK f#H (&)

(@ Movements in components of equity (continued) (a) FEZZPHEE(E)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (88)
(v)  Special reserve (v) 4RI E
The amount in special reserve represents the difference BREESBEAERNE—FK
between the consideration paid for acquiring a further 49% EBEHNEZ49%BREZEHRK
equity interest in Star Fortune and the decrease in the carrying BHENESE F—FIFTRE
amount of the non-controlling interests of Star Fortune in a wAREERRER . Z5 -
previous year.
(vi)  Contributed surplus (vi) BARER
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KRB ZBABBRIEEARA A
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s TR AR BTG M
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the BOIZARRRNEE &
companies being acquired and the value of net assets of the Tk BB AR RN AL B E
underlying companies acquired at the time of the Group’s —NWNAEFREHELTENTE
reorganisation in preparation for its listing in 1995. Under the HRE 2 EEFEZEZRE - BE
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make BRE-NN—FQRRE ' K
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus in ANRAIEETEBRLATEHEAR
certain circumstances. EREERRIEH DK ©
(b) Authorised and issued share capital (b) FEERBEBITHRA
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
SRMEE0.10E T
ZEBREE K]
HK$'000
FHAT
Authorised: ETE
Balance as at 1 April 2019, RZZFE-—hLFMNA—A -
31 March 2020 and —E-EF=H
31 March 2021 =t+t—HRZZE=—F
ZA=T—RZ#&H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Balance as at 1 April 2019, RZZE—-hLFMNA—A -
31 March 2020, and —E-TF=R
31 March 2021 =t—HRZZE-_—F
ZA=T—RZ#&H 765,373,584 76,537

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the
Company’s residual assets.

EBEFEABRBRTREIR
2B WAITRARBERELE
BRI —R 2R - AE
BRAEDBARAZRIREET
HmHFERFE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its
shareholders.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly
review and manage its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders’ returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic condition. In view of this,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend or the issue of new debt. No
changes were made in the objectives or policies during
the year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, total debt
represented interest-bearing borrowings, mining
right payables, promissory notes, lease liabilities and
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at FVPL.
Equity comprises all components of equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Capital management (continued)

The debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 March 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

Interest-bearing borrowings

Mining right payables

Promissory notes

Lease liabilities

Convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at FVPL

Total debt

Total equity

Debt-to-equity ratio

25. IRAK f#H (&)

(c) EBEAXREHE(E)
KRB FR-_F-_FTF=A
= t+t—HAZERBELRERNT
2021 2020
—EB--F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
STEREE 60,636 65,345
FE A ERAEAE SR IE 86,423 83,503
A EIR 2,400 4,611
HERE 2,185 3,238
T B A EYRIL
BaANEREZEaRE s
AR ES 171,283 146,426
wafE 322,927 303,123
B 149,583 153,065
B AR 2.16 1.98

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

AR REEHEARIGER
BISNEBIEINZ BAIRTE 2 R ©
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 14 March 2008, the Company issued zero-coupon
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 to Ascent Goal simultaneously upon
completion of the issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each. The bond was denominated in HK$
and entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
bond and its settlement date on 13 March 2011 in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.20 (subject to
adjustments) per share. The shares to be issued and allotted
upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue. If the
convertible bond has not been converted, the Company should
repay the principal amount of the outstanding convertible bond
to Ascent Goal at 13 March 2011.

On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a deed of
amendment with Ascent Goal (“1st extended Convertible
Bond”), to extend the maturity date of the convertible bond
for 36 months and the conversion period will accordingly be
extended for 36 months from 14 March 2011 (date of extension)
to 13 March 2014. Apart from the extension of the maturity date
and the conversion period, all terms of the convertible bond
remain unchanged from the original terms.

Following the change of functional currency from HK$ to
RMB, the directors of the Company are of the view that the
convertible bond upon extension of maturity date (“Convertible
Bond”) was no longer convertible at a fixed for fixed relationship.
Accordingly, the Convertible Bond was designated as a financial
liability at FVPL in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into a second deed
of amendment with Ascent Goal (“2nd extended Convertible
Bond”), to extend the maturity date of 1st extended Convertible
Bond for 36 months and the conversion period will accordingly
be extended for 36 months from 14 March 2014 (date of
extension) to 13 March 2017 (“2nd extended Maturity Date”).
Apart from the extension of maturity date and the conversion
period, all terms of the convertible bond remain unchanged from
the original terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. WRARES (&)
The 2nd extended Maturity Date was considered to be a HARE R BRES 2 BER

substantial modification of terms of 1st extended Convertible
Bond as the discounted present value of the cash flows of
the 2nd extended Convertible Bond was more than 10%
different from the discounted present value of the cash flows
of the outstanding 1st extended Convertible Bond prior to
the extension of maturity date. As such, the 1st extended
Convertible Bond was derecognised and the 2nd extended
Convertible Bond was recognised. The fair value of the 2nd
extended Convertible Bond as at 14 March 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$200,000,000.

On 25 January 2017, the Company entered into a third deed
of amendment with Ascent Goal (“3rd extended Convertible
Bond”), to further extend the maturity date of the 2nd extended
Convertible Bond for 36 months and the conversion period
will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 13 March
2017 (date of extension) to 13 March 2020 (“3rd extended
Maturity Date”). Apart from the extension of maturity date and
the conversion period, all terms of the convertible bond remain
unchanged from the original terms.

The 3rd extended Maturity Date was considered to be
a substantial modification of terms of the 2nd extended
Convertible Bond as the discounted present value of the cash
flows of the 3rd extended Convertible Bond was more than 10%
different from the discounted present value of the outstanding
2nd extended Convertible Bond prior to the extension of
maturity date. As such, the 2nd extended Convertible Bond
was derecognised and the 3rd extended Convertible Bond
was recognised. The fair value of the 3rd extended Convertible
Bond as at 14 March 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$264,904,000.

ECMRREBBRY B LR W
RITHEE— mL@Tﬁkf%Zﬁi
MEEMBIREI0%RN L ME=
AR EA R AR RS — mL%T@&
BHBRCERNER - Bt - B4&1E
RS —RCH AT MR ESF WL ERE
ZIRGEHATRRE S o B IREERA
BREFR_ZE—NF=A+HAZ
NF{EX) A200,000,00078 7T ©

R-ZZE—+F—HA=-+HB ' AR
HEZITVE=—MEIRE(E=

EEIRTR R E SR |) - A SR :mk%
AR E A2 BIHI B — P IEHIS6E

H mEBnRgaRK_—F—tF=
A+=RCEHBEH)EMIEAE—
ZTF=A+=B([E=REHT
HE 1) - REREHAE REREH -
FT B AR IR B 7 IRFIR R B IR 1

HAREZRERARRESF 2SR
ECAMRRERBE H B LR 2
RITEFE ZRERAIRRESF RS
MECBFIREI0%NA E » WE=X
EHAEIER A #5148 5 58 — IR I HR r] #2 A%
BRGERZENER - Bt - BE&RI1E
ﬁ%%—AL%T%%E%iﬁE%
RIEER AT E % - 8 = RIEHR T
@k%%m_f +tF=ZA+mAZ
NFEL) AE264,904,000/8 7T ©
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

On 3 February 2020, the Company entered into a fourth deed
of amendment with Ascent Goal (“4th extended Convertible
Bond”), to further extend the maturity date of the 3rd extended
Convertible Bond for 36 months and the conversion period
will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 13 March
2020 (date of extension) to 13 March 2023 (“4th extended
Maturity Date”). Apart from the extension of maturity date and
the conversion period, all terms of the convertible bond remain
unchanged from the original terms.

The 4th extended Maturity Date was considered to be
a substantial modification of terms of the 3rd extended
Convertible Bond as the discounted present value of the cash
flows of the 4th extended Convertible Bond was more than 10%
different from the discounted present value of the outstanding
3rd extended Convertible Bond prior to the extension of
maturity date. As such, the 3rd extended Convertible Bond
was derecognised and the 4th extended Convertible Bond
was recognised. The fair value of the 4th extended Convertible
Bond as at 14 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$159,163,000. An extinguishment gain of approximately
HK$40,837,000 had been recognised in profit and loss during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

The 4th extended Convertible Bond was valued by the directors
of the Company with reference to valuation report issued by
ValQuest as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

AR & 35 (4E)

N-ZZ-_TF_A=H  AARHEE
hJI%Ethﬁ#U%EML%
ATHRRES ) - ABE = IR EE AT
RRf&ES 2 BB A — P HAS6 @ A
mEmEEEY T _ZF= A
+T=ZA(EHEHEHBEAE—F
==+ =8B FmIEHEH
Bl) - BRIERDIHBE REHBEAN -
BB EFGERIRR B ERERFT

%4
= °

AR EMNRLERA R ES 2RSSR
ECMRARERBY B LR 2
RITEE = RER AR EFE R
REI0% A E - BB REEEIH B
WARBE = REH AR EFER 2
ERENR - At ERIEEREZR
JE HA AT 2 % 8 25 N0 W AR 56 PH R JE HA R
B ES o R AR EHF R
TE-EF=RAFTWAZAFENE
159,163,000 - HE—_ZT T F =
A=+—BI-FE ' #40,837,000/%
TTEBWRE B ER -

FOREH R BB EFEARRES
DERPETR_ZE_—FR-_T=
TFE=ZA=t+—HMHAZAERS
EITHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. ATBRES (&)
The movements of the 4th and 3rd extended Convertible Bond FUR KB = IR R B H A F
for the year are set out below: N2 EBHIINT :
4th 4th
extended extended
Convertible Convertible
Bond Bond
SE MR AEHA PRI
ARRES AR ES
2021 2020
—B--F e ke 23
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
As at 1 April 2020/14 March 2020 R-BE-ZFFWA—QH/
“Z-TE=A+IA 146,426 159,163
Fair value change charged/(credited) A/ (GEA)BRZ AT ER
to the profit or loss 24,857 (12,737)
(Gain)/Loss on translation of 4th extended  #& LASME 5HE 7 5 0K E 2R AT #2 A%
Convertible Bond denominated in a EE BN EE 2 (Wzs),/BiR
foreign currency into the functional
currency (11,830) 2,549
Exchange adjustment arising on translation & g8 E# A 25| SRS EA W
of functional currency to presentation SFAHMEEKRES ZE N AR
currency and recorded in other
comprehensive income 11,830 (2,549)
Balance at end of the year FREH 171,283 146,426
Analysed for reporting as: R =
Non-current liabilities ERHAE 171,283 146,426

Difference between carrying amount and  BREEERFIHIS5E 2 =58 ¢

maturity amount:
4th extended Convertible Bond at fair BATETE 2 E R ER TR

value &% 171,283 146,426
Amount payable on maturity NE|HASFER & %8 (200,000) (200,000)

(28,717) (63,574)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—H=A=1+—HILLEE

26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. WRRES(E)
3rd
extended
Convertible
Bond
E= R
AR ES
2020
—ECTF
HK$ 000
FHAT
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFMNA—H 217,869
Fair value change credited to the profit or loss FABR AT EED (17,869)
Gain on translation of 3rd extended Convertible BE D INERHE 2 E = IREH
Bond denominated in a foreign currency into the  AJ IR ER BINEEEH 2 Wi
functional currency (9,351)
Exchange adjustment arising on translation of BENMEE ARSI ERES
functional currency to presentation currency and  WEt AR R EIES 2
recorded in other comprehensive income 0E i e 9,351
Derecognition of maturity on RZE-EF= A+=H3 K
13 March 2020 KRILTER (200,000)
As at 13 March 2020 and 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZEF=F+=BK
“E-TF=-A=+—H -
None of the 3rd and 4th extended Convertible Bond had been HE_ZT_—FR-_Z_TF=H
converted into ordinary shares of the Company during the years =t+—HLFE BEEFZAREN
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. RIER AR E S EERRARF
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

27. PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION 27. E3F - EERRIBER I EE

AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

HK$'000

FHT

As at 1 April 2019 RZZ—NFHHA—B 2,870

Exchange difference b =% (144)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF=A=+—"HBK

—E_TFA—H 2,726

Exchange difference MEHZ5E 215

As at 31 March 2021 R-—E-_—fF=HA=+—H 2,941

Mining activities may result in land subsidence or damage,
which could lead to losses to the residents of the mining areas.
Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China regulations, the Group
is required to make compensation payments to the residents
for their losses resulting from land subsidence or damage, or to
restore the mining areas back to certain acceptable conditions.

Under existing legislation, the directors of the Company believe
that there are no probable liabilities that will have a material
adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Group. The Mainland China government, however, has
moved and may move further towards the adoption of more
stringent environmental standards. Environmental liabilities
are subject to considerable uncertainties which affect the
Group’s ability to estimate the ultimate cost of remediation
efforts. These uncertainties include: (i) the exact nature and
extent of the contamination at various sites including, but not
limited to, coal mines and land development areas, whether
operating, closed or sold, (i) the extent of required cleanup
efforts, (iii) varying costs of alternative remediation strategies, (iv)
changes in environmental remediation requirements, and (v) the
identification of new remediation sites.

REREB A REEEUE TRER -
femA<cHAFE EREXEX -
RIBETEAMARER - AEE AL
WETRREXBEHERENZERR
BRARRELREE - SFHFRBRIRK
BEE—E ARSI -

BIEBITE » AAREZHETS
B A (T {A] 1] A T AN 52 B B AS A OS SRAR
BEEEEAEETEZEE - R
i PERERATE &Y A Al fE i —
FEEE RIS ZRRIZE - RIRE(T
WRAEREZTEERZ WAt
FEAEBGFRKRRIBHEEREAZ
e o IWETHERERERRE : (()RTR
I (BIRETRREESR « Bk
BHE ZES MR EE) KRS
REYIMEERIRE (iR ERMEE
TEZIRE @ (i)STEE MR A
RIEM TR (VREREREZE
M R(W)FEE T B RV RS M 2
HoBf o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

27.

28.

PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS (continued)

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
clean up costs has been determined by the directors of the
Company based on their past experience and best estimate of
future expenditure by discounting the expected expenditures
to their net present value. However, in so far as the effect on
the land and the environment from current mining activities
becomes apparent in future periods, the estimate of the
associated costs may be subject to revision in the future. The
amounts provided in relation to close down, restoration and
environmental clean up costs are reviewed at least annually
based upon the facts and circumstances available at the time
and the provisions are updated accordingly.

PROMISSORY NOTES

27.

B EBRER
(&)

KRR EFSERERSEBELH Y
RRFAZ 2 HEMET - BBASTEHR
THREEREFEMETCHER - &
BRIRNBENAEE - A - RE
BRIFIEE 8T XZiiﬂ&f&iﬁ%é

B AEE

RAKHEESRE H'J*Hﬁﬁﬁk$2
ERTRBERARRELIER] - ZLEAET -

1§§E&faiﬁxﬁ@ﬁ$a+h2ﬁﬁ§9
BEREEREEZCFERBAME
B - AR FESE R o

At the beginning of the reporting R4 BARI G 1A R

period

Issued during the reporting period R4 HAR 2 3417
Repayment of a promissory note  BiE#& 7 EE

Accrued effective interest expenses ETEFEF S
Carrying value at the end of the R¥R&EHIBERIF 2 REE
reporting period
Face value, at the end of the AR HARS 45 SRS 2 TR
reporting period
Analysed by: DA
Non-current liabilities EREAE
Current liabilities mENAE

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

28. AHEE

2021 2020

:g: - ﬂi —_F= E'E

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B sE FEx FET
4,611 —

(i) - 6,764
(i) (2,400) (2,400)
189 247

(iii) 2,400 4,611
2,400 4,800

- 2,211

2,400 2,400

2,400 4,611




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
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28. PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

U)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 3 promissory
notes with principal amount of HK$2,400,000 each
(“Promissory Note 1”, “Promissory Note 2” and
“Promissory Note 3”, together “Promissory Notes”)
were issued by the Company to the Vendor of
Harbour Group as part of the acquisition consideration
upon the completion of the Group’s acquisition of
Harbour Group on 23 April 2019 with a fair value of
approximately HK$6,764,000 (aggregate principal
amount of HK$7,200,000) based on the professional
valuation performed by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited.
The Promissory Notes bear no interest. The maturity
dates of Promissory Note 1, Promissory Note 2 and
Promissory Note 3 are 15 business days after the
audited consolidated financial statements are issued by
the auditors of the Harbour Group for the years ended
31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively.
The effective interest rates of the Promissory Note
1, Promissory Note 2 and Promissory Note 3 were
determined to be approximately 0%, 6.65% and 6.78%
per annum as at acquisition date (i.e. 23 April 2019).

The Group fully repaid the Promissory Note 1 with
principal amount of HK$2,400,000 as it was matured
during the year ended 31 March 2020. In May 2020, the
Group fully repaid the Promissory Note 2 with principal
amount of HK$2,400,000 as it was matured and
approximately HK$2,187,000 was settled by offsetting
the guaranteed profit compensation receivables during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The effective interest
rates of the Promissory Note 3 was determined to be
approximately 8.10% as at 31 March 2020.

Subsequent to 31 March 2021, the Group fully repaid
the Promissory Note 3 with principal amount of
HK$2,400,000 as it was mature and settled by offsetting
the guaranteed profit compensation receivables.

28. AL EE(1E)

U

(i)

REE-_Z-_ZF=A=+—H
IHFE  RAEEE=-ZT—AN
FNA-+=HEKKEEEE
B - ARRRBREFTHER
REMER 2 B ME - MBES
BESET-MASEIE
2,400,000% 7T 2 # H 4% ([ %
HEB1]  [EAHLER2 R [ %
HER3] Sl R AERE]) -
H R F{EHI6,764,000/8 T (A%
#2758 47,200,000/87T) * 1EAED
DUWERE - AHAZENFE ©
EEEE - R ER2 RN
ZEIZEHB SR ABEEE

V@%%ﬁﬁﬁi_? —N\%F -
—NER_ZF_FFt_H

;+— H 1k = EF 8 2 L\|izsz
BB HEREBISELEHER -
A ER  AHAEBRONERE
B B AR R BEA(BI =
Z-hENA-+=R)H7l%
BFFLH0% - 6.65% K 6.78% &
= o

REEEBEEENEE-_S =
TEZA=F+—HILFERE
N4 8 /52,400,000 TT 2 # K,
ZE1 R E-_TFRA K
EERBEENHE-ZE=_F
FZA=Z+—HIEFEEH -
N4 %8 /52,400,000 7T 2 & 3
ZE2 -HE-_T-_ZTF=R
:JrfEliiF NEEIEHIE
WAR & M BRI A EE LD
2,187,00087C - R_ZE - F

ZA=1+—H AREEIZE
BF B REE BHIS.10% °

RZZE=Z—F=A=+—H% "
7N £ (B 3 81 PR UNUIR 3B 0% A w8
RENEHEERNRA 2 AESER
2,400,000/ 7T 2 #H, FHE3 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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29. LEASES 29. HE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Right-of-use assets (Note 12) FREEE(ME12)
Leased properties HEYZE 2,033 2,777
Motor vehicles RE 44 218
2,077 2,995
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHEIT
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current &) 1,836 1,905
Non-current IERED 349 1,333
2,185 3,238
In addition to the information disclosed in Note 7 and Note 12 AR A IS RR M 7 MM s 12 I R
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the ZERI  BE_E_—FR-FT_
following amounts relating to leases during the years ended 31 EFE-A=t-RLMEFEAEHE
March 2021 and 2020: WAL TNE@EEE 2 IE -

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHET

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FAEEEZIFEE R

assets
Leased properties HEWZ 1,869 1,330
Motor vehicles b2 174 347
2,043 1,677
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March BE_Z-_—F=—A=+—HLHFE
2021 was approximately HK$3,344,000 (2020: approximately ZHAEHE SR A% 53,344,00058
HK$3,177,000). TL(ZZEZFF : #3,177,000/7L) °
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29. LEASES (continued) 29. HE (&)
Commitments under leases HEAIE
As at 31 March 2021, the Group was committed to lease RZZE-—F=A=+—H " ~&£E
contracts in relation to leased properties that have not yet MEEMETLZEBHESY %5
commenced. The related lease payments that were not paid BREAFASG RETEARFTEHE
and not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities were EAERNMZEERENTYA
approximately HK$65,000 (2020: approximately HK$367,000). 65,000/ L (ZF=FF : 493867,000

HBIT) °

Lease liabilities:

Present Present

value value

Lease of lease Lease of lease
payments  payments payments payments
HERF™ HERT

HEMNRK ZHBE HERR ZHE
2021 2021 2020 2020
TEC-F ZEC-F Il
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx T THT FAT

Amount payable: FERTRIE
Within one year —ER 1,910 1,836 2,032 1,905
More than one year, —F AL - BTER
but not exceeding two years RS 353 349 1,365 1,333
2,263 2,185 3,397 3,238
Less: future finance charges W RRBEER (78) - (159) -
Total lease liabilities HEaEEE 2,185 2,185 3,238 3,238
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EERIE
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax asset recognised and BAABARSHEZERRETEER
its movements during the current and prior reporting periods: EFIBEENRESBHHOT -
Mining
Accrued right Tax
expenses payables losses Total
EstER EAEEE Big st

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
TAT TAET TAT TAT

As at 1 April 2019 RZE—NFMNA—H 6,826 - - 6,826
Exchange realignment I H A (338) - - (3398)
As at 31 March 2020 and N_E-FTF=H4
1 April 2020 =+t—Hk
—ZE_TFHA—H 6,488 - - 6,488
Exchange realignment & H 507 69 50 626
Credited to profit or ST AFREZE
loss for the year - 2,361 1,686 4,047
As at 31 March 2021 R-EB-—F=H
Sp=[8 6,995 2,430 1,736 11,161
Deferred tax liabilities B IREE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised ERRBAREHE EEREEZER
and their movements during the current and prior reporting ERIBEEEREZEHINT
periods:
Other
Intangible temporary
assets  Inventories differences Total
BYEE RE HtERER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NEMA—-AR 4,615 589 = 5,204
Exchange realignment B 5 5% (208) 28) = (236)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e - - 685 685
Credited to profit or loss for the year st AFRIER (89) (92) (263) (444)
As at 31 March 2020 and RZE-EF=RA=1+—HK

1 April 2020 “Z-ZFNA—A 4,318 469 422 5,209
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 241 27 - 268
(Credited)/Charged to profit or GGtA)/FIANENER

loss for the year (2,345) (309) 3 (2,651)
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—-f#=H=+-H 2,214 187 425 2,826
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30.
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

IEER R ()

RERBOME - ETECHBAEE
RABERGEEFHIRAKRAEH -
R S B WM 5 WIRER RS

balances for financial reporting purposes:

DTUT

Net deferred tax assets AR TB & B /R R
Net deferred tax liabilities EETIEE &S

Under the EIT Law of the Mainland China, withholding
tax is payable on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by Mainland China subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the accumulated taxable profits of
the Mainland China subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$150,068,000 (2020: approximately HK$115,582,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Upon recognition of the preferential tax treatment by the
relevant tax authority in the Mainland China during the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Group has tax losses arising in the
Mainland China of approximately RMB38,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$44,949,000), which will be expired in 2024.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has tax losses arising in the
Mainland China of approximately RMB5,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,746,000), which is probable that such
tax losses can be offset against future taxable profit of the
respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years and shall be
expired in 2024.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses arising in the Mainland China
of approximately RMB33,126,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,203,000), because it is not probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the
benefits therefrom. The unrecognised tax losses will be expired
in 2024.

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$000
TERT FHET
9,113 2,065
(778) (786)
8,335 1,279

REFRAMPEMRBHE =T
SENF—A—HBE - A E A
B2 mph E T B ER 2 5% Bl i 2 R 2 A%
BEUTETR - BB B At B
AR R R A EE 2 G E
#9150,068,0008 TL( —ZE =T 4F : 4
115,582,000/ 7T ) INér & B IS R 1
PIEEFRIEE A - RSB
BOoOEREHE2 RN BEABEYRE
EERA AT 8 RN A AT RESE[E] ©

BREE-_T-_—F=A=+—H1It
FEABP RN IBRENERR
BiFdE - AEENFE AT IE
B a4 A AR #38,976,0007T (FHE R
4944,949,000/7T) * WEHN —Z =Y
FEHIE] o

N-EBE-—F=A=+—H &X&EE
REEAFEEEY S ARE
5,850,000 7T ( #8 & 7 %7 6,746,000
L) ZEHBEEIEA KSR %A
FAMBARMERT RN - IR A5
FWBR - _EER

RERELEFHIEEE
R-TE-—F=A=+—H K&EH
ARAPBEANHEOTIBEBBEOARE
33,126,000t (#H& 7 438,203,000/
T ERERERIBEE - AAREET
AL AR ERB R M EKEZE R T
W M o RIERZBHIEBESR
ZEPUFEIE] o
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31. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(@ Major non-cash transactions

U

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, dividends of
approximately HK$1,010,000 were settled through
the current accounts with the NCI.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into Transfer Agreement in respect of
intangible assets of Enlarged Kaiyuan Mine with
a total capital value at the inception of mining
right payables of approximately HK$81,231,000
and setting off the non-refundable deposits, non-
refundable deposits received and other payables
of approximately HK$2,351,000, approximately
HK$5,485,000 and approximately HK$1,906,000,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
incurred payables of approximately HK$175,000
(2020: approximately HK$8,952,000) to the
contractor for the addition of construction-in-
progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Promissory
Note 2 with principal amount of HK$2,400,000
was settled by offsetting the guaranteed profit
compensation receivables of approximately
HK$2,187,000, and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$213,000 was settled by cash.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

31. HibE &

N g=W -~
RERFER

(@ EXRFREXRZH

)

(i)

BHE2_ZT_ZZF=A7
=S+—BLEFE D
1,010,000 7C Z % B T3E
BIEERERSNERER
TLAGEE -

BHE_ZT_ZTF=A
=+—HIEFE  £&EE
MR R IEE 2 B
BEFHERE B
RERRBEVNIRBER
& B & #9 81,231,000 /&
TC - WA REBIRS L
2,351,000 7t * B W T
Al iR 2 % € % 5,485,000
78T K B b BB A BRIE A
1,906,000/ 7T °

BHE-_ZT - —F=H
=+—RLFE ~&E
MAREERIRELRE
- 73 B 78 3 TR 49 175,000
BL(ZEZ_ZFF + 4
8,952,000/ 7T ) °

HE-_ZT=-—F=AH”
=t+—BLEFE X%
%8 /& 2,400,000 7 T, 7
HEBE2EBRAMELY
2,187,000/ 7T 2 FE R 75
wmAEERIEEN - S5
#9213,000 TR AR 218
o
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31. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31. HtRE&REFE (&)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEITBEENEEEEH
activities
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEEREMEETHNEEED)
financing activities are as follows: BT

Non-cash changes

Fhess

Translation ~ Translation
of from  Offset with
Additions convertible  functional  guaranteed
As at of property, bondinto  currency to profit Asat

1 April plantand  Change in Rent  functional  presentation compensation Iterest 31 March

2020 equipment fairvalue  concessions currency currency  receivables expenses 2021

B ¢ FEhX BETR  BEME  RWRE i
k23 it EER AVE RE% L] EHRE &~

BA-B ; Ey 2% HEEE AUEER  25IER FEEE  ASEX ZA=t-A

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS'000

ThR ThT ThR ThR ThR Th ThR ThR ThR ThT

Year ended BE-R--£2

31 March 2021 Zt-HLEE
Interest-bearing borrowings 3 & fEE 65,345 (9,380) - - - - 4671 - - 60,636
Lease libilties fEEE 3238 (2,154) 1,008 - (20) - 28 - - 2185
Convertible bond EEBRATENG TR

designated as fnancill ~~ BHAREZARAR

lbiites at FVPL L ES 146426 - - 24,857 - (11,830) 11,830 - -1
Promissory notes RESE 4611 (213) - - - = - (2,181) 189 2,400

7960 (1,747 1,008 24,857 QO (180 165 2.187) 189 26504

Annual Report 2020/21 4%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B 18 3R R M
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—H=A=1+—HILLEE

200

31. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31. HitBRE&REEE (&)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) METBELENEERZE
activities (continued) (&)
Non-cash changes
Fiesy
Transion ~ Trandafion ~ Gain arising
Adaitions of from from
fhrough ~ Addtions convertble  functionl  mocfficaion~~ Issuance
Asat Net  Adusiment  acquistion  of property, bondinto ~ currencyto of of Asat
1 Apr cash  ontanstion of  plantand  Changen  functional  presentatn  convertble  promissory Inferest 31 March
2019 fows ©HKFRS16  subsidiares  equipment  farvae  cumency  curency bond noles  expenses 0
B
3 R BEE BANE RENR BETR  BEUE AEWE R
E-E B Ei6REr  WBAE  HRR  ATE  BBF  £BB  BREAE: i e
BA-B B R e & B9 monEY  HIEE  dE MEE HERR ZA=T-B
HKPO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0O
Tin Tar TEL TR TR T TR TR TR TR TR TR
(Note2)
(W)
Yearended 31 March B2 T TECH
m SH-BLER
Ierest-bearng borowings &8 68,345 (3709) - 4,063 - - - (3354 - B
Lease liabiites fEEE (1422 239 553 1,768 - - - = 3238
Convertble bond ERBRATEARLE
esigneted as fancil BamEE eRER
libilties at FVPL LIERER 27,869 = > = - (30606 6802 6,802 [t0837) - - 146426
Promissoy noles i 40) - . 5 - - Y w4l
26,214 (7531) 239 4616 1768 (30,60 (6802 3448 (40837) 6,764 AT 960
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. €T H
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ ==@mTEHEH
2021 2020
—E2-—F ke Sl 3
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial assets measured HEHEAANGTEZ
at amortised cost: EMEE :
Trade and other receivables B E T E b FE U R IR 11,814 14,410
Restricted bank balances IR HISRIT A5 ER - 73,760
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEMEEE 204,079 161,366
215,893 249,536
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BEATEYBRIEBEA
BRI S REE
Contingent consideration receivables ~ FEU sk AR (E = 6,186
Financial liabilities measured at REBHERATEZ &/
amortised cost: B1& :
Trade and other payables PR &R B R 3RIE 50,757 25,642
Promissory notes EHER 2,400 4,611
Lease liabilities HEAR 2,185 3,238
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 60,636 65,345
Mining right payables JETERIEIE FRIR 86,423 83,503
202,401 182,339
Financial liabilities designated 8 BIE AT EY BRI E
as at FVPL: BaANREze/mAE :
Convertible Bond AR ES 171,283 146,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
contingent consideration receivables, trade and other
receivables, restricted bank balances, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, promissory notes,
lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings, mining right
payables and Convertible Bond. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency expenditures, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors of the Company
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Certain receivables, cash and cash equivalents, payables
and Convertible Bond of the Group are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entity to which they relate.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

32. TR T R(H)

(b)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the group entity to
which they relate:

32. TR T R(H)

(b)

Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk of HKS.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity to
a 10% (2020: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against
each group entity’s functional currency. 10% (2020:
10%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the material
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 10% (2020: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates. A negative number below indicates an increase in
pre-tax loss for the year of the Group (2020: increase in
pre-tax loss for the year of the Group) where each group
entity’s functional currency weaken 10% (2020: 10%)
against HK$. For a 10% (2020: 10%) strengthening of
each group entity’s functional currency against HK$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact.

B % E e E I B
(ME)

ERBE

B mpe (&)

TRETAEENRE BEE

SN IRREAPRIE] sk SE I 2l
BN ERHEZEERA
EEE 2 EHER

2021 2020
=F=—F —T-oTfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
38,104 68,445
(172,135) (152,261)
BBZ T
EEETR T BAIEITZINEE

A
PR

o

TRFNEETEBEHETLS
hee s 2 Efﬂﬁ

BEEEY
10%(—ZE-ZF : 10%)2@5@
B 10% (== 10%) &

MEE AEAEW%EﬁWMH
ST GURELLR - WHEE
E%%Eféﬁm@Zﬂﬁ°

HREDHEBEAIINEFELZ

AEEEEHE - URINEERX

10%(ZFZFF : 10%) &5
BRFER2BE  EXEEER

2N EB H B TRE10%(Z
T_TF 0% ) 0 TREH
BN S B F AR AT E R0
ZECTF  AEEF AR
RIESIRIE ) - MEEEER 2
e B H B TAHEI0%(ZF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

BRI AR

Pre-tax loss

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances, restricted bank balances and
interest-bearing borrowings carried at prevailing market
rate. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rate had been 50 basis point (2020: 50 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$149,000 (2020:
decrease/increase in the Group’s pre-tax loss for the
year by approximately HK$364,000). This was mainly
attributable to the exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank balances of the Group.
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32. TR T R(H)

BERRERERAERBEX
(%)

B¥EkE(E)
REZ T (&)
2021 2020
=B=—F —ToTfF
ST HK$'000
Fi# Tt
(13,403) (8,382)

T E

AEEBEAZ BB AERT S
KR ZRITHER - XIRBIRTT
mEa Lt BEEZRSRENEX
[ o A5 B R IE BT
BREIREN KRR - AKEYL
ERIEBERE IR AN R -

TXZBREDITTIRIBEIENTE
TARHRE HAREERE 2 XAE
BRETE - MRS RINEBE
HEERK 2 AEESRTAR
BEFEHREE -

i F = L30T B50MEESZ (=
T_TF 50EEE) c META
HEEEgiE g RIAEEF
ARk B AT ES TR A I 0, R A 49
149,000/8 T ( ZE_FF : K&
B R TR AT ES TEOR 18 N4y
364,00087T) « FERAALRE
B E | RIRITLE R 2 F
KRR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group was required to estimate the fair value of the
Convertible Bond (see Note 26) at the end of the reporting
period with changes in fair value to be recognised in the
profit or loss. The fair value adjustment would be affected
either positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the Company’s share market price.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s share price risk at the
reporting date only. If the Company’s share price had
been 5% (2020: 5%) higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year (as
a result of changes in fair value of the Convertible Bond)
would increase by approximately HK$1,213,000 (2020:
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year would increase by
approximately HK$2,069,000) during the year ended 31
March 2021. If the input of share price to the valuation
model of the derivatives embedded in the Convertible
Bond had been 5% lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year (as
a result of changes in fair value of Convertible Bond)
would decrease by approximately HK$1,213,000 (2020:
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year would decrease
approximately HK$2,069,000) during the year ended 31
March 2021.

32. TR T R(H)

(b)

BHERBREEEBRERBE
(%)

RA B ERE
REBAERRE PR EREEFT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32. TR T R(H)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) MEEREEEZREE
policies (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk B E R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group NEERBESRERME @ A&
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash EERTVH#EFRESNESEE
equivalents deemed adequate by the directors of the EERARNRIEEZREBRAZK
Company to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate FoAREEEKREES B
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. VIREMERB 2 FE o
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining TREALAEESHABERGE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The WEHBE 2B - B@IETY
tables have been drawn up based on the contractual ENAEEREEER 2 &FH
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on B BESHABEZAAARENR
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to BenemRE - 7IXRHEEFE
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash EEREHERE -
flows:
Within ~ More than
1year  1yearbut Total
oron  lessthan  2yearsto Over  undiscounted  Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5years cash flows amount
-FRg  BB-F AERES
EEZX EORWE WERRE BHEE HEAH REE
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
Fhn TEL TAT FAL FiL TEL
As at 31 March 2021 W-ZE=-%ZA=1-H
Trade and other payables ERETREMERTE 50,757 - - - 50,757 50,757
Promissory notes FAER 2,400 - - - 2,400 2,400
Lease liabiities HERE 1,910 353 - - 2,263 2,185
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 5 Bf£E (FizE) 60,636 - - - 60,636 60,636
Mining right payables ERRRENR 10,920 10920 32761 87,33 141,937 86,423
Convertible bond designated as ~ #6F AR AT BRI
financial liablties at FVPL ERAREeRBEL
BRRES - 200,000 - - 200,000 171,283
126,623 211,273 32,761 87,336 457,993 373,684
As at 31 March 2020 WZE-EF=A=1-H
Trade and other payables ERERREMENTE 25,642 - - - 6642 25642
Promissory notes AAEE 2,400 2,400 - - 4,800 4,611
Lease liabities HERE 2,082 1,365 - - 3,307 3,238
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 51 BfE & (Fi15E) 65,345 - - - 65,345 65,345
Mining right payables ERREENR 10,128 10128 30384 91,181 141,771 83503
Convertiole bond designated as ~ #;E AR ATFEFIHTE
financial iabilties at FVPL BRENRESRAEL
ARRES - - 200,000 - 200000 146,426
106,647 13,893 230,384 91,131 440,955 328,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

32. TR T R(H)

Financial risk management objectives and b) MEEREEEZREE

policies (continued) (4&)

Liquidity risk (continued) MEEE R (E)

Note: The amounts repayable under bank loan agreements that Misr : BIER FIRITEGERERELK
include a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right EENGERZBITERRHIE
to call the borrowings at any time are classified under the TEREEZRBEIEAI—F
category of “within 1 year or on demand”. However, the NKEESK | - AT - EIRE
management does not expect that the bank would exercise TEHRRIT T EITRZIEENRE
such right to demand the repayment and thus, the borrowings, FEER - Bt - BIEEER
which included the related interest, would be repaid according BEAMEEBIZRIEITER
to the below schedule as set out in the bank loan agreements BT A LA BRI R T LAE
as follow: &

More than
Within 1 year but Total
1 year or less than 2 years undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2years  tob5years cash flows amount
—FR®  BBE-F ABRRS
EEZR [EIRWME WEREF REAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THET FHET FHT
As at 31 March 2021 R-®--£=fA=1-R
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 63,615 407 - 64,022 60,636
As at 31 March 2020 RZTZTFE=A=1—H
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 65,722 957 407 67,086 65,345

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net
of impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

=EERE

RERE M BARNKERNERE
EREENERERSE KK
AEBZRANEERR - HILR
SRR A EAERREMER
EENEE-

EWE S

AEEERERLEESEN
F=NR5 - ARBERNBRRM
EREBREREGRRRSNEFE
XIEMBRFERER - IS - BUKE
BIERESR - MAKBERTAE

HIRARERR I TNEK ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based
on an extensive credit rating and individual credit limit
assessment which is mainly based on the Group’s own
trading records.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past
three years and available press information, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as
the loss upon default in each case. The directors of the
Company consider the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position
and credit quality of the counterparties. Since the Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk in respect of trade receivables regarding
coal mining business is insignificant as the Group’s
sales to coal customers are largely done on payment in
advance basis.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group’s customer base regarding renewable
energy business and IT Services business consists of
a wide range of customer and the trade receivables
are categorised by common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL for trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the provision
matrix is calculated for each category based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and adjusted for current and forward-
looking factors to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as approximately 19% (2020: approximately
49%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor and its affiliated companies,
and approximately 71% (2020: approximately 83%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
five largest trade debtors and their affiliated companies,
respectively.

32. TR T R(H)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. TEITE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b)) BHEREEEEREEK
policies (continued) (4&)
Credit risk (continued) =B Rk ()
Trade receivables (continued) JEWEFK ()
At the end of each reporting period, the ageing analysis of REMEEHR - oA HE D
the trade receivables of by due date is as follow: Z W EFEREROTIAT ¢

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-FTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Not yet due i 7k 280 HY 1,442 3,070
Past due: #H

Within 30 days 30HA 961 2,413

31 - 60 days 31260H 1,337 1,287

61 — 90 days 61%290H 509 769

Over 90 days 90H A E 535 1,175

3,342 5,644

4,784 8,714

Less: Loss allowance B iR (71) (51)

4,713 8,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HILLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL
for trade receivables using a provision matrix is as follows:

32. TR T R(H)

HERKREEEERBXR
(%)

=EmfE (&)

EWE ()
ERBBETNEKERNEER
R RIEEEERERNT

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amounts  allowance amounts
FHERE AREE 2 BERE  RERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAT THT FAT
As at 31 March 2021 R-EBE-—F
=B=+—H 1.48 4,784 (71) 4,713
As at 31 March 2020 RZT_THF
=A=+-H 0.59 8,714 (61) 8,663

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The
movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables is as

follows:

At the beginning of the reporting period k& BA 1)

Additions through acquisition of

subsidiaries (Note 34)
Charge of loss allowance

At the end of the reporting period

Other receivables

(K17E34)
BB BB &

ISR

The Group considers that the other receivables have
low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and low risk of default. No impairment on the other
receivables is recognised based on the measurement on

12-month ECL.

BRBBHBARRE

AEFBR-_Z-_—FR-_ZT—-F
F=RA=+—R{EEEEME
WERRER R - B EFKEE
BEBEEINT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F#&T
51 =
= 44
20 7
71 51

A EW IR

HRERAELBREE S - AR
RHMARTEANRERERE
REERENRR - HAKER
REMERFIENEERREK
& - SERIBTE+ —EAEH
15 & /&5 18 7 38 2L At JB W R TR
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers the credit risk in respect of restricted
bank balances and cash and cash equivalents is minimal
because the counter-parties are authorised financial
institutions with high credit ratings.

Fair value measurements

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13: Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement date.

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

° Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group engaged independent professional valuers
to perform valuations of financial instruments which are
categorised into Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. Valuation reports with analysis of changes in
fair value measurement are prepared by the independent
professional valuers at each interim and annual reporting
date, and are reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the financial controller is held twice a year to coincide
with the reporting dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-_—f=A=+—ALEE

32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

32. M T R(H)

(%)

HEREREREAERBEX

RF(EEE ()

Fair value measurements categorised

into
AV EFESE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
DYHE E—R -t 1 E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHAT THET THT
As at 31 March 2021 R-B=—-F
=HA=+-H
Recurring fair value RENHATEFTE
measurements
Financial liabilities EEARATEYRYE
designated as at FVPL: FEEANRE &/
BfE:
Convertible bond BEARATETIR
designated as financial W AEIE 2
liabilities at FVPL ERAFZ A’
K& 171,283 - - 171,283
As at 31 March 2020 R-BZZF
=A=+-—H
Recurring fair value REEATETE
measurements
Financial assets measured BATESIRITERR
at FVPL: NEEZERERE
Contingent consideration W ARE
receivables 6,186 - - 6,186
Financial liabilities EERELTESIRL
designated as at FVPL: FEENEE SR
BE:
Convertible bond BT ARATETE
designated as financial THEEBHRAREY
liabilities at FVPL ERAEZ TR
e & 146,426 - - 146,426
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—-H=ZA=t+—HLEE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of the Convertible Bond is determined
with reference to the fair value of the liability component
and conversion option component, calculated using
discounted cash flows and binomial model, respectively.
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
convertible bond are as follows:

(i) The estimation of risk free rate has made reference
to the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same
duration as the Convertible Bond;

(i)  The estimation of volatility for the underlying share
price has considered the historical price movements
of the Company;

(iiy  The discount rate was determined based on the
Company’s credit rating and comparable corporate
bonds with similar maturity and credit risk for which
the range of comparable yield to maturity as of date
of valuation was determined and the median has
been adopted; and

(iv)  The estimation of dividend yield is based on
historical dividend payment of the Company.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)
Major parameters adopted in the calculation of the fair
value are summarised below:

Stock price Iz (B
Exercise price 1fEE
Risk free rate 4R Fp A6 =
Discount rate BhIR =
Dividend yield ’REx
Time to expiration EI|HARFRE
Stock price volatility BENL

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected stock price volatility. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected stock price volatility. If the expected stock price
volatility has been 5% (2020: 5%) higher with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the
year would increase by approximately HK$1,507,000
(2020: increase in the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year
by approximately HK$2,339,000) during the year ended
31 March 2021. If the expected stock price volatility has
been 5% lower with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year would decrease
by approximately HK$1,536,000 (2020: decrease in
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year by approximately
HK$2,389,000) during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
The movements during the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020 in the balances of financial assets and financial
liabilities of Level 3 fair value measurements are set out
in Note 15 and Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

32. M T R(H)

(b)

R==

BERBEEEERBE
(%)
BEHEE=RLFEFEZEH
(&)
SEQFEARAZIE2HH
BT

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
—f R-_B_EF

=A _+ =] =A=+—H
HK$0.09 HK$0.12
0.097 7T 0.127 7T
HK$0.20 HK$0.20
0.207 7T 0.20/ 7T
0.13% 0.62%
13.20% 18.80%

0% 0%

1.95 years 2.95 years
1.95% 2.95%F
88.74% 70.97%

ANFEFERAZEANAE
ﬁﬁk@ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁo
NFE 2 HETEEE R RS2 1E
18R - (MBS BRI = 5%
T -TE 1 5%) MAAE
BT RIS ERE
E-E-_—F=A=+—81It
iFZiW%ﬁ#ﬁ%hﬁm
#31,507,0008 L (ZE =T F :
7N & B /Y F A BR AT E 18 S 3
hn#92,339,000/8 7T ) © fwTEHARK
B IEA1K5% » i FrAa HAb &
HHEFIE  AAEERER
- F=A=+—HILF
FZEW%&W%E%H 4
1,536,000 L (ZE =& F :
EENFARTAIEEBRDL
2,389,000/ 7T) °

BEZE=RLFETEZLHE
E=RRNVFEFECCREER
CRIBEEMRZEE T - —F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B 5 sh Rzt
For the year ended 31 March 2021
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33.

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with the
related parties.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remunerations of directors of the Company and other
members of key management personnel during the reporting
periods are as follows:

33.

BEALRS
BREAVBRREMBOAKRES
Sh REBEBEALTANNIRS :

TEEE ASHH
BEHAXRRESREMETRER
ERX B2 FBan T

HEAFe 2R
Hib 2 iR &7

TE R RET IR

Basic salaries, allowances and other
short-term employee benefits

Contributions to defined
contribution plan

The remunerations of directors of the Company was
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of Harbour Group Holdings

On 11 March 2019, (i) Ample Talent entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party, the
Vendor of Harbour Group, pursuant to which the Vendor of
Harbour Group has conditionally agreed to sell, and Ample
Talent has conditionally agreed to purchase 80% equity interest
in Harbour Group Holdings at an aggregate consideration of
HK$35,712,000; and (ii) Ample Talent and Harbour Group
Holdings entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which Harbour Group Holdings has conditionally agreed
to issue and allot to Ample Talent, and Ample Talent has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 450 ordinary shares of
Harbour Group Holdings, representing approximately 4.5%
of the total number of shares of Harbour Group Holdings in
issue as at the date of subscription agreement at an aggregate
subscription price of HK$2,008,800. Upon completion of the
above transactions, Ample Talent held 80.86% equity interest in
Harbour Group Holdings.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

34.

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZTTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
7,159 7,224

38 36

7,197 7,260

ARAERHFMAEFTHEES2RRK
FZEARRETGBERET

o

Wi B B /B 1 =

U BB B R AR
RZZE—NAF=A+—H (KRS8
REBYE=FE8EESEHFIVE
B Bt BEEBE S BIKE
EELE  MREEIRBERTERERE
BB EIER80%mEE BRES
35,712,000 7T ¢ M (ii) ¥4 & 8l 4% 815
EIERFT Y R E - B - BEE
BEFRERE MBS AR ZEIT KA
% O MREBEIRERGRERE S
BERR 450X E AR (FBE R REH
FHEBEEREETRODAHY
4.5%) » BREEE 52,008,800/8 7T °
REK LR P % - WEEIRFES
YRR 80.86% AR AE
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WHEKMIEB AT (48)

Acquisition of Harbour Group Holdings (continued)

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
consideration for the sale and purchase of the sale shares shall
be the sum of HK$35,712,000, which shall be settled by Ample
Talent to the Vendor of Harbour Group in the following manner:

(@ on the date of the sale and purchase agreement, the
Ample Talent paid to the Vendor of Harbour Group a sum
of HK$3,571,200 in cash as a refundable deposit and
partial payment of the consideration; and

(b) at the completion date of sale and purchase of the 80%
equity interest in Harbour Group Holdings, Ample Talent
shall pay to the Vendor of Harbour Group (i) a further sum
of HK$24,940,800 in cash; and (i) the remaining amount
of HK$7,200,000 by means of the issue of the Promissory
Notes by the Company to the Vendor of Harbour Group.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor of
Harbour Group has agreed to guarantee that the Net Profit
for PG 12-Month Period shall be no less than the Guaranteed
Profit. In the event that the Net Profit during the PG 12-Month
Period is less than the Guaranteed Profit, the Vendor of
Harbour Group unconditionally and irrevocably undertakes
and guarantees, as a continuing obligation, to pay the Shortfall
Amount. The detail is set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Harbour Group consists of Harbour Group Holdings,
Harbour Group Singapore, Harbour Group Consulting,
HGH Technology, Mountain Managed Cloud and Vanguard
Business. Harbour Group is principally engaged in the provision
of IT Services mainly in Hong Kong with expanding business in
United Kingdom, Malaysia and Singapore. The directors of the
Company are of the view that the acquisition can broaden the
Group’s revenue base and benefit from the diversified return in
future. The acquisition constituted a business combination and
had been accounted for using the acquisition method under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.

WeiE B e AR (48)

BREEERE  BEESFERMHKRE
4 £ 535,712,000 7T © 15 H A%
BRI T AR S FEEE A &1

@ RESWHEEH  BWEAREB
BEBEEH % 198,571,200%8 7T
Be  (EATREERERREN
AR R

() REEBFIEIRB0%RER TR
HE  WEARARSESEEE
()5 5 —% 5 #024,940,800
BITHIES © M)BEBHARA T
MABEBEEFEITRLERY
73 S #2%E7,200,00078 7T ©

BIEEEWS:  BEEEEHERE
RE BARE+—E L HE4EF
BN LRREBER o WaIRB+=
& A A e A5 7 D IMR B R T - B8
SEE 7 E G RS & R
RE - ERBEEL  HBEZHTR
SR - BEAFIBENGRA ISR KM
15 °

B E BB EERY « Harbour Group
Singapore * Harbour Group Consulting
HGH Technology * & 48 = i M 4B &
PEMEK - BBEEEIEEBRIE
REBREN B AR RTS8
Bl - F5 R 78 I8 DA SR T NI B R R
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition of Harbour Group Holdings (continued)
On 23 April 2019, the acquisition of Harbour Group Holdings
was completed and Harbour Group has become subsidiaries of
the Group since then. The consideration paid and the amounts
of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of

34. WEBHIEE A Rl (&)
Weig B e AR (48)
RZBE—-AFMA=-+=8 " BF#
RUEE K - BEEEEB KA
AEBZHBEAR - BEEBENR
B LA K P B8 A AT 28k B3 B B R P i

Harbour Group are as follows: FERESTWOT -
HK$'000
FiET
Total identifiable assets acquired and FriB A Al B & E K FrRiE
liabilities assumed, at fair value: EEHAE  BROAFENE:
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R MR 589
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUE B % oM R W ER IR 13,906
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRS 6,027
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FERE R & B kIR (5,132
Income tax payables FERTFRIS R (427)
Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings RITBEZ KT BEE (4,112)
Lease liabilities HEAE (653)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE (685)
Total identifiable net assets, at fair value B EEFEHARE  BRAFENE 9,613
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (1,840)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 14) IWEEEE 2 Em B (MFE14) 24,148
Net consideration (fair value) REFE(QFE) 31,921
Satisfied by: AR
Cash e 30,521
Promissory Notes (Note 28) #H ER(M17E28) 6,764
37,285
Less: po
Fair value of contingent consideration FER S ARE 2 AT EMFE15)
receivables (Note 15) (5,364)
Net consideration (fair value) REFE(QFEH) 31,921

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED & REXER AT
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Acquisition of Harbour Group Holdings (continued)

34. WEEKE AT (&)

LI& Eﬁ/ﬁ/ﬁ? HX ( )

Analysis of the net outflows in respect of the acquisition of MNEESSER RS R I FESNT
Harbour Group is as follows: N
HK$'000
FHT
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BESHEeMAEEEIER 6,027
Cash paid BEfNRE (30,521)
(24,494)

The directors of the Company have engaged Peak Vision to
provide assistance in determining the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of Harbour Group in accordance with HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. Peak Vision has reviewed the
methodologies, the key valuation parameters and business
assumptions adopted.

The non-controlling interests were measured at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the Harbour Group’s identifiable net assets as at 23
April 2019.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
growth and profit potential in the expansion of IT Services
business. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The total transaction costs of approximately HK$3,370,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred and
included in administrative and other operating expenses of
approximately HK$3,296,000 and approximately HK$74,000 in
the profit and loss during the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2020, respectively.

Since acquisition and up to 31 March 2020, the acquired
business has contributed revenue of approximate
HK$53,304,000 and contributed a profit of approximately
HK$3,936,000 to the Group.

If the business combinations effected during the year ended
31 March 2020 had been taken place as at 1 April 2019,
the revenue and profits of the Group would be increased by
approximately HK$4,757,000 and increased by approximately
HK$401,000, respectively.

RAREEZESZBBREBEREIMER
EREBEIR A FEGTERDETES
BEBEERABEBEZATE - BED
FATERRA % - FEFTEH2 AR
PSR TER -

RS IR R R EE R T AR
PinihEBEER _E—NAFHA
“+T=RZAIBEREEFE L CHER
GRERTE °

Wi EIEES 2B BN EMEHR
BR7G 2R E R R KBS A TR -
TEHAY & B MR B n] ALAIBRFI 5
i o

#8233 5 K 28 #93,370,00058 7T 2 R
FREFRHR - YDRFFABEZZ
—NFRZEZEF=A=+— E|¢
FEZBETNITREEMEEE
#93,296,000/% 7T 2 #174,0008 7T °

BREBEAREEE-_S_TF= A
=+—8" Pﬁuézﬁ%%ﬂ‘%z%$;%l%m
& 51 4953,304,0007 7T & B B i 7 £
3,936,000/ 7T °

WREE-_E-_TEF=-A=1+—AH1t
FEEBZERAHR_ZE—LFN
B—HB%4E  AIAREEMKES KT
R 5 Bl 12 50 %9 4,757,0005 7T K& 49
401,000/ 7T °
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35.

36.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

35.

BARRXARE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F#&T

Contracted but not provided net BRI B R B CHIBR B EE YD
of deposit paid for acquisition of ¥ BEMEREBECENZEZESE)

property, plant and equipment

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 in total.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the Mainland China
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the Mainland China government. The retirement
scheme contributions, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of the Mainland China subsidiaries’ employees,
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year to which they are
related and represented the amount of contributions payable by
these subsidiaries to this scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,670,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,902,000)
represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
in respect of the current financial year.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR A A

36.
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37.

COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

37. RATLQREMEZHBERRE

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at FVPL

Lease liabilities

FRBEE
W= - BERRE
RIBRBZRE

RBEE
FEUSHY /B8 1~ 7] KIA
B JEYGRIA
Re ke FEEAR

RBRE
Hopth ) 5OR N e AT B
MEAE

REBEEFE
REERRBDAR

BAR &
LN
[

BRES

FRBEE
EEARATFEIIRLAR
SRERE ERAEZA
B ES

MEAE

The statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 June 2021

and signed on its behalf by

Kwan Man Fai

RS

Director

EE

2021 2020

2= —F ke Sl X3

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FEx FET
1,173 2,296

16 - -
1,173 2,296

16 225,976 212,838
539 774

38,092 68,350

264,607 281,962

1,035 4,012

853 974

1,888 4,986

262,719 276,976

263,892 279,272

25 76,537 76,537
25 16,072 55,456
92,609 131,993

26 171,283 146,426
- 853

171,283 147,279

263,892 279,272

AP BRREHEETERN _—_T——F
NAZT—RA#ERKETE - Ak

A TALTHRERE -

Wong Sze Wai
F o
Director

EF
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Up to the date of issue of the consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2021 and are relevant to the Group and which have not

been early adopted in the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 4, 7,9 and 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 '

Proceeds before Intended Use 2

Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 2

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ?

2018-2020 Cycle ?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies @

Definition of Accounting Estimates *

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Insurance Contracts ®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
4 The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing
the possible impact on the future adoption of these new/revised
HKFRSSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate

their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-_Z-—f=A=+—HALEE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group ~ AEERBEREARBHEED AHELE - &
for the last five financial years is set out below. ENBEZBEEHINOT -
RESULTS E 4

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1t—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

- Sebl T -TF —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+F
GLEYN  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
THER Fir FET FHT AT

REVENUE 6 130,521 127,989 75,625 182,445 73,024
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS Fed= sy 28,121 8,269 12,359 35,509 13,053
Exchange gain/(loss), net P& 5 g/ (B518) 348 7,979 (4,672) (6,175) 8,866 (11,490)
Finance costs BMAEKAR (9,626) (6,952) (964) = (176)
Supplemental resources fee RRERE = (85,688) - - -
Change in fair value and gain arising ~ F3&EE AIRAFEYIE
from modification of VHEERNERE &
convertible bond designated as AEE TRRES
financial liabilities at FVPL ZRTEEPRESE
2z (24,857) 71,443 29,373 14,374 56,034
Change in fair value of contingent ~ EUREK AR (EZ
consideration receivables NTHEES (3,648) 3,009 = = =
Impairment loss on goodwil EERESE (14,503) (3,831) - - =
Impairment loss on property, WE - BER
plant and equipment FEREESE - = = (3,511) >
Impairment loss on intangible assets &/ & EREEE - - - (12,618) -
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (ER), /SRR (16,534) (18,422) 34,593 42,620 57,421
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrERiER,/ (X)) 14,326 (6,182) (5,750) (5,942) (9,154)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),/ & (2,208) (24,604) 28,843 36,678 48,267
Attributable to: PAR AT RESS
Owners of the Company VN/NETEZZ=DN (4,243) (33,089) 17,923 50,349 42,480
Non-controlling interests RIS 761 641 11 - -
(3482)  (32,448) 17,934 50,349 42,480
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY BB EEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE-Z-_—F=A=+—-ALEFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BaE
Net assets EEFE

EEREE

As at 31 March

R=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
bl T —TF —T-NF —T-\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx TAET TAT FAET TAT
560,188 519,326 536,144 493,720 448,504
(410,605) (366,261) (351,461) (328,004) (333,137)
149,583 153,065 184,683 165,716 115,367

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B & REZAR AT
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